Paradise Recreation and Park District Agenda Prepared: 12/06/2019

6626 Skyway, Paradise, CA 95969 Agenda Posted: 12/06/2019
(530) 872-6393 Prior to:  3:00 p.m.
M Paradise Recreation and Park District
/. Board of Directors - Regular Meeting
Terry Ashe Recreation Center, Room B
PARADISE Wednesday, December 11, 2019, 6:00 pm

RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT

Members of the public may comment on Agenda items at the time the item is presented. Speakers may comment on items not
listed on the Agenda under Public Comment. Comments should be limited to a maximum of three (3) minutes. State Law
prohibits the PRPD Board of Directors from acting on items not listed on the agenda. Please notify the meeting clerk prior to
the start of the meeting if you wish to be heard.

1. CALL TO ORDER

1.1. Pledge of Allegiance
1.2. Roll Call
1.3. Welcome Guests: Julie Jenks, Camp Fire Zone Project.
1.4. Special Presentations:
A.  Hunter Dougherty, Eagle Scout Project (Mark Cobb)

B. Leah Greenbaum of CalOES and Kelsey Anderson of FEMA will provide a joint PowerPoint
presentation on California Recovery Support Functions

2. PUBLIC COMMENT

3. CONSENT AGENDA
3.1. Board Minutes:
A.  Regular Meeting of November 13, 2019

3.2. Correspondence: None
3.3. Payment of Bills/Disbursements (Warrants and Checks Report)

Payroll Checks and Payables Checks #050224 to and including #050361 in the total amount of
$209,831.00 including refunds or void checks reported.

3.4. Information Items (Acceptance only):
A.  Draft Safety Committee Meeting Minutes of November 21, 2019

4. COMMITTEE REPORTS

4.1 Recreation & Park Standing Committee (Anderson/Rodowick)
The Committee met on December 4, 2019 to (1) review and discuss the Paradise Irrigation District
Paradise Lake Agreement; (2) review and discuss proposed playground expansion at Bille Park
with KaBoom!; and (3) in Closed Session pursuant to Government Code Section
54956.8 — Potential interest in real estate negotiations related to park expansion within District
boundaries in Magalia and Paradise.
A report of this meeting will be reviewed.

5. REPORTS

5.1. District Report

5.2. Ice Rink Update (Gayle/Lorrennis Oral Report)
5.3. LAFCO Update (Al McGreehan Oral Report)
5.4. CARPD Update (Al McGreehan Oral Report)

6. CLOSED SESSION - NONE

PRPD Board of Directors Regular Meeting Agenda Page 1 December 5, 2019



7. OLD BUSINESS

7.1. Camp Fire Zone Project Kiosk Installation Proposal — Ms. Jenks of the Camp Fire Zone Project is
seeking Board approval to install informational kiosks at the Terry Ashe Recreation Center, Bille
Park, Crain Park, and the Aquatic Park.

Recommendation: Approve the proposal as presented and direct staff to designate installation
locations at District facilities.

7.2. Resolution #19-12-1-472 — Approve and adopt Resolution #19-12-1-472 authorizing Paradise
Recreation and Park District Assistant District Manager and District Board of Directors to sign checks
and ACH’s on behalf of the District for the County of Butte.

Recommendation: Approve and adopt Resolution #19-12-1-472 as presented.

8. NEW BUSINESS

8.1. Resolution #19-12-2-473 Butte County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan — The amendment to the
General Plan’s Health and Safety Element is recommended that will incorporate the most current
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP) as part of the Health and Safety Element of the General Plan.
The plan was considered at the November Board of Supervisors meeting and the County, each
agency, CALOES and FEMA must approve the plan before it may go into effect.

Recommendation: Approve and adopt resolution as presented.

8.2. KaBoom! — Butte Strong Fund — Approve cooperative agreement with KaBoom! (an organization
devoted to building safe, community-built playgrounds that encourage youth physical activity) to
develop an approximate 2,500 sq. foot playground. KaBoom! is exploring funding through the Butte
Strong Foundation to replace the playground at Aquatic Park.

Recommendation: Upon concurrence with legal staff, Recreation and Parks Committee
recommends approval of the cooperative agreement with KaBOOM!.

8.3. Election of Officers — The PRPD Board of Directors will elect a Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, and
Secretary to serve in the 2020 calendar year.
Recommendation: Elect officers to serve on the PRPD Board of Directors for the 2020 calendar
year.

9. BOARD COMMENT

10. ADJOURNMENT

Adjourn to the next regular meeting on January 8, 2020 at 6:00 p.m., in Conference Room B, at the Terry
Ashe Recreation Center (6626 Skyway, Paradise, California).

meeting, please contact the District Administrative Office at 530-872-6393 or info@paradiseprpd.com at least 48
hours in advance of the meeting.

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need a special accommodation to participate in the

PRPD Board of Directors Regular Meeting Agenda Page 2 December 5, 2019


mailto:info@paradiseprpd.com
mailto:info@paradiseprpd.com

Staff Report December 11, 2019
DATE: 12/2/2019
/s \ TO: Board of Directors
' i~
pARAD'SE FROM: Mark D. Cobb Park Supervisor
RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT
SUBJECT: Kiosks Eagle Scout Project

1. Background
On November 8" we lost our two Kiosks signs at the Terry Ash Recreation Center. A short time after the fire Eagle
Scout Hunter Dougherty contacted me about doing his Eagle scout project at one of our facility’s. It was at that time |
recommended rebuilding the Kiosks. Hunter along with other scouts and friends (Andrew Milani, Brendan Milani, Pat
Conroy, Charlie Kyle and Clay Carter) Took on this project. They were able to raise $1,700 in total. $300 was donated
by friends and family the remaining portion was donated by Holiday Pools.

2. Recommendation
I would like to acknowledge Hunter Dougherty and Troop #2 Eagle Scout members Chico and friends for the
outstanding job they did on the rebuild of the two Kiosks. The Craftsmanship and pride they have shown on this project
are very apparent to all. Thank You for Choosing PRPD for your Eagle Scout Project Hunter.

Attachments:

PRPD Staff Report Page 1 of 1 December 2019




10s1ATadNG I S PLISI
LDINLSIA YV ® NOILYIND3Y YIed pue uoneaIddy asipered ‘qqo) ‘(@ JIeW

3S1dvivd

A

6T0T ‘YITT I9qUIdDS(J JO AepSoupapm

i iNOA INOYHM 11 SUOP dARY 1 UP[NOD M jAIO[D) SII-1d SH O],
sysony S.Ad¥d 2y3 Surp[mgau 10j 11oddng pue yiom pieH InoA [[e 104

A119ysno( Jojuny
1N00S d[3e

OL A4adVMV

NOILLVIOHAddV A0 ALVOIALLIHO




mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm

SHO 1PD [N

Alan0ody Ja)sesi(q wJa | -buo Jo)
sJaulled |elapa4 pue ‘a)e)s ‘|eao buiAiiun

'suonoun4
1Joddng AlaAo2ay elulolijen



uuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuu
uuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuu

‘SI9p|oyayels pue siaulled jeauswulsarobuou

‘salpusbe |eiapa4 pue 23e31S buowe uoneuplood

bulla1so) AQ pue s924n0sal 0] Ssa20e buiaoiduwll ‘BuUIA|oS
wajqo.ld bunejjne) Aq seniunwiwod Joddns 0] papuaqu] -

‘Seale
|leuonouny punoJde paziuebluo sdnolbyiom Adusbelsquy -

ssuonoung yoddns AIDA009Y dJ4e Jeymm

‘|9A3] |BJ0| B3 1B Spua pue suibag AlaAodad W) buo -

*193sesIp Jolew e wodj
JInsaJ Jeyy sabueyd a|gejiAsul ayl usAlb ‘a3els jeuonouny
pue 3|ge3s e 03 AJlunwwod e bullojsal JO SS200.1d -

¢AIDA003Y WD buoT sl Jeym



Presenter
Presentation Notes
Process of restoring a community to a stable and functional state, given the inevitable changes that result from a major disaster. 
Process begins immediately after a disaster and can continue for years.
Recovery is a “complex and urgent process to achieve functionality of socio‐ecological systems and adapt to new conditions.”
Recovery requires coordination and partnership across many departments, sectors, and all levels of government.



S1S0D DBULIBA0DDY -
suoijoe ojul sueld bunejsued] -
2sod.nd Jo Ajlie|d pue uoneulpJood bululgjulely =

uoie.l03sal
10} saJIsap AJlunwiwiod
buLiayjip bunenobap -

syoedul _umu_mn__uscmc:
pue ‘AJIxajdwod
‘asbueyd 03 bundepy -

sabudjjeyd AIDA0DY



Presenter
Presentation Notes
Ie why do we need a framework 


SO 1Y) |mi™

$92IN0S9Y Guippng Ayoede)
|eanyng pue Buiuuejq
pue |einjeN Aunuwo)

JILLUOUO0D]

U
e+

Buisnoy

aJnpnijseyur &
SAVIAIRG

[eros pue jeay

N\
) g
1 J]

yoddng yoa| UOIEUIPJI00)
pue uonebiijy Aianooay
12158811 YD Aousbessyuy v

20UR]SISSY soue)sISsy
211qnd YO [enpIAIpUT YO

uonpas AIRA0OSY 530 1es ﬁ_

uoi}oag A1anooay S30 |e)D



Presenter
Presentation Notes
Pouneh

The Recovery Section is responsible for managing disaster recovery and providing assistance to local governments, special districts, certain nonprofit organizations, individuals, businesses and agricultural communities impacted by disasters.
Individual Assistance
Interagency Recovery Coordination
Disaster Recovery Assistance for Individuals, Businesses, Private Non-Profits, Farmers & Ranchers
Public Assistance
Disaster Mitigation and Technical Support
Training



S301A¥IS AINISUIWI 40

301440 5. HONHIA09
SHO1PD |mit
Y

(o))
21e1s
Apesjs 0} oeq uopisues] = Juswabebud
IN03SOD) = pue yoeatino |eniug
buniojluow pue uonediuapl afold
uonejuswa|dwi 103(0ld = juswdojasp Bbuidoos uoissiw 10} saniARoe SHoy9 bujuued
uonejuawa|dwi ,Abajens Alsnoday, asuodsay yjm uonelbojul = AJIDA0DB. J2)SeSIp
Ab2jen)S AIDAODDY = JuswAo|dap Juonenjeas -2.d |eoo| buipoddnsg =
Spaau jawun pue uoneAie 4Sy 2oueApy,, buippnpuo) = slauped AIDA0Dal YIm
Ssalppe 03 Ajunwiwod ay} ,JUDWISSASSY SpaaN Jowun,, ssaualeme sdiysuoneja.l buidopAsq =
Uam juswabebus 10a41q = Buidoos uoissiw panuiRuo) [euonenyis bulayies = ejep auleseq bunos|o0) =
E‘_O._.umccu_ uLio] -310ys sSsou ﬂw._mn_w‘_n_
I
l _ |
| suonound yoddns Aouabiawg/ISNOdSIY !
— |

suoipung poddng A19n009Yy /swielboid A1onoday / >~_m_>oum_~_J

dullowi] AIDA009Y pue dsuodsoy




uuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuu
mu_uu_o S.HONYIA09 (6

SHO1PD s

10

._umu:_oEm_mmE:o.u,Eot_m:EBEU%UEBmEmmuSOmm: mm_
|eJn}Nd pue ‘|ealiolsiy ‘[ednjeN :$924n0say jedn3jn) Q jednieN

"SI 24NN} 03 JUSI|IS.
2JOW pue paJlojsaJ SWI)SAS ainniiseljut :adnondisedjur

‘pPaoNpaJ SI Xo03s buisnoy 03 ysi aininy pue buisnoy
Jusuew.ad ajes ‘9|qissadoe Ul ale SIOAIAINS paoe|dsiq :buisnoH

*20e|d Ul SW]SAS IDIAISS |BID0S
pue ‘Ajijigesip ‘yijeay s|geuleisns :SIVIAIBS |eI00S 3 Yi|edH 3

"YSII 213Ny 03 JualjISa] aJow pue |||
P2J01SaJ Y)|eay |edsl) pue AWouoda |ed0T :AI9A009Y JIWouod] .\/\

‘AJI9A0J3] UMO S)I beuew pue ped| 03 9|t Wiy
SI Alunwwo) :buipjing Aynede) 3 buiuue|d AAiunwiwo) M

s2uw0d}nQ AIDA003Y paujiun




11

uuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuu

321440 S.HONYIAOD
SdO1PD |mt
WY

suoneziuebip
Ajlunwwon
pue s31Jo1d-UON

S2IIUNLILIOY
pue s[enplalpu]

J1opag ajeALd

AY3IA0D3Y

ALINNWWOD IT10HM S[elRiyo pas|3

suonieziuebip
paseg-yied

e . __HEL sapuaby juswuianog

yoeoiddy AJlunwwio) 3a|oym



Presenter
Presentation Notes
The whole community includes individuals and communities, the private and nonprofit sectors, faith-based organizations, and all levels of government (local, regional/metropolitan, state, tribal, territorial, insular area, and Federal). Whole community is defined in the National Preparedness Goal as “a focus on enabling the participation in national preparedness activities of a wider range of players from the private and nonprofit sectors, including nongovernmental organizations and the general public, in conjunction with the participation of all levels of government in order to foster better coordination and working relationships.”



12

[1eH

ojeyng UoOMON pue
+WwNasn|y 1966nN
PIOD :SE dY
uoneunsag
100pInQ :¢¢ dy

:S100/0.14
po7oulied

x (24Yp[Im)

ue|d jJuswabeuey
Slend ¢T dd

* x (41AA)
Ayadold ajeald
uo saa4] juing
buipuess :g dy

* uoneonp3

9jes aJi4
JuSpISAY  dY

sSs100/l044
paTumoy

$924N0S9Yy
Jean3|n) B jeanjeN

ST T T O e WA

* Spiepuels

Aduapiy3 buipjing

6T0¢C 9¢ dd
J}OMIaN eleq

paads YbiH 4z dY

* % WIISAS

4918 dId 6T dd

seniN
punoJbiapun

8T dd

:s108l044
pa7iauiied

Jaua)
JIND MaN /T dY
*x (8 UONE]IS
914 MaN 9T dY
WI2ISAS

OMaS €T dY
S399.3S pu3 peag
buo1 :01 dY
syuswbas peoy
buissi :6 dY
Wa3sAS yied
P3103UU02IUT
'8 dY

SoIN0Y
uonendeAs i/ dy
WI2ISAS
uonedyoN
Aousbiaw] 19 4y

;$300/014
pa7umol

aln)pnJajseqjur

Y

Apnis 1ep
buisnoH :1z dy
Ajjigepioyy
buisnoH :0z dy

:s108/044
pa7iaulied

% SI9UMOBWOH
bunloddng
/sjuswianosdwi]
uRISISoY

uomubr 1z d4y
Joqua)

921n0say buisnoH
pue Jiwiad
Aouaijisay T dY

:s300/0.14
pa7umoy

fuisnoy

\

uoneonp3
pooypiyo

Ale3 g€ dy

+ SIAIDS
aJedyyesH T¢ dd
x uoneonp3
Alepuodas pue
Aeyuswis|3g :0€ dy

:sp00lo.1d4
pa7.Jaulied

S9DIAIDS |eID0S
B YilesH

=—al
D)

sinauaJdanug
Joj 9oeds

YIOM/OAT 16T dY

92JaWWo)

40 Jequeyy :/¢ dd

QUo7

Ayunyioddo :9z d¥
ue|d Juswdojansg

SIOPOM € dY

Abajens
jJuswdoAsQ
JIWOU0D] :ZZ dY

sSs100/l044
pa7.oulied

[SPOIN
|e2si4 9|geuleisns
ST dd

aouejJsISSY alqnd
uonebyy pieze,

defisAQ 8d00S

;Ss108/l044
pa7umoy

21Wou0d3
AU

'

uonepodsuel)
algnd v€ dd
SI99JUN|OA :8Z d¥
191Ud) Yoieasay
Aoualjisay/sndwed
uoneonp3 :G¢ dd
UMOIUMOP
olged|eM :TT dd

LJENUBI0d, Ady]

:S100/0.14
pa7.Joulied

% buiuoz pue
buiuueld :HT1 dy
x SpJepuels

pue sspo)
[enuspIsay € dY

:$308/[014 pa7 UMOJ

Buipjing Ayoede)

e

M[EMSS01) Sy ® S}o0lold AIoA0D0yY osIpelied JO UMO]

B Buluue|d Ajunwwo)



13

uuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuu

AOD'SYP DUWSI@UOSIDpPUY ASS|DY
€1/8-€8C-9G¢C

(VW3d) 4S¥ ¥DN ‘uosiapuy Aas|9) =
AOB'0D's82IN0saldulay yound
8CEL96/-916

(VIND) 4S¥ ¥DON ‘dwia)y »oujnd =
AOB 0D'STJOIPD®WNDQUBBIS YD
065 1-91C-916

(S30I0D) 10jpUIPI00D SY YON ‘WNDqUIID DI =
AOB DD SJOIPD®ABUDS BNOQI0LD0DIIUOD
0001-2¥6-916

(S30IPD) 10SIAPY 4SY YDN ‘AdUp9 BnoQ =

UoIDWLIOU| }OPJUO0D




14



15

Paradise Recreation and Park District U 4 bo 5
Board of Directors Regular Meeting
Terry Ashe Recreation Center, Room B
November 13. 2019

MINUTES

The regular meeting of the Paradise Recreation and Park District Board of Directors was called to order
by Board Chairperson Mary Bellefeuille at 6:00 p.m.

1. CALL TO ORDER:

1.1  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:
Chairperson Bellefeuille led the Pledge ol Allegiance.

1.2 ROLL CALL:

Present: Chairperson Mary Bellefeuille ,Vice Chairperson Al McGreehan. Secretary Robert Anderson,
Director Julie Van Roekel and Director Steve Rodowick

ABSENT: None

PRPD STAFF:
District Manager Dan Efseaffl. Assistant District Manager Kristi Sweeney. Recreation Supervisor Jeff
Dailey, Administrative Assistant 1 Lorrennis Leeds. Marketing Coordinator Gayle Jaarsma, District
Accountant Catherine Merrificld and Administrative Assistant 1 & Management Colleen Campbell.

1.3  WELCOME GUESTS:
Chairperson Bellefeuille welcomed guests, Rick Wood. California Special Districts Assoctation; Chris
Rauen, Park on the Green; Doug Keister, Author; Debbie Moseley, Paradise Chocolate Fest; and Ryan
Luster, The Nature Conservancy.

1.4  SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:

The Board of Directors welcomed Author Douglas Keister to provide a brief overview of his book People,
Places & Pieces of Paradise: The Inferno. Afiermath & Recovery firom the Most Destructive Wildfire in
Californiu History.

Mr. Keister provided a short PowerPoint presentation documenting the timeline of the Camp Fire,
aftermath, and recovery process. He also provided information on how to obtain copies of the book at
www.paradisebooks.org.

The Board thanked Mr. Keister for his presentation and commended him on his well-documented book.
To accommodate guests in the audience. the Board concurred to hear in order the following:
Old Business 8.1

New Business 9.1

PRPD Board of Directors November 13, 2019
Regular Meeting Minutes



QU465h0

Reports 5.2.
Chairperson Bellefeuille directed the Board’s attention to Old Business 8.1.

8. OLD BUSINESS:
9.1 CSDA Agreement for Accounting and Financial Services
Staff is seeking Board approval of this agreement to assist in developing a Financial
Investment Policy for Board consideration and to engage the services of CSDA to complete
an overview of our financial policies and procedures. Staff recommends the Board of
Directors approve the agreement as presented and authonze the District Manager to sign
the agreement on behalf of the District.
District Manager Efseaft summarized the written staff report presented to the Board. He stated staff was
following the direction given by the Board on June 12, 2019 to develop a Financial Investment Policy.
Further, District Manager Efseatt stated working with CSDA in the development of this policy may allow
the District flexibility with fund management and identify our investment objectives. It would also benefit
the District to utilize the services of CSDA to complete and overview of our financial policies and
procedures.

The Board welcomed Rick Wood, CSDA Finance and Administration Director, to the floor and have open
dialog concerning the term of the agreement and the number of hours expected to comiplete the assigned
tasks.

Seeing no further dialog from the Board, Chairperson Bellefeuille asked if there was any public comment
on this agenda item.

Seecing and hearing none, Chairperson Belleteuille stated she would entertain a motion.

MOTION:

Director Van Roekel moved that the PRPD Board of Directors (1) approve the agreement setting the term
beginning November 13, 2019 to November 30, 2020; and (2) correct the typographical error on page 2,
paragraph 2, of the document to read “therefore.”

Vice Chairperson McGreehan requested to amend the motion to include that staff and CSDA provide
progress reports to the Board every two months and include the Finance Committee in policy review.

The Board concurred with the amended motion and the motion was seconded by Director Rodowick and
carried unanimously with 5 ayes.

AYES: Bellefeuille, McGreehan, Anderson, Van Roekel. and Rodowick
NOES: None

ABSTENTIONS: None

ABSENT: None

Chairperson Bellefeuille requested a short recess at 6:51 p.m.

(e8]

PRPD Board of Directors November 13, 2019
Regular Meeting Minutes

16



GU465 7

The public meeting reconvened at 6:55 p.m. and Chairperson Bellefeuille directed the Board’s attention
to New Business 9.1.

9. NEW BUSINESS:

9.1 Cooperative Asreement with The Nature Conservancy [TNC]
Staff has been working with The Nature Conservancy on a new project, Disaster Resilience
in California. TNC has devoted funding to support the project and has hired a consultant
(Conservation Biology Institute) to evaluate the scientific basis for nature-based fire risk
reduction. The project fits in with District goals to develop a study to examine the strategic
development of parks and trails within the District. Upon concurrence with legal counsel,

. staff recommends the approval of the cooperative agreement and workplan with The Nature

Conservancy.

Referencing the written staff report presented to the Board, District Manager Efseaft stated that on the

May 9, 2019 Board meeting. the Board adopted several post Camp Fire opportunities to pursue. One of

them was to develop a feasibility study and compliance for the strategic development of parks and trails

and appropriate land management within the District, including the Sunrise and Sunset Rim Community

Buffers, Watershed (creeks) Greenways in Paradise. the Concow region. Butte Creek Canyon, and the

Paradise Lake area. The project also supports the exploration of potential park acquisition projects

identified at the meeting as well.

The Board recognized and concurred to receive an amended copy of the agreement with minor changes
received after the agenda was published.

The Board had open dialog with TNC representative Ryan Luster concerning the conflicting timelines for
various tasks and the desire to include a Board member on the proposed advisory committee.

Seeing no further dialog from the Board, Chairperson Bellefeuille asked if there was any public comment
on this agenda item.

Seeing and hearing none, Chairperson Bellefeuille stated she would entertain a motion.

MOTION:

Vice Chairperson McGreehan moved that the PRPD Board of Directors (1) approve the agreement
effective November 13, 2019; (2) add a PRPD Board member to the Advisory Committee; and (3)
authorize the District Manager to sign the agreement on behalf of the District. The motion was seconded
by Director Rodowick and carried unanimously with 5 ayes.

AYES: Bellefeuille, McGreehan, Anderson. Van Roekel, and Rodowick
NOES: None

ABSTENTIONS: None

ABSENT: None

Chairperson Bellefeuille directed the Board’s attention to Reports 5.2.

' PRPD Board of Directors November 13, 2019
Regular Meeting Minutes



~v AR
Gidbouo 18

5. REPORTS

5.2 Ice Rink Report and PRPD Anniversary Celebration

Assistant District Manager Kristi Sweeney summarized the written report presented to the Board stating,
to date, the District has received $43.393.82 in sponsorships {or the ice rink.

Debbie Moseley of the Paradise Chocolate Fest presented information on the coordinated effort between
the District and the Paradise Chocolate Fest organization to host a fund-raising event to celebrate the
District’s 71% year. “Let’s Meet at the Lodge” will to be held at the Terry Ashe Recreation Center on
December 1, 2019 from 7:00 to 9:00 p.m.

Chairperson Bellefeuille directed the Board's attention to Public Comment.

2. PUBLIC COMMENT:

The Board recognized Chris Rauen with Park on the Green. Mr. Rauen provided a brief update
concerning the efforts to develop a park at the previous Paradise Pines Golf Course in Magalia. He
stated the organization is seeking to secure a one-year lease at the prior golf pro shop to create a
community center for Magalia residents.

The Board thanked Mr. Rauen for this report.

Seeing no additional public comments, Chairperson Bellefeuilie directed the Board to the Consent
Agenda and asked if the Board desired to have any items removed and heard separately. Seeing and
hearing none, Chairperson Bellefeuille stated she would entertain a motion.

3. CONSENT AGENDA
3.1 Board Minutes:
a. Regular Meeting of October 9,2019

3.2 Correspondence: None

33 Payment of Bills/Disbursements (Warrants and Checks Report) — Payroll Checks and
Payables Checks #050131 to and including #050223 in the total amount of $96,709.01
including reported refunds and void checks.

34 Information Items (Acceptance Only):
a. 2020-2021 Budget Calendar
b. Draft Safety Committee Meeting Minutes for October 18, 2019

MOTION:
Director Rodowick moved that the PRPD Board of Directors approve the Consent Agenda as presented.
The motion was seconded by Director Van Roekel and carried unanimously with 5 ayes.

AYES: Bellefeuille, McGreehan, Anderson, Van Roekel and Rodowick
NOES: None
ABSTENTIONS: None

PRPD Board c¢f Directors November 13, 2019
Regular Meeting Minutes



"l_) it'n)gl

4. COMMITTEE REPORTS: None

5. REPORTS

5.1 District Report

District Manager Efseaff introduced Assistant District Manager Kristi Sweeney. Ms. Sweeney provided
a brief background of her experience. The Board welcomed Ms. Sweeney to the District.

District Manager Efseaff briefly summarized the District Report:

e Voter Registration Numbers - Review of the current voter registration numbers for Butte County
indicate a reduction of over 9.000 registered voters as ot October 2019.

e Tree Removal Update — The District will be enrolling in the CalOES/FEMA program on District
properties that may be eligible.

e Review of current programming — The Board commended staff on their effort to offer
programming to the Paradise community. :

e Grant Opportunities — Staff summarized grant applications submitted for trails and playground
equipment.

e Community Village Update — The Community Housing Improvement Program [CHIP] are
navigating their efforts to rebuild the facility.

e Butte County Hazardous Mitigation Plan — The County received a letter from FEMA noting
approval of the pending plan adoption. As a next step, each participating jurisdiction will need to
have their governing Board adopt by resolution the annex. The plan provides an opportunity for
agencies to receive funding for hazard mitigation projects.

e PID Agreement — The District Manager and District legal counsel met with PID staff to discuss
the lake agreement with plans to being it to the PID and PRPD Boards. In addition, staff will
participate in an upcoming Paradisc Lake & Recreation Committce scheduled for Monday,
November 18,2019 at 3:00 p.m. at the PID Board room.

e Board Directors — Staff requested District legal counsel research the requirements for residency.
Mr. Carter indicated that if the director is rebuilding or in intending to rebuild their home in the
District, they can continue to remain as a voter within the District, and thus continue to serve as a
director on the PRPD Board. The intent need not be 100 percent certain and can be subject to
change. Directors should make sure that their current mailing address is on file with the Butte
County Elections Office.

5.3 LAFCO Update (Oral Report from Al McGreechan)

e Vice Chairperson McGreehan summarized the recent meeting he attended on November 7" as a
member of the LAFCO Board. Further. Vice Chairperson McGreehan requested that staff send a
letter of appreciation to Mr. Lucas of LAFCO for their assistance in providing information to the
District concerning development impact fees.

54 CARPD Update (Oral Report from Al MeGreehan)
e Vice Chairperson McGreehan summarized the recent meeting he attended this month as a member

of the Board, stating CARPD generously donated $1,500.00 as a co-sponsor of the Paradise Ice
Rink for the 2019-2020 season.

FRPD Becard of Directors November 13, 2019

ot
Regular Meeting Minutes

9



GO46G0

6. CLOSED SESSION

6.1 Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54957 — Public Employee, Assistant
District Manager.

The Board concurred to hear this item at the end of the public meeting.

9. NEW BUSINESS:

9.2 Paradise Ridge Fire Safe Council Request for Free Facility Usage at Terry Ashe Recreation
Center
Seeking approval to provide free monthly meeting space at the Terry Ashe Recreation
Center. Staff recommends approval of the request for a period of one year to November
2020. :

Staff acknowledged an error on the staff report correcting the organizational name from Butte County Fire

Safe Council to Paradise Ridge Fire Safe Council. The Board concurred to receive the correction as

reported.

The Board had open discussion concerning this request and recommended the Paradise Recreation and
Park District be recognized as a co-sponsor of the Council.

Seeing no further dialog from the Board, Chairperson Bellefeuille asked if there was any public comment
on this agenda item.

Seeing and hearing none, Chairperson Bellefeuille stated she would entertain a motion.

MOTION:

Vice Chairperson McGreehan moved that the PRPD Board of Directors approve the request for free usage
of the Terry Ashe Recreation Center to November 2020 as presented. The motion was seconded by
Dirvector Rodowick and carried unanimously with 5 ayes.

AYES: Bellefeuille, McGreehan. Anderson. Van Roekel and Rodowick
NOES: None
ABSTENTIONS: None

9.3 Butte County Special Districts Association [BCSDA] Request for Nominations
The Butte County Special Districts Association is seeking nominations for individuals to
serve on the Executive Board. Nominations are due no later than Friday, November 22,
2019. Staff rccommends the nomination of Dan Efseaff as a candidate to serve as a non-
enterprise member for a term of January 2020 to December 2021 and authorize the Board
Chairperson to sign the Request for Nomination Form on behalf of the District.

The Board concurred with staft’s recommendation and seeing no further dialog from the Board,

Chairperson Bellefeuille asked if there was any public comment on this agenda item.

Seeing and hearing none, Chairperson Bellefeuille stated she would entertain a motion.

PRPD Board of Directors November 13, 2019
Regular Meeting Minutes

20



MOTION:

Director Rodowick moved that the PRPD Board of Directors nominate Dan Efseaft as a candidate to serve
as a non-enterprise member on the BCSDA Executive Board for a term of January 2020 to December
2021 as presented and authorize the Board Chairperson to sign the Request for Nomination Form on behalf
of the District. The motion was seconded by Chairperson Bellefeuille and carried unanimously with §
ayes.

AYES: Bellefeuille, McGrechan, Anderson. Van Roekel and Rodowick
NOES: None
ABSTENTIONS: None

94 Resolution 19-11-1-471 — Authorize Signatories for the County of Butte
To meet the District’s operating and other expense obligations, staff is recommending the
Board approve the resolution to update the District’s authorized signers for District accounts
established with the County of Butte. Staff recommends the Board of Directors approve and
adopt this resolution as presented.
Referencing the written report presented to the Board, staff stated due to a change in the Butte County
Auditor-Controller, all authorized and deputized signers for Butte County must be reauthorized. This
authorization will also include the Assistant District Manager, Kristi Sweeney.

The Board concurred with staff’s recommendation and seeing no further dialog from the Board,
Chairperson Bellefeuille asked if there was any public comment on this agenda item.

Seeing and hearing none, Chairperson Bellefeuille stated she would entertain a motion.

MOTION:

Director Van Roekel moved that the PRPD Board of Directors approve and adopt Resolution 19-11-1-471
authorizing signers for District accounts established with the County of Butie as presented. The motion
was seconded by Secretary Anderson and carried unanimously with 5 ayes.

ROLL CALL VOTE:
Chairperson Belleteuille, aye; Vice Chairperson McGreehan, aye; Secretary Anderson, aye; Director
Van Roekel, aye; and Director Rodowick. aye.

The Board concurred to a short recess as 8:25 p.m.

The Board reconvened the public meeting at 8:35 p.m. and Chairperson Bellefeuille immediately directed
the Board to Closed Session.

6. CLOSED SESSION
6.1 Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54957 — Public Employee, Assistant
District Manager.

PRPD Becard of Directors November 13, 2019
Regular Meeting Minutes



Ny "' LI ()
Guabbe

7. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION.

Chairperson Bellefeuille reconvened the public meeting at 8:47 p.m. and reported the Board was informed
and discussed the matter and no action was taken.

10. BOARD COMMENT:
Al McGreehan commented the Board received the invitation to attend events hosted by Honey Run
Covered Bridge Association and the Centerville Recreation and Historical Association.

Al McGreehan commented he attended the Hope Plaza ground-breaking ceremony and provided a short
report.

Steve Rodowick commented he is working with the Town of Paradise for a dog memorial potentially
using the Community Park as a location.

11. ADJOURNMENT:

Seeing no further business, the regular meeting of the Paradise Recreation and Park District Board of
Directors was adjourned at 8:55 p.m. by Chairperson Bellefeuille until the regular Board meeting
scheduled on December 11, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. in Conference Room B, at the Terry Ashe Recreation
Center, (6626 Skyway, Paradise, California).

Mary Bellefeuille. Chairperson Robert Anderson. Secretary

PRPD Board of Directcors November 13, 2019
Regular Meeting Minutes

22



PARADISE RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT
COUNTY MONTHLY CHECK REGISTER

CHECK

FkKkkkk

050224-

050242

*kkkKhk

050272-

050325

FkKkkkk

050243
050244
050245
050246
050247
050248
050249
050250
050251
050252
050253
050254
050255
050256
050257
050258
050259
050260
050261
050262
050263
050264
050265
050266
050267
050268
050269
050270
050271
050326
050327
050328
050329
050330
050331
050332
050333
050334
050335
050336
050337
050338
050339
050340
050341
050342
050343
050344
050345
050346
050347

ISSUE
DATE

11/6/2019

11/20/2019

11/8/2019
11/8/2019
11/8/2019
11/8/2019
11/8/2019
11/6/2019
11/8/2019
11/8/2019
11/8/2019
11/8/2019
11/8/2019
11/8/2019
11/8/2019
11/8/2019
11/8/2019
11/8/2019
11/8/2019
11/8/2019
11/8/2019
11/8/2019
11/8/2019
11/8/2019
11/8/2019
11/8/2019
11/8/2019
11/8/2019
10/25/2019
11/15/2019
11/15/2019
11/27/2019
11/27/2019
11/27/2019
11/27/2019
11/22/2019
11/22/2019
11/22/2019
11/22/2019
11/22/2019
11/22/2019
11/22/2019
11/22/2019
11/22/2019
11/22/2019
11/22/2019
11/22/2019
11/22/2019
11/22/2019
11/22/2019
11/22/2019
11/22/2019
11/22/2019

VOID

Void

PAYEE

Payroll Summary

Payroll Summary

ACH STATE PR TAX

ACH FED PR TAX

ACH CALPERS

ACH CALPERS

ACH CALPERS

LORRENIS LEEDS

VISION SERVICE PLAN

VOYA INSTITUTIONAL TRUST CO
ALL METALS SUPPLY

CED CHICO

PGE

ACME TOILET RENTALS

KEN'S PARADISE HITCH & WELD
OFFICE DEPOT

EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT DEP
MAGIC ICE USA INC

AT&T

RENTAL GUYS CHICO

VERIZON WIRELESS

CONNEY SAFETY PRODUCTS
BCSDA

NORTH STATE GROCERY INC
NORMAC INC

MOBILE MEDIA VENTURES INC
MEEK'S LUMBER & HARDWARE
ARCO GASPRO PLUS

CITIBANK

ACH CALPERS

ACH CALPERS

ACH STATE PR TAX

ACH FED PR TAX

ACH CALPERS

ACH CALPERS

VOYA INSTITUTIONAL TRUST CO
PREMIER ACCESS INSURANCE
PRINCIPAL LIFE INSURANCE
THOMAS ACE HARDWARE
RIEBES AUTO PARTS

FGL ENVIRONMENTAL
ESPLANADE OFFICE

JOHNY'S CHICO LOCK & SAFE
NORTHSTATE AGGREGATE, INC
LEEDS, LORRENNIS

ALHAMBRA

VERIZON WIRELESS
CARDMEMBER SERVICE
KELLER SUPPLY COMPANY
P.G.&E.

TIAA COMMERCIAL FINANCE, INC
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TAX
MAGOON SIGNS

SALARY AND| SERVICE
BENEFITS SUPPLIES

18,281.56 0.00
28,392.28 0.00

652.22
5,048.24
1,691.24
2,884.95
7,084.64

1,900.00
121.59
275.00

244.84

297.00

2,284.67

453.89

0.00

457.32

429.97

75,600.00

369.90

972.04

125.05

221.64

25.00

137.78

284.00

495.00

210.01

67.68

411.00
2,849.69
200.00
827.52
7,032.52
1,691.24
2,781.42
275.00
1,118.95
112.35

3,617.26

139.20

1,572.00

1,893.16

739.02

1,063.10

19.29

82.43

339.32

7,382.90

425.76

6,778.16

204.29

311.46

150.15

Fund 2510
NOVEMBER

FIXED
ASSETS

0.00

0.00

NET CHECK |NOTES

18,281.56

28,392.28

652.22
5,048.24
1,691.24
2,884.95
7,084.64
1,900.00f A
121.59
275.00
244.84
297.00
2,284.67
453.89
0.00
457.32
429.97
75,600.00 B
369.90
972.04
125.05
221.64
25.00
137.78
284.00
495.00
210.01
67.68
411.00
2,849.69
200.00
827.52
7,032.52
1,691.24
2,781.42
275.00
1,118.95
112.35
3,617.26
139.20
1,572.00
1,893.16
739.02
1,063.10
19.29, c
82.43
339.32
7,382.90
425.76
6,778.16
204.29
311.46
150.15

23



050348 11/22/2019 STREAMLINE
050349 11/22/2019 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS
050350 11/22/2019 NORTHERN RECYCLING & WASTE
050351 11/22/2019 ACME TOILET RENTALS, LLC
050352 11/22/2019 AT&T
050353 11/22/2019 PAYLESS BUILDING SUPPLY
050354 11/22/2019 NORTH STATE SCREENPRINTING
050355 11/22/2019 DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
050356 11/22/2019 CHICO RENT-A-FENCE
050357 11/22/2019 SAAKE'S REAL PROPERTY SERVICES
050358 11/22/2019 CARTER LAW OFFICES
050359 11/22/2019 OFFICE DEPOT
050360 11/22/2019 BUTTE COUNTY PUBLIC HEALTH
050361 11/22/2019 COMPUTERS PLUS
Kkkkkkk
TOTALS

GRAND TOTALS
Notes:

A) Start-up money for the ice rink cash register.

B) First payment for ice rink rental.

C) Reimbursement for supply purchase.

200.00
22.60
293.47
766.86
370.02
1,410.90
352.00
832.00
216.00
7,500.00
6,200.30
62.45
230.00
349.70

34,646.57 128,510.59

81,320.41 | 128,510.59

Z:\Finance\Reports\Month_End_Reports\2018-2019\[BOD.Disbursements 2019 Master Copy.xIsx]2019 (11)

200.00
22.60
293.47
766.86
370.02
1,410.90
352.00
832.00
216.00
7,500.00
6,200.30
62.45
230.00
349.70

0.00 163,157.16

0.00 209,831.00

24



!Aﬁl;i .SE Paradise Recreation & Park District

RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT

6626 Skyway Phone: 530-872-6393
Paradise, CA 95969 Fax: 530-872-8619
Email: info@ParadisePRPD.com Website: www.ParadisePRPD.com

SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING

Report/Minutes
DRAFT
DATE: November 21, 2019 at 8:30 a.m.
LOCATION: District Manager’s Office
ATTENDANCE: Dan Efseaff, District Manager

Kristi Sweeney, Assistant District Manager

Jeff Dailey, Recreation Supervisor

Mark Cobb, Park Supervisor

Colleen Campbell, Administrative Assistant [I/Management

ABSENT: None

1. MINUTES:
e By unanimous vote of the members present, the October 18, 2019 Safety Committee Minutes
were approved.

2. SAFETY AND HEALTH ISSUES DISCUSSED:

THE FOLLOWING SAFETY MEETINGS WERE HELD:

e Nov. 01,2019 Safe Driving Habits (Maint. Staff Mtg)
by Mark Cobb, Park Supervisor

e Nov. 08,2019 Staying Safety Minded (Maint Staff Mtg)
by Mark Cobb, Park Supervisor

e Nov. 14,2019 Preventing Falls in an Office Setting (Staff Mtg)
by Colleen Campbell, Admin Asst. [I/Management

e Nov. 21,2019 Wearing proper Personal Protection Equipment (Maint. Staff Mtg)
by Ray Lockridge, Park Maint. II

b. DOCUMENTED SITE INSPECTIONS, REPAIRS, AND OTHER
ACCOMPLISHMENTS RELATED TO SAFETY:

e Maintenance Requests: None
e Site Inspections completed since last meeting:
- Moore Road Ball Parks — Oct. 28, 2019
- Ice Rink Opening Inspection — Nov. 14, 2019

Page 1

25


mailto:info@ParadisePRPD.com
mailto:info@ParadisePRPD.com
http://www.paradiseprpd.com/
http://www.paradiseprpd.com/

Park Supervisor Cobb will provide documentation on corrective measures performed on the mats
noted during the ice rink inspection.

Recreation Supervisor Dailey will provide documentation on site inspections performed at the
Aquatic Pool.

District Manager Efseaff requested the following inspections be completed:
e Concow Pool

¢. ACCIDENT/INCIDENT REPORTS:
¢ The Committee recognized two minor slip/fall incident reports pertaining to the ice
rink since last meeting:

d. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION CLAIMS:

e The Committee reviewed the workers’ compensation claim reports for October
2019. It was noted there is one remaining open claim from 2011 and no new claims
since last meeting. District Manager Efseaff requested staff contact the workers’
compensation carrier to inquire about the status of this open claim.

3. MISCELLANEOUS:

a. REVIEW AND DISCUSS ADA COMPLIANCE (Mark/Kristi)
Staff is working with Disability Access Consultants, LLC, a consultant through CAPRI, to
complete an ADA Assessment of the District’s policies and procedures. Assistant District
Manager Sweeney will take the lead as the ADA Administrator to complete this process.

b. TREE REMOVAL ROE PROGRAM
Staff has completed ROE forms for hazardous tree removal at District facilities. This
government sponsored hazard tree removal program is offered through the Town of Paradise and
County of Butte.

Next Safety Meeting Date: December 19, 2019

Colleen Campbell, Safety Committee Secretary Date:
cc: CAPRI
PRPD Board 12/11/19 — Draft Copy

O:\Admin\Meetings\2019\SAFETY\2019 1018\Safety.Minutes. DRAFT 2019 1018.docx

Safety Committee Meeting Minutes Page 2

26



27

Staff Committee Report December 4, 2019
DATE: 12/5/2019
) _/.-::\ TO: PRPD Board of Directors
!?C&E:&R !g'E FROM: Dan Efseaff, District Manager
SUBJECT: Recreation and Park Committee (Anderson/Rodowick)

December 4, 2019 at 4:00 p.m.
Terry Ashe Recreation Center, District Manager’s Office

Attendance: Committee Members: Robert Anderson, Member; and Steve Rodowick, Chairperson
PRPD Staff: Dan Efseaff, District Manager; and Kristi Sweeney, Assistant District Manager

The Committee meeting convened at 4:15 p.m.
1. The Committee will meet to review and discuss the Paradise Irrigation District Paradise Lake draft agreement.

The Committee reviewed and discussed the Paradise Irrigation District Paradise Lake draft agreement. The
Committee requested an edit in Letter A, Page 1 of the agreement, which reads that PRPD is the owner of the lake
and should be amended to read PID. Committee members inquired about Appendix B, referenced in the agreement
but was not included in the current draft of the agreement. Staff confirmed that legal staff will include the missing
appendices after the initial main body of the agreement terms have been reviewed by PID legal staff.

Recommendation: Upon concurrence with legal staff and pending edits suggested, the Committee recommends the
Board of Directors adopt the agreement at the January 2020 Board of Directors Meeting.

2. The Committee will meet to review and discuss the proposed playground expansion at Bille Park with
KaBoom!

The Committee reviewed and discussed the proposed Cooperative Agreement with KaBOOM!. After drafting the
Recreation and Park Committee meeting agenda, staff proposed replacement of existing playground at Aquatic Park
rather than expansion of Bille Park playground. The 2016 Master Plan documented a need to replace Aquatic Park
playground equipment in 2021 or thereafter, and with the school next to Aquatic Park now hosting an elementary
school, the KaBOOM! project seemed better aligned with the District plan and community needs.

Recommendation: Upon concurrence with legal staff, Recreation and Parks Committee recommends approval of the
cooperative agreement with KaBOOM!.

Committee Chairperson Rodowick called the meeting into Closed Session at 4:45 p.m.
3. CLOSED SESSION:
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8 — Potential interest in real estate negotiations related to park
expansion within District boundaries of Magalia and Paradise.
The public meeting was reconvened at 5:34 p.m.
4. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION
The Committee reported they found the discussion informative and will make recommendations to the full BOD in Closed
Session on potential interest in real estate negotiations related to park expansion within District boundaries of Magalia
and Paradise in January 2020.

The meeting was adjourned at 5:35 p.m.

0O:\BOD\BOD_Committees\Recreation and Park\2019\2019_1204\Committee Report.19.1205.docx
12/5/2019

PRPD Staff Report Page 1 of 1 December 2019




28



29

District Report Meeting Date: December 11, 2019
DATE: 12/5/2019
M TO: PRPD Board of Directors (BOD)

‘ f FROM: Dan Efseaff, District Manager

PARADISE

RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT SUBJECT: Monthly District Report

Monthly Report

1. Updates

a. PID agreement — Staff participated in a PID Paradise Lake & Recreation Committee meeting (M, 11/18/19). The
PID committee provided details on the process of transferring the USFS recreational use permit to PRPD from
PID. A meeting is scheduled with a USFS representative and staff on December 10 to discuss the PRPD use
intentions at Paradise Lake and preliminary drafting of the permit application to initiate the transfer in management
from PID to PRPD.

2. Administrative and Visitor Services

a. AT&T — We successfully completed AT&T service activation on December 3™ and now have reliable phone service
at the Recreation Center.

3. Finance

a. Routine Reports — Balance Sheet (Attachment A), Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual (Attachment B), and Recovery
Project (Attachment C).

b. Impact Fees — For the month of November, the District received a total of $12,501.30 in impact fees. Since 11/8/18,
the District has received a total of $126,919.48.
c. 5 Star Bank — The interest for the Money Market accounts was not posted at the time this report was completed.

d. CSDA Rick Wood — District accountant met with Rick Wood from CSDA. Together they were able to create a draft
of the new Finance Policy, which will be presented to the finance committee at an upcoming meeting.

e. PG&E Black Outs — The PG&E power outages in October and early November created a back log of work, however,
now that the threat of outages is over the amount of back logged work is decreasing.

4. Parks (Maintenance and Operations)

a. Snow Storm - The snow storm that came through on Tuesday November 26th did considerable tree damage at our
Parks. Mostly at Aquatic Park, crews worked late that Wednesday 26th to make sure all hazards were cleared. We
worked all the following week to clean up the debris left behind from the storm. Going from spring like weather
straight into snow gave no chance for Deciduous trees to shed their leaves leaving plenty of surface for the snow
to accumulate on and weighing down the limbs causing them to break off.

5. Programs

a. Elk’s Hoop Shoot - The annual Elk’s Hoop Shoot free throw shooting contest will be held on Saturday, December
7 at the Pine Ridge Gym in Magalia. This national event is a free for children between the ages of 8 and 13 years.
The winners of each age group will go on to the regional finals in Redding in late January. The event is put on
cooperatively by PRPD and the Paradise Elks Club.

b. Fish and Game Commission Grant - In November, we reapplied for a grant for the purpose of purchasing fish for
the annual Children’s Fishing Derby in the spring of 2021. The grant is through the Butte County Fish and Game
Commission and is funded through monies collected from poaching fines. We will be presenting the grant at the
Fish and Game Commission Meeting on the night of January 6.

c. Junior Wrestling - PRPD is proud to be offering the Junior Wrestling program again for children in 4t through 8t
grade. Shannon Magpusao is returning as the head coach. The program begins on December 9" and practices

PRPD District Report Page 1 of 3 December 2019




30

will take place at the PHS Wrestling Room. The program will continue through February and the team will travel to
several Saturday tournaments.

d. Current Classes - Additional classes being offered at this time include Tiny Tots, Holiday Treats, Little Hoopsters,
Tae Kwon Do, Tai Chi, youth and adult drop in basketball and Ballroom Dance. We are excited to be starting up
some Zumba classes very soon.

6. Outreach and Development

a. Explore Butte County Project - | participated in connecting with a researcher (Professor Patrick Tierney from San
Francisco State University) regarding the research project commissioned by the Sierra Nevada Conservancy to
understand the impacts of wildfire on tourism in the Sierra Nevada.

b. Tree Lighting Ceremony — The ceremony .

7. Project Development

a. USTA Grant - Staff submitted a grant to the US Tennis Association Grant Program for a scholarship fund ($240)
and equipment fund ($500) for children ages 5-18. If awarded the grant PRPD would receive money to be used
for up to 24 children to participate in tennis programs offered by PRPD.

b. FEMA/CalOES Pre Disaster Mitigation Grant — Staff submitted a grant proposal to CalOES requesting $4M in pre
disaster mitigation funding from FEMA. Pre-Disaster Mitigation funding seeks to reduce the Federal Government’s
financial burden when responding to emergency declarations by mitigating disasters through preventative
measures to the fullest extent possible. Though PRPD was invited to participate in this second proposal review,
the grant opportunity is extremely competitive. CalOES will select up to 9 proposals at this level of funding to
present to FEMA for the final round of funding review. If the proposal is selected for funding, PRPD could expect
to receive funding in January 2021. The proposal submitted has two project components, both aligned with
mitigating wildfire risk on the ridge: (1) Lakeridge request was for land acquisition, trails development, vegetation
management, reforestation, and site preparation for the fields and infrastructure for the community center, (2)
Sunrise Rim request was for land acquisition, vegetation management, reforestation, and trails development. The
multi-use trails included in both projects of the proposal allow for the dual benefit of recreation resources, as well
as access to strategically important vegetation management in fire-prone regions. The projects also provide legal
access for the public and emergency vehicles, protects drinking water quality, and will offer opportunities to model
best practices and inform the public of fire mitigation techniques.

8. Upcoming

a. BOD agenda items - Upcoming for future BOD meetings include the Strategic Plan and agreement with the Paradise
Irrigation District.

PRPD District Report Page 2 of 3 December 2019




31

Photographs

h AR “ ! - ¢ ;“
22 e
Snowy ice rink — November 27, 2019

Al McGreehan Recognition
Sponsor Party - November 16, 2019

Figure 1. Storm damage at Aquatic Park. Figure 2. Additional Storm Damage.

Attachments:
A. Balance Sheet — November 2019
B. Profit & Loss — November 2019
C. Recovery Project — November 2019

0O:\BOD\BOD_Meetings\2019\19.1211\2019.1211.BOD.District.Report.docx
12/5/2019

PRPD District Report Page 3 of 3

December 2019




32



4:08 PM
11/27/19
Accrual Basis

ASSETS

Current Assets

PRPD

Balance Sheet
As of November 30, 2019

Checking/Savings

1000 - Mechanics Bank - Operating
1005 - Petty Cash
1010 - Treasury Cash - 2510

1011 - General Operating

1012 - ACO Reserve

1013 - General Reserve

1014 - Deposits held for others

Total 1010 - Treasury Cash - 2510

1030 - Investments

1031 - Five Star Bank Money Market
1032 - Five Star Bank Grant M. M.

Total 1030 - Investments

1100 - Designated Treasury Funds

1111 - Aquatic Unicorp-2511

1112 - Grosso Endowment-2512
1113 - Grosso Scholarship-2513
1114 - Designated Donations-2514

1114-1 - Bille Park Donations

1114-10 - Swim Scholarship Fund
1114-11 - Dog Park Donations

1114-12 - Coutolenc Camp Fund
1114-13 - Ice Rink Donations

1114-14 - General Donations

1114-2 - Bike Park Fund

1114-3 - Lakeridge Park Donations
1114-4 - Wrestling Mat fund

1114-5 - Pam Young Fund

1114-6 - Easter Egg Scholarships
1114-7 - Child-Youth Scholarships
1114-8 - McGreehan Children's Schishp
1114-9 - Skate Park Fund

1114 - Designated Donations-2514 - Other

Total 1114 - Designated Donations-2514

Total 1100 - Designated Treasury Funds

1119 - Impact Fees

1120 - Sub Div Fees - 2520

1121 - Park Acqui Unincorp - 2521
1122 - Park Dev Unincorp - 2522
1124 - District Fac Unincorp - 2524
1126 - Park Acqui Incorp - 2526
1127 - Park Dev Incorp - 2527
1128 - District Fac Incorp - 2528

Nov 30, 19

93,975.77
300.00

-704,471.83
702,200.00
2,000.00
1,000.00
728.17

1,172,311.52
63,555.41
1,235,866.93

49.41
53,632.13
3,428.28

125.00
997.82
2,874.61
1,452.89
6,191.83
1,186.00
1,500.00
3,050.00
773.60
1,000.00
4,698.80
10.00
1,056.00
3,044.36
429.28
28,390.19

85,500.01

7,964.18
46,429.33
76,875.07
39,884.03
88,909.69

267,186.74
48,203.06

Attachment A

Page 1 of 4

33



4:08 PM
11/27/19
Accrual Basis

Balance Sheet

As of November 30, 2019

Total 1119 - Impact Fees
Total Checking/Savings
Other Current Assets
1400 - Interest Receivable
1410 - Interest Receivable
1411 - Interest Receivable - 2511
1413 - Interest Receivable - 2513
1420 - Interest Receivable - 2520
1421 - Interest Receivable - 2521
1422 - Interest Receivable - 2522
1426 - Interest Receivable - 2526
1427 - Interest Recievable - 2527
1428 - Interest Receivable - 2528
Total 1400 - Interest Receivable
1424 - Interest Receivable - 2524
1500 - FMV Adjustments
1510 - FMV Adjustment-2510
1512 - FMV Adjustment-2512
1500 - FMV Adjustments - Other
Total 1500 - FMV Adjustments
Total Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets
Fixed Assets
1710 - Land
1715 - Land Development
1720 - Buildings
1730 - Furn., Fixtures & Equip (>$5k)
1798 - Accum Depr - Building
1799 - Accum Depr - Furniture/Fixtures
1800 - Construction in Progress
1801 - CIP-Lakeridge Park Development
1802 - CIP-Crain Park Development
1803 - CIP-Crain Park Playground
1804 - CIP-Crain Park Bathroom
Total 1800 - Construction in Progress
Total Fixed Assets
Other Assets
1900 - PCV Promissory Note
1950 - Deferred Outflow - Pension

Total Other Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Nov 30, 19

575,452.10
1,991,822.98

1,361.18
0.19
217.91
30.81
157.18
232.59
243.68
743.90
119.64
3,107.08
139.34

-13,124.68
-926.25
-4,880.93
-18,931.86
-15,685.44
1,976,137.54

750,088.53
4,990.00
5,534,233.05
547,069.69
-256,655.28
-4,131,705.06

82,463.57
140,593.02
61,485.86
78,051.59
362,594.04
2,810,614.97

300,322.00
237,865.00

538,187.00
5,324,939.51

Page 2 of 4



4:08 PM

11/27/19
Accrual Basis Bal ance Sheet
As of November 30, 2019
Nov 30, 19
2000 - Accounts Payable -7,824.02
Total Accounts Payable -7,824.02
Other Current Liabilities
2100 - Payroll Liabilities
2110 - Wages Payable 45,402.75
2120 - Payroll Taxes Payable 3,271.78
2130 - Health Benefits Payable -4,515.52
2140 - FSA payable -408.00
2170 - CalPers Payable 23,082.46
2190 - Accrued Leave Payable
2191 - Comp leave payable 2,121.36
2192 - Sick leave payable 15,306.09
2193 - Vacation leave payable 40,595.31
Total 2190 - Accrued Leave Payable 58,022.76
Total 2100 - Payroll Liabilities 124,856.23
2300 - Deposits - refundable 1,000.00
2400 - Deferred Revenue
2410 - Deferred Services Income 39,405.38
2420 - Deferred Facility Income 3,110.00
2430 - Deferred Inflow - Pension 32,038.00
Total 2400 - Deferred Revenue 74,553.38
Total Other Current Liabilities 200,409.61
Total Current Liabilities 192,585.59
Long Term Liabilities
2800 - Post Employment benefits 41,965.00
2805 - CalPers Pension Liability 315,491.17
Total Long Term Liabilities 357,456.17
Total Liabilities 550,041.76
Equity
2030 - Designated for Petty Cash 300.00
3000 - General Fund Balances-2510
3010 - General Fund Available 291,149.99
3030 - General Reserve 2,000.00
3050 - Designated Captial Outlay 702,200.00
Total 3000 - General Fund Balances-2510 995,349.99
3100 - Net of Capital Investments 3,145,295.97
3200 - Designated Fund Balances
3212 - Grosso Endowment-2512 53,022.07
3213 - Grosso Scholarship-2513 2,878.45
3214 - Donations - 2514 18,155.30
3220 - Impact Fees 440,380.71
Total 3200 - Designated Fund Balances 514,436.53
3280 - Invest. in General Fixed Assets -349,657.31
3900 - Retained Earnings 1,500,837.61
3901 - Net Profit -403,475.96

Page 30of 4



4:08 PM
11/27/19
Accrual Basis

Net Income

Total Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

PRPD

Balance Sheet

As of November 30, 2019
Nov 30, 19

-628,189.08

4,774,897.75

5,324,939.51

36

Page 4 of 4



4:02 PM
11/27/19
Accrual Basis

PRPD

Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual 19-20
July through November 2019

Attachment B 37

5330 -

Professional & Outside services

Jul - Nov 19 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
4100 - Tax Revenue 72,872.21  1,445,600.00 -1,372,727.79 5.04%
4200 - Impact Fee revenue 81,482.70 63,200.00 18,282.70 128.93%
4300 - Program Income 59,323.38 259,400.00 -200,076.62 22.87%
4350 - Concession & Merchandise sales 55.50 17,000.00 -16,944.50 0.33%
4400 - Donation & Fundraising Income 51,417.71 66,000.00 -14,582.29 77.91%
4401 - Scholarships Granted 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4500 - Grant Income 50,000.00 144,200.00 -94,200.00 34.67%
4600 - Other Revenue 5,818.97 4,000.00 1,818.97 145.47%
4900 - Interest Income 4,667.46 7,000.00 -2,332.54 66.68%
Total Income 325,637.93 2,006,400.00 -1,680,762.07 16.23%
Gross Profit 325,637.93  2,006,400.00 -1,680,762.07 16.23%
Expense
5000 - Payroll Expenses
5010 - Wages & Salaries 303,870.15  1,088,580.00 -784,709.85 27.91%
5020 - Employer Taxes 22,508.93 65,300.00 -42,791.07 34.47%
5030 - Employee Benefits 57,953.11 189,000.00 -131,046.89 30.66%
5040 - Workers Comp Expense 22,836.00 60,000.00 -37,164.00 38.06%
5050 - Accrued Leave 0.00 4,000.00 -4,000.00 0.0%
5060 - Other Personnel Costs 9,487.94 3,100.00 6,387.94 306.06%
Total 5000 - Payroll Expenses 416,656.13  1,409,980.00 -993,323.87 29.55%
5100 - Program Expenses
5110 - Concession & Merchandise Exp. 0.00 11,200.00 -11,200.00 0.0%
5130 - Program Supplies 10,560.67 27,650.00 -17,089.33 38.19%
Total 5100 - Program Expenses 10,560.67 38,850.00 -28,289.33 27.18%
5200 - Advertising & Promotion 1,089.55 16,500.00 -15,410.45 6.6%
5210 - Bad Debt 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5220 - Bank & Merchant Fees 1,433.08 4,700.00 -3,266.92 30.49%
5230 - Contributions to Others 1,252.75 15,100.00 -13,847.25 8.3%
5240 - Copying & Printing 38.66 1,000.00 -961.34 3.87%
5260 - Dues, Mbrshps, Subscr, & Pubs 3,610.08 11,600.00 -7,989.92 31.12%
5270 - Education, Training & Staff Dev 220.92 16,000.00 -15,779.08 1.38%
5280 - Equip., Tools & Furn (<$5k)
5282 - Office ET&F 6,744.79 18,600.00 -11,855.21 36.26%
5284 - Program ET&F 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%
5286 - Small Tools & Equipment 6,676.56 4,400.00 2,276.56 151.74%
5280 - Equip., Tools & Furn (<$5k) - Other 3,606.73
Total 5280 - Equip., Tools & Furn (<$5k) 17,028.08 28,000.00 -10,971.92 60.82%
5290 - Equipment Rental 88,254.88 110,000.00 -21,745.12 80.23%
5300 - Insurance 26,730.00 54,000.00 -27,270.00 49.5%
5310 - Interest Expense 37.27 0.00 37.27 100.0%
5320 - Miscellaneous Expense 21.99 2,200.00 -2,178.01 1.0%

Page 1 of 2



4:02 PM
11/27/19
Accrual Basis

PRPD
Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual 19-20

July through November 2019

5332 - Accounting

5334 - Legal

5336 - Engineering

5338 - Other Prof. & Outside Labor

5330 - Professional & Outside services - Other

Total 5330 - Professional & Outside services

5340 - Postage & Delivery
5350 - Rent-Facility use fees
5360 - Repair & Maintenance

5361 - Building R&M

5362 - Equipment R&M

5363 - General R&M

5364 - Grounds R&M

5365 - Pool R&M

5366 - Vehicle R&M

5367 - Janitorial

5368 - Security

5369 - Vandalism
Total 5360 - Repair & Maintenance
5370 - Supplies - Consumable

5372 - Office Supplies

5374 - Safety & staff supplies
Total 5370 - Supplies - Consumable
5380 - Taxes, Lic., Notices & Permits
5390 - Telephone & Internet
5400 - Transportation, Meals & Travel

5402 - Air, Lodging & Other Travel

5404 - Fuel

5406 - Meals

5408 - Mileage & Auto Allowance

Total 5400 - Transportation, Meals & Travel

5410 - Utilities
5412 - Electric & Gas
5414 - Water
5416 - Garbage
Total 5410 - Utilities
Total Expense
Net Ordinary Income
Other Income/Expense
Other Expense
9999 - Misc. Expense
Total Other Expense

Net Other Income

Jul - Nov 19 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget
17,000.00 10,000.00 7,000.00 170.0%
14,676.20 7,000.00 7,676.20 209.66%

0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%
29,005.25 93,000.00 -63,994.75 31.19%
2,880.39
63,561.84 115,000.00 -51,438.16 55.27%
17.76 2,500.00 -2,482.24 0.71%
2,753.75 15,200.00 -12,446.25 18.12%
12,111.33 26,000.00 -13,888.67 46.58%
100,125.73 17,000.00 83,125.73 588.98%
26,236.68 10,000.00 16,236.68 262.37%
38,811.41 43,000.00 -4,188.59 90.26%
7,909.94 20,000.00 -12,090.06 39.55%
76,711.44 10,000.00 66,711.44 767.11%
3,225.34 9,600.00 -6,374.66 33.6%
697.08 1,300.00 -602.92 53.62%
108.64 0.00 108.64 100.0%
265,937.59 136,900.00 129,037.59 194.26%
4,438.03 10,000.00 -5,561.97 44.38%
3,832.20 7,500.00 -3,667.80 51.1%
8,270.23 17,500.00 -9,229.77 47.26%
527.72 4,200.00 -3,672.28 12.57%
8,697.91 25,000.00 -16,302.09 34.79%
2,217.78 3,000.00 -782.22 73.93%
8,300.83 13,000.00 -4,699.17 63.85%
597.09 2,000.00 -1,402.91 29.86%
105.38 5,000.00 -4,894.62 2.11%
11,221.08 23,000.00 -11,778.92 48.79%
19,309.67 78,000.00 -58,690.33 24.76%
1,279.02 22,000.00 -20,720.98 5.81%
5,316.38 8,000.00 -2,683.62 66.46%
25,905.07 108,000.00 -82,094.93 23.99%
953,827.01 2,155,230.00 -1,201,402.99 44.26%
-628,189.08 -148,830.00 -479,359.08 422.09%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
-628,189.08 -148,830.00 -479,359.08 422.09%

Page 2 of 2

38



3:58 PM
11/27/19
Accrual Basis

PRPD

Profit & Loss by Job

November 2019

Expense

5000 - Payroll Expenses

5010 - Wages & Salaries

5020 - Employer Taxes

5030 - Employee Benefits

5060 - Other Personnel Costs
Total 5000 - Payroll Expenses
5100 - Program Expenses

5130 - Program Supplies
5280 - Equip., Tools & Furn (<$5k)

5282 - Office ET&F

5286 - Small Tools & Equipment
Total 5280 - Equip., Tools & Furn (<$5k)
5290 - Equipment Rental
5330 - Professional & Outside services

5338 - Other Prof. & Outside Labor

5330 - Professional & Outside services - Other
Total 5330 - Professional & Outside services
5360 - Repair & Maintenance

5361 - Building R&M

5362 - Equipment R&M

5363 - General R&M

5364 - Grounds R&M

5366 - Vehicle R&M

5367 - Janitorial
Total 5360 - Repair & Maintenance
5370 - Supplies - Consumable

5372 - Office Supplies

5374 - Safety & staff supplies
Total 5370 - Supplies - Consumable
5400 - Transportation, Meals & Travel

5404 - Fuel

5406 - Meals

5408 - Mileage & Auto Allowance
Total 5400 - Transportation, Meals & Travel
5410 - Utilities

5416 - Garbage
Total 5410 - Utilities

Total Expense

RP1 General

(Recovery Project)

Attachment C

Total Recovery Project

3,025.25 3,025.25
210.28 210.28
751.98 751.98

0.00 0.00
3,987.51 3,987.51
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00

1,522.93 1,522.93

1,522.93 1,522.93

1,042.39 1,042.39
131.81 131.81

1,519.00 1,519.00

1,650.81 1,650.81

22.47 22.47
0.00 0.00
2,026.30 2,026.30
1,319.13 1,319.13
14.00 14.00
0.00 0.00
3,381.90 3,381.90
0.00 0.00
185.43 185.43
185.43 185.43
726.29 726.29
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
726.29 726.29
293.47 293.47
293.47 293.47
12,790.73 12,790.73

Page 1 of 1

39



40



41

Staff Report December 11, 2019
DATE: 11/5/2019

/ i TO: Board of Directors
PARADIS FROM: Dan Efseaff, District Manager

ERCHEATION . B SR SUBJECT: Camp Fire Zone Project Proposal
Install Resource Library Boxes at District Facilities

Report in Brief
At the September 18, 2019 regularly scheduled Board meeting Julie Jenks from the Camp Fire Zone Project
presented the concept of installing Resource Library Boxes at District Facilities.

At Board direction, Ms. Jenks is presenting a written proposal detailing proposed locations and maintenance
schedules to install small informational kiosks at four of our facilities.

Recommendation: Approve the proposal as presented and direct staff to designate installation locations
at the Terry Ashe Recreation Center, Bille Park, Crain Park, and Aquatic Park

Attachments:
A. Camp Fire Zone Project proposal dated November 3, 2019

0O:\BOD\BOD_Meetings\2019\19.1113\2019_1113.BOD.Camp_Fire_Zone_Project_Resource_Library_Staff Report.docx
12/2/2019

PRPD Staff Report Page 1 of 1 December 2019




Camp Fire Zone Project

6400 Skyway

» Paradise, CA 95969

CAMP FIRE Email: campfirezoneproject@gmail.com

ZONE PROJECT www.campfirezoneproject.com

November 3, 2019
Subject: Proposal to Install Resource Library Boxes at PRPD Facilities

Dear PRPD Board Members,

Camp Fire Zone Project

The Camp Fire Zone Project is designed by citizens to help citizens. Zone groups have
formed around the Evacuation Zones within the Town of Paradise and Butte County; each
Zone has one or more Zone Captains volunteers. In their roles as Zone Captains, individuals
meet regularly to share rebuilding questions, resources, and needs specific to their
community. Zone Captains then report back to their community/council leaders with
updates and information or requests. From Paradise to Concow to Stirling City (and
everywhere in between) we are a group of organized individuals working together to unite
as one non-political voice, the system is unique by grouping a large number of people
together with a unified voice to achieve a common goal of rebuilding their
neighborhood/solving issues and being able to save a lot of time and money.

Need and Feasibility

We have identified a need to communicate with community members that do not access
the internet. We have also come up with a solution in the form of Little Library Boxes could
be constructed and installed at strategic locations around the community to provide the
public with updated, accurate information from a broad range of sources in consolidated
locations that doesn’t require access to technology.

Little Library Boxes have been installed in many communities to share books among
community members. A prototype Resource Library Box has been built and installed with
permission at the Theatre on the Ridge on Neal Road in Zone 10.

42


mailto:campfirezoneproject@gmail.com
mailto:campfirezoneproject@gmail.com
http://www.campfirezoneproject.com/
http://www.campfirezoneproject.com/

Camp Fire Zone Project

6400 Skyway

3 Paradise, CA 95969

CAMP FIRE Email: campfirezoneproject@gmail.com

ZONE PROJECT www.campfirezoneproject.com

Construction of Resource Library Boxes with Memorials at Base

Funding has been identified for materials to construct and stock additional Resource Library
Boxes in the community and the instructor of the Butte College Materials and Methods of
Construction Course has agreed to use their construction as curriculum for the course.

The Resource Library Boxes will be consfructed using materials and finishes to make them
weather resistant and minimize future maintenance. Plexiglass will be used to make the
window durable and safe.

The Camp Fire Zone Project is also looking to install semi-permanent Memorial Markers
throughout the community in memorial of those that lost their lives during the Camp Fire.
We propose that these Memorial Markers could be incorporated into the base of these
Resource Library Boxes.

Proposed Request

We would like to request that the completed Resource Library Boxes be installed at the
following PRPD facilities locations:

e Termry Ashe Recreation Center (Zone 4)
e Bille Park (Zone 1)

e Aquatic Park (Zone 5)

e Crain Memorial Park (Concow Zone)

We request that the site for installation of each Resource Library Box be chosen with their
use and access by community members in mind. Sites should be well lit, have access to
parking, and be ADA accessible.

Once the specific location for installation has been clearly communicated with us, Camp
Fire Zone Project volunteers can complete installation of each Resource Library Box.

Maintenance of PRPD-Installed Boxes
Camp Fire Zone Project will accept responsibility for maintaining the Resource Library Boxes.

Regular Maintenance: Resource Library Boxes will be inspected by the Camp Fire Zone
Project at least quarterly. Regular maintenance will be conducted at least every 2 years to
keep them weather resistant.

In the event of vandalism or damage to a Resource Library Box, the Camp Fire Zone Project
will arrange to either repair the Resource Library Box or remove it.

Contact

Questions should be directed to Resource Library Box Project Coordinator Julie Jenks (Zone
2 Captain) at jajenks2007 @gmail.com or (530) 636-0744.

Thank you for your consideration.

43


mailto:campfirezoneproject@gmail.com
http://www.campfirezoneproject.com/
mailto:jajenks2007@gmail.com
mailto:jajenks2007@gmail.com

44



45

Staff Report
DATE:

/ s o TO:
PARADISE FROM
RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT SUBJECT:

11/27/2019

Board of Directors

Catherine Merrifield, District Accountant

Resolution #19-12-1-472
Deputize Board of Directors with the County of Butte

December 11, 2019

1. REPORT IN BRIEF

Due to a miscommunication with the county, resolution #19-11-1-471 passed on November 13, 2019, did not deputize

the Board of Directors to sign checks and ACHs on behalf of the District.

Resolution #19-11-1-471 was necessary as

part of the overall signature updates required after the change in county auditors, to allow individual Board members
to co-sign the District check register with the District Manager each month. Staff have clarified with County officials
and prepared a new, separate resolution to deputize the Board of Directors to sign checks and ACHs on behalf of the

District.

2. RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the Board of Directors approve and adopt the Resolution #19-12-1-472 as presented.

Attachments:

a. Resolution #19-12-1-472

0O:\BOD\BOD_Meetings\2019\19.1211\County_Signatories_Staff Report.docx

12/2/2019

PRPD Staff Report

Page 1 of 1

December 2019




46

‘ — Paradise Recreation & Park District

RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT
6626 Skyway Phone: 530-872-6393
Paradise, CA 95969 Fax: 530-872-8619
Email: info@ParadisePRPD.com Website: www.ParadisePRPD.com

RESOLUTION #19-12-1-472

A RESOLUTION OF THE PARADISE RECREATION AND PARK
DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS AUTHORIZING CHECK SIGNING
AND ACH TRANSFER FOR FEDERAL PAYROLL TAX PAYMENT

WHEREAS, the Paradise Recreation and Park District must issue checks in payment of
the operating and other expenses of the organization in an expedient and timely manner; and

WHEREAS, Federal payroll taxes are due within 15 days after the end of the month; and

WHEREAS, beginning in January 2011, all federal payroll tax deposits are to be made
electronically through EFTPS and EDD; and

WHEREAS, the Paradise Recreation and Park District Board of Directors would like to
give Kristi Sweeney and/or Mary Bellefeuille and/or Al McGreehan and/or Robert Anderson
and/or Steve Rodowick and/or Julie Van Roekel the authorization to sign checks drawn on
Paradise Recreation and Park District Fund 2510 in the County Treasury, and the authorization to

sign a Butte County Auditor-Controller ACH Transfer Notification Form B.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Paradise
Recreation and Park District hereby delegates Kristi Sweeney and/or Mary Bellefeuille and/or Al
McGreehan and/or Robert Anderson and/or Steve Rodowick and/or Julie Van Roekel the authority
to sign all checks drawn on Paradise Recreation and Park District Fund 2510 and the authorization
to sign a Butte County Auditor-Controller ACH Transfer Notification Form B and deposit all
federal payroll taxes in a timely manner on behalf of the Paradise Recreation and Park District.

THIS RESOLUTION was passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Board of
Directors of the Paradise Recreation and Park District the 13" day of November 2019 by the

following vote:

Enhancing the Quality of Life Through People, Parks, and Recreation.


mailto:info@ParadisePRPD.com
mailto:info@ParadisePRPD.com
http://www.paradiseprpd.com/
http://www.paradiseprpd.com/

Resolution #19-12-1-472
Page -2-

AYES: NOES:

Mary Bellefeuille, Chairperson

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Robert Anderson, Secretary

47



48



49

Staff Report December 11, 2019

DATE: 11/25/2019

’ M B TO: Board of Directors

PARADIS FROM: Dan Efseaff, District Manager

FRRERTIONS BRIt SUBJECT: Butte County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan
Resolution #19-12-2-473

Report in Brief

The amendment to the General Plan’s Health and Safety Element is recommended that will incorporate the most
current Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP) as part of the Health and Safety Element of the General Plan. The
LHMP is consulted when addressing known hazards to ensure general health and safety of people within Butte
County. In 2019, Staff participated in a series of meetings to help craft the county plan and to develop an Annex to
address PRPD hazards. The plan was considered at the November Board of Supervisors meeting and the County,
each agency, CALOES and FEMA must approve the plan before it may go into effect. This action will also provide
consistency with AB 2140 ensuring eligibility for disaster relief funding.

Recommendation: Approve and adopt resolution as presented.

Attachments:
A. Resolution #19-12-2-473
B. FEMA correspondence dated October 31, 2019
C. Annex M

O:\BOD\BOD_Meetings\2019\19.1211\2019_1211.BOD.LHMP_Staff_Report.docx
12/5/2019

PRPD Staff Report Page 1 of 1 December 2019




I!Aﬁ SE Paradise Recreation & Park District

RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT

6626 Skyway Phone: 530-872-6393
Paradise, CA 95969 Fax: 530-872-8619
Email: info@ParadisePRPD.com Website: www.ParadisePRPD.com

RESOLUTION #19-12-2-473

A RESOLUTION OF THE PARADISE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ADOPTING THE
BUTTE COUNTY LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN

WHEREAS, the Paradise Recreation and Park District Board of Directors recognizes the threat
that natural hazards pose to people and property within our community; and

WHEREAS, undertaking hazard mitigation actions will reduce the potential for harm to people
and property from future hazard occurrences; and

WHEREAS, the U.S. Congress passed the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 (“Disaster Mitigation
Act”) emphasizing the need for pre-disaster mitigation of potential hazards; and

WHEREAS, the Disaster Mitigation Act made available hazard mitigation grants to state and local
governments; and

WHEREAS, an adopted Local Hazard Mitigation Plan is required as a condition of future funding
for mitigation projects under multiple FEMA pre- and post-disaster mitigation grant programs; and

WHEREAS, the Paradise Recreation and Park District Board of Directors fully participated in the
FEMA-prescribed mitigation planning process to prepare this local hazard mitigation plan; and

WHEREAS, the California Office of Emergency Services and Federal Emergency Management
Agency, Region IX officials have reviewed the Butte County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan and approve it
contingent upon this official adoption of the participating governing body [Exhibit A] ; and

WHEREAS, the Paradise Recreation and Park District Board of Directors desires to comply with
the requirements of the Disaster Mitigation Act and to augment its emergency planning efforts by formally
adopting the Butte County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan by reference into the Safety Element of the
General Plan in accordance with the requirements of AB 2140; and

WHEREAS, adoption by the governing body for the Paradise Recreation and Park District
demonstrates the jurisdiction’s commitment to fulfilling the mitigation goals and objectives outlined in this
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan; and

WHEREAS, adoption of this legitimizes the plan and authorizes responsible agencies to carry out
their responsibilities under the plan.

Enhancing the Quality of Life Through People, Parks, and Recreation.


mailto:info@ParadisePRPD.com
mailto:info@ParadisePRPD.com
http://www.paradiseprpd.com/
http://www.paradiseprpd.com/

51

Paradise Recreation and Park District
Board of Directors

Resolution #19-12-2-473

Page -2-

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Paradise Recreation
and Park District adopts the Butte County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan as an official plan; and

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Paradise Recreation and Park District
adopts the Butte County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan by reference into the safety element of their general

plan in accordance with the requirements of AB 2140; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board of Directors of the Paradise Recreation and Park
District will submit this adoption resolution to the California Office of Emergency Services and FEMA
Region IX officials to enable the plan’s final approval in accordance with the requirements of the Disaster

Mitigation Act of 2000 and to establish conformance with the requirement of AB 2140.

THIS RESOLUTION was passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of
the Paradise Recreation and Park District the 11" day of December 2019 by the following vote:

AYES: NOES: ABSTAIN: ABSENT:

Mary Bellefeuille, Chairperson Robert Anderson, Secretary



U.S. Department of Homeland Seccurity

1111 Broadway, Suite 1200
Qakland, CA. 94607-4052

October 31, 2019
Resolution #19-12-2-473
Cindi Dunsmoor Exhibit A
Emergency Services Officer
Butte County Office of Emergency Management
25 County Center Dr., Suite 213
Oroville, CA 95965

Dear Ms. Dunsmoor:

We have completed our review of the Butte County 2019 LHMP Update and have determined
that this plan is eligible for final approval pending its adoption by Butte County and all
participating jurisdictions. Please see the enclosed list of approvable pending adoption
jurisdictions.

Formal adoption documentation must be submitted to the FEMA Region IX office by the lead
jurisdiction within one calendar year of the date of this letter, or the entire plan must be updated
and resubmitted for review. We will approve the plan upon receipt of the documentation of
formal adoption.

If you have any questions regarding the planning or review processes, please contact the FEMA
Region IX Hazard Mitigation Planning Team at fema-r9-mitigation-planning@fema.dhs.gov.

Sincerely,

U0s

RV Juliette Hayes
D11ect01

Mitigation Division
FEMA, Region [X

cc: Jose Lara, Chief of Mitigation and Dam Safety Branch, California Governor’s Office of

Emergency Services
Jennifer Hogan, State Hazard Mitigation Officer, California Governor’s Office of

Emergency Services

www.fema.gov

52



Status of Participating Jurisdictions as of October 31, 2019

Jurisdictions — Adopted and Approved

Jurisdiction Date of Adoption

Jurisdictions — Approvable Pending Adoption

Jurisdiction

Butte County

City of Biggs

City of Chico

City of Gridley

City of Oroville

Town of Paradise

Paradise Irrigation District

Thermalito Water and Sewer District

Durham Irrigation District

North Yuba Water District

Feather River Recreation and Park District

Butte County Fire Safe Council

Lake Oroville Area Public Utility District

Paradise Recreation and Park District

7Y N ey Yl P V=Y o) BN o (U0 [F N FOCR NS Uy 8

South Feather River Water and Power Agency

53



Annex M Paradise Recreation and Park District

M.1 Introduction

This Annex details the hazard mitigation planning elements specific to Paradise Recreation and Park
District (PRPD or District), a new participating jurisdiction to the 2019 Butte County Local Hazard
Mitigation Plan (LHMP) Update. This Annex is not intended to be a standalone document but appends to
and supplements the information contained in the Base Plan document. As such, all sections of the Base
Plan, including the planning process and other procedural requirements apply to and were met by the
District. This Annex provides additional information specific to PRPD, with a focus on providing
additional details on the risk assessment and mitigation strategy for the District.

M.2 Planning Process

As described above, the PRPD followed the planning process detailed in Chapter 3 of the Base Plan. In
addition to providing representation on the Butte County Hazard Mitigation Planning Committee (HMPC),
PRPD formulated its own internal planning team to support the broader planning process requirements.
Internal planning participants, their positions, and how they participated in the planning process are shown
in Table M-1. Additional details on plan participation and PRPD representatives are included in Appendix
A.

Table M-1 Paradise Recreation and Park District Planning Team

Name Position/Title ‘ How Participated

Dan Efseaff District Manager Hazard ID Tables were filled out. Attended meetings. Provided
information specific to the District regarding hazards. Reviewed
Drafts. Provided comments on annex.

Mark Cobb Park Supervisor Provided input and reviewed District Annex
Colleen Campbell Administrative Updated Hazard ID tables and other information
Assistant 11
Jeff Dailey Recreation Provided input and reviewed District Annex
Supervisor
Sunny Quigley Administrative Updated Hazard ID tables and other information, assembled
Assistant comments on draft.
Kristi Sweeney Assistant District Reviewed LHMP District Annex
Manager

Source: PRPD
M.3 District Profile

The community profile for the PRPD is detailed in the following sections. Figure M-1 displays a map and
the location of the District within Butte County.

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-1
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update Fos I
ostery

October 2019 Morrison

54



Figure M-1 Paradise Recreation and Park District

£ EREE AR E SRS
#a

"
-
L]
=
]
-
-
B
W
=
=
-
.
L]
L
-
-
L
-
L]
=
-
=

"'_S‘f%z-tzssc{m

AERR anWp npnr

= jParadise Recreation & Park District
B Highways
— Secondary Roads
[[]waterbodies
[IcCity Limits
[|Parcel Boundaries /
General Plan Designations
" Agricultural
- Commercial
[l Farming
M Grazing Land
M High Density Residential (20 du/acre)
M industrial
Low Density Residential (6 du/acre)
[ Medium Density Residential (13 du/acre) |
' Public '
M Timberland Preserve Zone

(e anEx T
LICHR s

Source: PRPD

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-2
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019



M.3.1. Overview and Background

The PRPD was established as an independent special district in 1948 to provide recreational facilities and
programs to residents of the Paradise Ridge Community and surrounding area (the Town of Paradise itself
was incorporated in 1979). The District is located in north-central Butte County, with all but small portions
of it lying between the parallel stretches of State Highway 32 and State Highway 70 (as shown above on
Figure M-1). The District’s western boundary is contiguous with parts of the City of Chico’s eastern
boundary. The District consists of approximately 106,096 acres (165 square miles) and serves a population
of approximately 41,200. It encompasses the Town of Paradise, Butte Creek Canyon, and the
unincorporated communities of Magalia/Paradise Pines and Concow/Yankee Hill. It also includes portions
of four school districts: Chico Unified School District, Paradise Unified School District, Golden Feather
Union Elementary School District, and Oroville Union High School District.

M.4 Hazard Identification

PRPD’s planning team identified the hazards that affect PRPD and summarized their location, extent,
frequency of occurrence, potential magnitude, and significance specific to the District (see Table M-2).

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-3
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

56



Table M-2 Paradise Recreation and Park District — Hazard Identification Assessment

Probability Climate

Geographic of Future Magnitude/ Change
Hazard Extent Occurrences Severity Significance Influence
Climate Change Extensive Likely Catastrophic | High -
Dam Failure Limited Occasional Limited Medium Medium
Drought & Water shortage Extensive Highly Likely | Critical Medium High
Earthquake Significant Occasional Limited Medium Low
Floods: 100/200/500 yeat Significant | Occasional Critical Low Medium
Floods: Localized Stormwater Limited Highly Likely | Limited Medium Medium
Hazardous Materials Transportation Limited Occasional Limited Medium Low
Invasive Species: Aquatic Limited Occasional Negligible Low Low
Invasive Species: Pests/Plants Extensive Highly Likely | Limited Low/ Low

Medium

TLandslide, Mudslide, and Debris Flow Limited Likely Limited Medium Medium
Levee Failure Limited Occasional Limited Low Medium
Severe Weather: Extreme Heat Extensive Highly Likely | Critical Medium High
Severe Weather: Freeze and Winter Storm Significant | Highly Likely | Critical Medium Medium
Severe Weather: Heavy Rain and Storms Significant | Highly Likely | Critical Medium Medium
(Hail, Lightning)
Severe Weather: Wind and Tornado Extensive Highly Likely | Limited Medium Low
Stream Bank Erosion Limited Highly Likely | Limited Low Low
Volcano Significant Occasional Critical Low Low
Wildfire Extensive Highly Likely | Catastrophic | High High
Geographic Extent Magnitude/Severity

Limited: Less than 10% of planning arca
Significant: 10-50% of planning area
Extensive: 50-100% of planning arca
Probability of Future Occurtences
Highly Likely: Near 100% chance of
occurrence in next year, or happens every
year.

Likely: Between 10 and 100% chance of
occurrence in next year, or has a
recutrence interval of 10 years or less.
Occasional: Between 1 and 10% chance of
occurrence in the next year, or has a
recurrence interval of 11 to 100 years.
Unlikely: Less than 1% chance of
occurrence in next 100 years, or has a
recurrence interval of greater than every
100 years.

Catastrophic—More than 50 percent of property severely damaged; shutdown of
facilities for more than 30 days; and/or multiple deaths

Critical—25-50 percent of property severely damaged; shutdown of facilities for at
least two weeks; and/or injuties and/or illnesses result in permanent disability
Limited—10-25 percent of property severely damaged; shutdown of facilities for more
than a week; and/or injuries/illnesses treatable do not result in permanent disability
Negligible—Less than 10 percent of property severely damaged, shutdown of facilities
and services for less than 24 hours; and/or injuries/illnesses treatable with first aid
Significance

Low: minimal potential impact

Medium: moderate potential impact

High: widespread potential impact

Climate Change Impact:

Low: Not likely to increase the probability of this hazard.

Medium: Is likely to increase the probability of this hazard.

High: Is very likely to increase the probability of this hazard.

Butte County
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-4

57



M.5 Hazard Profile and Vulnerability Assessment

The intent of this section is to profile the PRPD’s hazards and assess the District’s vulnerability separate
from that of the Planning Area as a whole, which has already been assessed in Sections 4.2 Hazard Profiles
and 4.3 Vulnerability Assessment in the Base Plan. The hazard profiles in the Base Plan discuss overall
impacts to the Planning Area and describes the hazard problem description, hazard extent,
magnitude/severity, previous occurrences of hazard events and the likelihood of future occurrences. Hazard
profile information specific to the District is included in this Annex. This vulnerability assessment analyzes
the property and other assets at risk to hazards ranked of medium or high significance specific to the District.
For more information about how hazards affect the County as a whole, see Chapter 4 Risk Assessment in
the Base Plan.

M.5.1. Hazard Profiles

Each hazard vulnerability assessment in Section M.5.3, includes a hazard profile/problem description as to
how each medium or high significant hazard affects the District and includes information on past hazard
occurrences. The intent of this section is to provide jurisdictional specific information on hazards and
further describe how the hazards and risks differ across the Planning Area.

M.5.2. Vulnerability Assessment and Assets at Risk

This section identifies PRPD’s total assets at risk, including values at risk, populations at risk, critical
facilities and infrastructure, natural resources, and historic and cultural resources. Growth and development
trends are also presented for the District. This data is not hazard specific but is representative of total assets
at risk within the District.

Assets at Risk and Critical Facilities

This section considers the PRPD’s assets at risk, with a focus on key District assets such as critical facilities,
infrastructure, and other District assets and their values. With respect to PRPD assets, the majority of these
assets are considered critical facilities as defined for this Plan. Critical facilities are defined for this Plan as:

Any facility, including without limitation, a structure, infrastructure, property,
equipment or service, that if adversely affected during a hazard event may result
In severe consequences to public health and safety or interrupt essential
services and operations for the community at any time before, during and after
the hazard event.

Table M-3 lists particular critical facilities and other PRPD assets identified by the PRPD planning team as
important to protect in the event of a disaster. PRPD’s physical assets, valued at over $13 million, consist
of the buildings and infrastructure to support PRPD’s operations.

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-5
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

58



Table M-3 Paradise Recreation and Park District Critical Facilities, Infrastructure, and Other
District Assets

Name of Asset Hazard Info

‘ Replacement Value

| Facility Type

Terry Ashe Recreational Center

Office, Playground, Activity
Rooms, Basketball

Recreation Center, Main

$3,958,253.00

Wildfire

Paul Byrne Aquatic Park Picnic Areas, Playground, $4,843,651.00 | Drought, Localized
Fishing, Swimming, Activity flooding, Wildfire
Room, Barbeque, Volleyball,
Horseshoe
Moore Road Park Equestrian, Baseball/ Softball, $866,206.00 Wildfire
Ropes Course
Bille Park Picnic Areas, Playgrounds, $1,585,935.00 Wildfire
Hiking, Horseshoes
Coutolenc Park Primarily unimproved park $15,322.00 Wildfire
with Hiking, Archery
Paradise Memorial Park Museum $1,500,00.00 Wildfire
Crain Memorial Park Picnic Area $200,000.00 | Localized flooding,
Wildfire
Oak Creek Natural Area Natural area Undeveloped | Localized flooding,
Wildfire
Drendle Circle Small undeveloped land Undeveloped Wildfire
Paradise High School and Baseball/Softball, Basketball, Shared agreement with Wildfire

Mountain Ridge Middle School

Volleyball

PUSD, part of their

schools
Mallan Lane Maintenance Shop, $581,518.00 | Localized flooding,
Equipment, Vehicles Wildfire.
Lakeridge Circle Natural Area (Undeveloped $100,000 Wildfire
Park)
Concow Pool Swimming Pool and restroom $1,000,000 | Drought, Localized

flooding, Wildfire

Source: PRPD

59

The District noted that wind events can affect heavily treed parks. Data on the value of these parks was
unavailable.

Natural Resources

PRPD has a variety of natural resources of value to the District. These natural resources parallels that of
the Town of Paradise and vicinity. Information can be found in Section 4.3.1 of the Base Plan and in
Section E.5.2 of the Town of Paradise Annex.

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-6
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update

October 2019



Historic and Cultural Resources

PRPD has a variety of historic and cultural resources of value to the District. These historic and cultural
resources parallels that of the Town of Paradise and vicinity. Information can be found in Section 4.3.1 of
the Base Plan and in Section E.5.2 of the Town of Paradise Annex.

Growth and Development Trends

Prior to the Camp Fire, the District grew along with the Town of Paradise and unincorporated areas of Butte
County. Growth slowed in the 2000s, and the District expected yearly growth rates of 1.1% between 2006
and 2030, according to the PRPD Municipal Service Review Update. The Camp Fire decimated
populations in the Paradise area in 2018.

Future Development

PRPD has no control over future development in areas serviced by the District. Due to the Camp Fire,
future development in the District is uncertain.

District development is guided by a Master Management Plan. The current plan was completed in 2010
with an update completed in 2016 that carries it through 2024. However; the District will start the process
in 2020 to account for new needs after the Camp Fire.

Because of grant funding cycles and other resources, the District is pursuing the development of new
facilities and acquisitions for parks. In addition, the District is likely to take on new roles and management
of facilities as partners assess their roles and resources.

M.5.3. Vulnerability to Specific Hazards

This section provides the vulnerability assessment for those hazards identified above in Table M-2 as high
or medium significance hazards. Impacts of past events and vulnerability of PRPD to specific hazards are
further discussed below (see Section 4.1 Hazard Identification in the Base Plan for more detailed
information about these hazards and their impacts on the Butte County Planning Area).

An estimate of the vulnerability of the District to each identified priority hazard, in addition to the estimate
of risk of future occurrence, is provided in each of the hazard-specific sections that follow. Vulnerability
is measured in general, qualitative terms and is a summary of the potential impact based on past
occurrences, spatial extent, and damage and casualty potential. It is categorized into the following
classifications:

» Extremely Low—The occurrence and potential cost of damage to life and property is very minimal to
nonexistent.

» Low—Minimal potential impact. The occurrence and potential cost of damage to life and property is
minimal.

» Medium—Moderate potential impact. This ranking carries a moderate threat level to the general
population and/or built environment. Here the potential damage is more isolated and less costly than a
more widespread disaster.

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-7
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

60



» High—Widespread potential impact. This ranking carries a high threat to the general population and/or
built environment. The potential for damage is widespread. Hazards in this category may have
occurred in the past.

» Extremely High—Very widespread with catastrophic impact.

Climate Change

Likelihood of Future Occurrence—Likely
Vulnerability—Medium

Hazard Profile and Problem Description

Climate change is the distinct change in measures of weather patterns over a long period of time, ranging
from decades to millions of years. More specifically, it may be a change in average weather conditions
such as temperature, rainfall, snow, ocean and atmospheric circulation, or in the distribution of weather
around the average. While the Earth’s climate has cycled over its 4.5-billion-year age, these natural cycles
have taken place gradually over millennia, and the Holocene, the most recent epoch in which human
civilization developed, has been characterized by a highly stable climate — until recently.

Location and Extent

Climate change is a global phenomenon. It is expected to affect the whole of the County and the District.
There is no scale to measure the extent of climate change. Climate change exacerbates other hazard, such
as drought, extreme heat, flooding, wildfire, and others. The speed of onset of climate change is very slow.
The duration of climate change is not yet known, but is feared to be tens to hundreds of years.

Past Occurrences

The District Planning Team noted no past occurrences of climate change but did note that the strength of
storms does seem to be increasing and the temperatures seem to be getting hotter.

Vulnerability and Impacts to Climate Change

The APG: Defining Local and Regional Impacts focuses on understanding the ways in which climate
change can affect a community. According to this APG, climate change impacts (temperature,
precipitation, sea level rise, ocean acidification, and wind) affect a wide range of community structures,
functions and populations. These impacts further defined by regional and local characteristics are discussed
by secondary impacts and seven sectors found in local communities: Public Health, Socioeconomic, and
equity impacts; Ocean and Coastal Resources; Water Management; Forest and Rangeland; Biodiversity and
Habitat; Agriculture; and Infrastructure.

The APG: Understanding Regional Characteristics identified the following impacts specific to the Northern
Central Valley region in which the Butte County Planning Area is part of:

» Temperature increases — particularly nighttime temperature
» Reduced precipitation
» Flooding — increase flows, snowmelt, levee failure

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-8
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

61



Reduced agricultural productivity (e.g., nut trees, dairy)
Reduced water supply

Wildfire in the Sierra foothills

Public health and heat

Reduced tourism

YVVVYY

Climate change will likely increase the cost of maintaining facilities as the area deals with greater
fluctuations and larger events.

Assets at Risk

The District noted that all of its parks shown on Table M-3 would have turf at risk from climate change and
extreme heat events resulting from it.

Future Development

The District is committed to several measures to account for Climate Change. For example, the District
will consider climate to assess the plants used for reforestation and landscaping; invest in water
conservation measures; utilize natural light when feasible; and consider WUI standards on construction of
new facilities. The District also has a role in providing shelter in place facilities and the strategic location
of new parks to provide buffers and multiple functions.

Dam Failure

Likelihood of Future Occurrence—Occasional
Vulnerability—Medium

Hazard Profile and Problem Description

Dams are manmade structures built for a variety of uses including flood protection, power generation,
agriculture, water supply, and recreation. When dams are constructed for flood protection, they are usually
engineered to withstand a flood with a computed risk of occurrence. For example, a dam may be designed
to contain a flood at a location on a stream that has a certain probability of occurring in any one year. If
prolonged periods of rainfall and flooding occur that exceed the design requirements, that structure may be
overtopped or fail. Overtopping is the primary cause of earthen dam failure in the United States.

Location and Extent

Oroville Dam is located at a lower elevation than the District, and in the unlikely event that a dam failure
occurred at this location, the District would not be inundated. Approximate District borders and dam
inundation areas can be seen on Figure M-2, Figure M-3, and Figure M-4.

The greater threat to the PRPD is from the Paradise Dam and Magalia Dam located on Little Butte Creek,
both of which are owned by the Paradise Irrigation District. Due to their location and proximity to the
District, both of these dams are high hazard dams (meaning they have the potential to impact property and
possibly injure or kill people should the dam break). The District Planning Team noted that while the

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-9
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

62



District and its facilities lie outside of the Concow Dam inundation area, the District’s parks would be
logical places for people displaced by the dam failure to congregate.

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-10
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

63



64

Figure M-2 Paradise Recreation and Park District — Extremely High Hazard Dam Inundation

Areas

"610T/L2T/8 ‘818 e SERY-ED "S1D AjunoDd ayng "/10Z/0) SNiEIS weg S30 [eD 3uNnoS ejeg

I T T T 1

s3I 01 S 0 :9.:.5@4
....z |
av oyjeunsyl = % 121351 Yded @ uoneaioay om_vu._nn_u m .rw%, sanuno) e
asipeled v FTITIIET 7, 2 e san0 -ll_-.
sealy uonepunuj weq ydiH Aswanx3 0= U e \ - \ £ i S siaAry
ubiH Awanx @ . &0 ~ e | ‘s VP \\ 66 2N n_ SpeolliEy —i—
uoNBIYISSE}) WeQ piezeH [ejapa4 » N\ / 4 - / \\ . N , “| speoy tolepy ——
SINILX3 VINY 2 10 boh \ ~F \. N sAemybiH ——
NOILVANNNI Wva % N e R / ! £ _,. aN3oTl
—— - \.' Iy
- = & ~f h % - - »@:
¢ ) U8 (& : - 2
AR . + » 5 o
iy _ #
s - . > LY g )
4 £ s 4 - z 3 g N.‘,.ui
, 01 P > " L 28 o
: 2 WV\ ; = 4 J \x “ e o T :
- (Y, . 3 2 CINT 2 "
: i HOON r , NI , ]
b 215 R s g 5 . & 14 7ol 0HST
2 7y Al e 14V Az T
/5 : ;
72 / 1) )
A.»-w ’ - ) 1 3 * .M § ~
V-2 ~ : 4y 2 . N 7=
; -~ - P 4 5 - (D8 97 e e
\ <7 ‘.\‘ [ Wa «ﬂ_ 7. S % - \\.& ' &.
e \ (% , = » - ;
I o 1% F \\‘ :
) - \ /
g P - - -
{ 33 Y Py (83 . ’ "
7 2 D - .
¥ Je 7 - - *
v 3 e =
— S e - L
1 \ >, y - = \“.k.mf
2 g Eir: Z .
= e ¢ | ’ 2 8 | A0 YWYHAL
LV U0 ? . o/ s A= 0
g ' 4 : b —
: A -yl - X - - \m‘\ - 138N EZDOohww_.._bm
Ay - ® = . 4 -

Annex M-11

Paradise Recreation and Park District

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update

Butte County
October 2019



65

"610Z/L2/8 8leq dey ‘sepy-ied ‘SO Aunod aung “L10Z/0L SMEIS Wed S0 8D Bunos ejed

% [ T T T 1
L S3IN 0} 5 0 UOSILIO MQ
m ....: % |
kS : -
S eiseus 777 ~ uo_._am.n_ v_..mn_ d :oauw._gm om_va._umu M sanuno) [
..m eneden (771 14 . Ty 7 ssmog__1
S sea vonepunu wea U6t 4 7 "R ST IS N4 NS sore1 [0
.m ubH @ TQIO-TTF ‘ o\ L . \ \\ \ SIBAY ——
§  |uoneopsseio weq prezen resopoy [ ; 7y e \, A g6 speoJiey —+—
w SIN3LX3 VIVV N 75 Tt e . » 4T 7| speoy solewy ——
NOILVANNNI Wva v : 16Lfl - \x .
~ —— . | 7 \ 4 f et J ) ~ sfemyblH ——
= 9 \ by 5 | L 7
g J\dﬂn 7 B X 5 7] A aNzo3
i &2 4 . - - X
3 ) = ¥ - - 7
a . . 1 & -7 |- / 7 X v
[ 7 0L - ;
w~ - 4 - ’ / i \ = ¢
.w > v — dWﬂ 1 . ~a )
] T (= > ¥ - z
R 7/ Al HOINOS QUo7 4 ’ =
S i 21 g i I = N | Y] J0HS
¢ i - & s. iy 5
ﬂ X 7 : 8} o> " N - o 224 .\;.e\sﬁ.uw.am
..Pa £ o e 2 V=7 / , " & Z N\\\
- \ -l . - L - s
M ﬂ‘ . L | —~ 3 > \\ \\ .. . y
; 116D, SIAY ; : = = ,
5 e 3w RUST)| 257 =
.H v - N . 3 et -t \ . ‘il &..‘.! ,. ‘n,).»u _.|I—
Y -  Lrr g = =9 7 vawaan 2 R
a ap- | 4 w \(# 29 : “ Ye \\ ‘ 4 N ) ®
Rc s 4 J . IOE .w .\\ /] Ivana 4 uv
: »&S:  lan e “TNa8 &7 B/ g
2 o AT /i fy | = . ] o | E:
= . .!..\. - o # - { E . Y e ~ - NE
g  ALNNOD SYWMd s i : = ‘. o s
! el |f LS AR S
—de g / Pl . v .
2 /4 Zi L, . 2 (7 | swnagert]
= / Tk SR B . 7, . \h.mh b Bl /7 e sﬁv VINYHI
m Wv‘ \\ - ! W/ = g -— /] \u‘ 4 = T\. 4
.rmb & ! 4 = . ‘\ 13SNIAINNOO 3118

Annex M-12

Paradise Recreation and Park District

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update

Butte County
October 2019



66

Figure M-4 Paradise Recreation and Park District — Significant Hazard Dam Inundation

Areas

od N\
Hooudqiiud
apuny -
SEaJy uoljepunuj weq ueaubis
uedubis @
uoneaysse|o Wweg piezeH [eispad

SINIIX3 V3IHV
NOILLVAONNNI Wva

»&\%

» ».Ez:oo SV mm,m.
g _ ST

—2oh@.

'
*
\
"
g
5 o
iy A
%
7>

"610Z/LT/8 8l del sepy-ied ‘SI9 Aunod apng *L10Z/0) SNiES weg S30 B 82nos eeq

s3I 0 5 0 WOSILIO
:.zka._
: “o:am_o x..nm .w :oanﬂoom 0m_un._uau & .M.K/W sanunog [
v sa01D
’ : \ ... i -
yr P,a A% oP s N +ET) sove1[ ]
T SN 4 X7 « 5 7 ¥ B 73
N N7 \ , \ \\ o el L sianRy
; . 2 1 .\ = SpeoJjiey —+—
LY 4 7| speoy solew ——
, e \ = v SAeMUBIH ——
: ~l 5 _ 4 aN3931
SR Y/,
. 5 W
,1.\ /» .mn f - '’
43 = A ) T —ﬂ‘“
.. § 3 ) . =
)
0L /.
3 ol £ 4 - ) \ . %) <
10> o g P IND 8
S 4 3
uuu. N | JOHST:
73 : ‘ - - A a1 g a0ips (S
P o ' ¥ & ; ; 2 47 s
Vir—> = Ve s , 8 AL N\
— [ 1 4 L - : % — ' |‘|‘. 7 P
o o 2 - -r\\.\iv \ W * 7
Y o . (23 /
—— ‘v‘ \ . - -,
o \(4 & . A . -
. v, : 1% £
0 \e X 2
43 2 % ,
Vg i P
’ ; . <
; 5 <
YTV B g i
) -~ /2] /]

Annex M-13

Paradise Recreation and Park District

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update

Butte County
October 2019



Past Occurrences

There has been no history of failure of either of these two dams, Paradise and Magalia, which have the
potential to impact the District.

Vulnerability and Impacts to Dam Failure

Dam failure flooding can occur as the result of partial or complete collapse of an impoundment. Dam
failures often result from prolonged rainfall and flooding. The primary danger associated with dam failure
is the high velocity flooding of those properties downstream of the dam.

Dam failure flooding presents a threat to life and property, including buildings, their contents, and their use.
Large flood events can affect crops and livestock as well as lifeline utilities (e.g., water, sewerage, and
power), transportation, jobs, tourism, the environment, and the local and regional economies. Impacts to
the PRPD from dam failure include damage to property, facilities, and park lands.

Dam failure of the two dams of concern to the District, Paradise and Magalia, would affect mainly those
living in the canyon, and would likely have a limited effect on the Town of Paradise and the PRPD.

Magalia Dam has been identified by the Division of Safety of Dams as at risk to failure in the event of
significant seismic activity. In the event of such failure floodwater would cause significant damages in the
Little Butte Creek and Butte Creek Canyons and the District and exceed the capacity of the downstream
Butte Creek levees. The Town of Paradise would be affected since the water treatment plant and the 42-
inch supply line that provides drinking water for the residents in the community could be severely damaged
since it is located at the downstream toe of the dam. The primary access road to the Pines Community would
be eliminated and impact 10,000 residents. Reconstruction of the damaged facilities would be difficult,
cause a significant water outage, take many months to restore, and the repair costs would be very high.

In a 1992 study of Magalia Dam it was concluded that the upstream slope of the dam was found to have
inadequate stability under seismic loading conditions. In 1997 in response to this concern, the DSD
required the water storage in the reservoir to be decreased to 800 acre-feet. If stabilized, the capacity of
Magalia Reservoir could be restored to 2,570 acre-feet. The change in water level elevation from 2,225 feet
when full, was lowered to the current restricted operating level of 2,199 feet, or a reduction of 26 change
feet. Each year the DSD conducts a dam inspection and the District prepares a “Surveillance Report”, with
assistance from the URS Corporation.

In 2004, the Paradise Irrigation District constructed a diversion structure above Magalia Reservoir and a
pipeline to the water treatment plant. This improvement will supply water to the treatment plant during any
reconstruction of Magalia Dam, or the widening of Skyway across Magalia Dam. In addition, the County
did preliminary engineering on a project to widen the Skyway’s two lanes to four lanes across Magalia
Dam. The Paradise Irrigation District’s preferred alternative for the widening project involves stabilizing
the dam and would permit the restoration of the design water level behind Magalia Dam.

Impacts from dam failure in the District include loss of life and injury. Facilities, infrastructure, and park
lands in the District could be at risk to dam failure. Programs run by the District would also be affected by
dam failure.

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-14
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

67



Assets at Risk

The District Planning Team noted no specific facilities at risk.
Future Development

District facility sites are reviewed for hazards before they are sited. Dam failure is unlikely to affect siting
of future District facilities, as little of the District is affected by dam failure.

Drought & Water Shortage

Likelihood of Future Occurrence—Highly Likely
Vulnerability—Medium

Hazard Profile and Problem Description

Drought is a gradual phenomenon. Although droughts are sometimes characterized as emergencies, they
differ from typical emergency events. Most natural disasters, such as floods or forest fires, occur relatively
rapidly and afford little time for preparing for disaster response. Droughts occur slowly, over a multi-year
period, and it is often not obvious or easy to quantify when a drought begins and ends. s

Location and Extent

As discussed in the Base Plan, drought and water shortage are regional phenomenon. The whole of the
County, as well as the whole of the PRPD, is at risk. Drought has a slow speed of onset and a variable
duration. Drought can last for a short period of time, which does not usually affect water shortages. Should
a drought last for a long period of time, water shortage becomes a larger issue.

Past Occurrences

Since drought is a regional phenomenon, past occurrences of drought for the PRPD are the similar to those
for the County. Those past occurrences can be found in Section 4.2.8 of the Base Plan.

Vulnerability and Impacts to Drought and Water Shortage

Based on historical information, the occurrence of drought in California, including in the PRPD, is cyclical,
driven by weather patterns. Drought has occurred in the past and will occur in the future. Periods of actual
drought with adverse impacts can vary in duration, and the period between droughts is often extended.
Although an area may be under an extended dry period, determining when it becomes a drought is based
on impacts to individual water users. The vulnerability of the PRPD to drought is District-wide, but impacts
may vary and include reduction in water supply and an increase in dry fuels. The increased dry fuels result
in an increased fire danger.

The most significant qualitative impacts associated with drought in the planning area are those related to
water intensive activities such as wildfire protection, municipal usage, commerce, tourism, and recreation.
Voluntary conservation measures are typically implemented during extended droughts. A reduction of
electric power generation and water quality deterioration are also potential problems. Drought conditions

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-15
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019



can also cause soil to compact and not absorb water well, potentially making an area more susceptible to
flooding.

Assets at Risk

All District properties are at risk from his threat. The District lands may be at risk from drought affecting
park vegetation (landscaping or managed forests), pumps, or facilities suffering water shortages. Water
levels in District managed water bodies will impact recreational activities. Water based recreational
programs (swimming, kayaking, etc.) may be canceled or impacted.

Future Development

The District will invest in water conservation measures and low water native plants and other xeriscape
options. For improved water quality and infiltration, we will explore the use of bio-swales and pervious
concrete where reasonably feasible.

FEarthquake and Liquefaction

Likelihood of Future Occurrence—Occasional
Vulnerability—Medium

Hazard Profile and Problem Description

The State of California has identified five areas of critical seismic concern including surface ruptures,
ground shaking, ground failure, tsunamis, and seiches. Each of these is caused by earthquake activity
thereby creating hazards for life and property, which has the potential anywhere in California. Paradise
and the PRPD is not at risk for tsunamis or seiches due to its inland location and the absence of nearby large
bodies of water. Due to the proximity of the District to the Cleveland Hills Fault, the District is at risk to
an earthquake occurring on this fault. These earthquakes can cause liquefaction within the District.
Liquefaction is a process whereby soil is temporarily transformed to a fluid formed during intense and
prolonged ground shaking.

Location and Extent

Since earthquakes are regional events, the whole of the District is at risk to earthquake. Hazus earthquake
analysis was performed for the region, and is discussed in Section 4.3.6 of the Base Plan. Paradise and the
surrounding area are located in a region of relatively low to moderate risk of earthquake occurrence.
Additionally, the District is at limited risk to liquefaction from earthquake shaking. A map of liquefaction
potential and approximate District locations is shown on Figure M-5 and shows the District with a Low
liquefaction potential.

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-16
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

69



Figure M-5 Paradise Recreation and Park District — Liquefaction Potential Areas

) >
LIQUEFACTION POTENTIAL
[ Generally High
[T Generally Moderate
[ ] Generally Low

LEGEND
— Highways
—— Major Roads

Data Source: Butte County General Plan 2030, Butte County GIS, Cal-Atlas; Map Date: 8/27/2019.

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

Annex M-17

70



The amount of energy released during an earthquake is usually expressed as a magnitude and is measured
directly from the earthquake as recorded on seismographs. An earthquake’s magnitude is expressed in
whole numbers and decimals (e.g., 6.8). Seismologists have developed several magnitude scales, as
discussed in Section 4.2.10 of the Base Plan. Earthquake and liquefaction both have a short onset period,
and the duration of shaking and liquefaction is short as well.

Past Occurrences

As shown in the Base Plan, only the 1975 5.7 magnitude Oroville earthquake that resulted in a federal
disaster declaration has occurred in the County. The HMPC noted no other past occurrences of earthquakes
or liquefaction that affected the District in any meaningful way.

Vulnerability and Impacts to Earthquake

Earthquake vulnerability is primarily based on population and the built environment. Urban areas in high
seismic hazard zones are the most vulnerable, while uninhabited areas are less vulnerable. The primary
impacts of concern are life safety and property damage.

Ground shaking is the primary earthquake hazard. Many factors affect the survivability of structures and
systems from earthquake-caused ground motions. These factors include proximity to the fault, direction of
rupture, epicentral location and depth, magnitude, local geologic and soils conditions, types and quality of
construction, building configurations and heights, and comparable factors that relate to utility,
transportation, and other network systems. Ground motions become structurally damaging when average
peak accelerations reach 10 to 15 percent of gravity, average peak velocities reach 8 to 12 centimeters per
second, and when the Modified Mercalli Intensity Scale is about VII (18-34 percent peak ground
acceleration), which is considered to be very strong (general alarm; walls crack; plaster falls).

Seismic events can have particularly negative effects on older buildings constructed of unreinforced
masonry (URM), including materials such as brick, concrete and stone. The Uniform Building Code (UBC)
identifies four seismic zones in the United States. The zones are numbered one through four, with Zone 4
representing the highest level of seismic hazard. The UBC establishes more stringent construction standards
for areas within Zones 3 and 4. All of California lies within either Zone 3 or Zone 4. Butte County is within
the less hazardous Zone 3. There are not URM or soft story buildings in the District.

Impacts to the District included damage to facilities and parks. General damages to structures and roads
could occur if shaking or liquefaction was bad enough.

Assets at Risk

The District Planning Team noted that the maintenance shop could possibly be affected by earthquake
shaking.

Future Development

The District will continue to follow California Building Codes and best practices when siting and
constructing new District facilities. Vulnerable and sensitive equipment will be secured.

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-18
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

71



Localized Flooding

Likelihood of Future Occurrence—Highly Likely
Vulnerability—Medium

Hazard Profile and Problem Description

Localized flooding and other issues caused by severe weather events, primarily heavy rains and severe
storms, are an annual occurrence in the District. Normally storm floodwaters are kept within defined limits
by a variety of storm drainage and flood control measures. Occasionally, extended heavy rains result in
floodwaters that overwhelm the drainage system. Primary concerns include impacts to infrastructure that
provides a means of ingress and egress throughout the community.

Location and Extent

The Town of Paradise and areas of the District are subject to localized flooding. The extent of localized
flooding is usually measured in volume, velocity, and depths of flooding. Expected flood depths in the
District vary by location. Flood durations in the District tend to be short to medium term, or until either the
storm drainage system can catch up or flood waters move downstream. Localized flooding in the District
tends to have a shorter speed of onset, especially when antecedent rainfall has soaked the ground and
reduced its capacity to absorb additional moisture. Areas of concern for the District can be found in Table
M-4.

Table M-4 PRPD — Road List of Localized Flooding Problem Areas

Road Name Flooding Pavement Washout High Landslide/ | Debris | Downed
Deterioration Water Mudslide Trees

Skyway X X X X X X X
Forest Service Road X X
Concow Road X X X X

Dogtown Road X X X X X X X
Coutolenc Road X X X X X X X
Honey Run and Centerville X X X X X X X

Roads (which would cut off
access to areas where the
District runs programs)

Source: PRPD

Past Occurrences

The District Planning Team noted no specific past occurrence of localized flooding that affected the
District’s facilities. They did note that localized flooding occurs each year, but is mostly a nuisance that
causes travel issues for District staff.

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-19
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

72



Vulnerability and Impacts to Localized Flood

Localized flooding occurs throughout the District primarily during the winter and spring months during
periods of heavy rains. Localized flooding can cause road closures, pavement deterioration, washouts,
landslides/mudslides, debris areas, and downed trees. The amount and type of damage or flooding that
occurs varies from year to year and storm to storm, depending on the quantity of runoff. Heavy rains may
produce ponding around storm drains and in low lying areas, but these events are short in duration and do
not typically cause property damage.

The drainage patterns of the Paradise area and District reflect the uniqueness of its location on a gently
sloping ridge surface. The Paradise area is dominated by a somewhat continuous overland runoff flow
which is organized into local rills or depressions as the runoff is collected. The Paradise area is divided
into fairly distinct drainage basins.

The drainage systems often coincide with groundwater seeps and springs which serve to increase the
moisture availability beyond the intermittent flows directly related to storm runoff. Consequently, the
drainage depressions and their downslope channels are often thickly vegetated.

As these areas are developed, the undergrowth and grass cover are often removed, and channels are
randomly excavated to suit the individual owner's or developer's interest. Often when this takes place,
either through lack of knowledge, lack of funds or indifference, the resulting channel is inadequate in
capacity and poses a real possibility of promoting damage. While the soils and subsoils of the Paradise
area do not markedly aggravate the runoff situation, they also do not prove to be highly permeable. This
often results in localized flooding which can be exacerbated by such land use activities as grading
operations, vegetation clearance, inattention to storm runoff from construction sites during the peak winter
rainfall period, large-scale paving and the lack of a collection system for storm waters. Storm runoff arrives
at the principal drainage channels through overland flow for most of the Paradise area. Very few collector
systems have been constructed and the primary form of collection has been through roadside ditches.

Impacts to the District from localized flood include possible damage to facilities and infrastructure.
Localized flooding can also affect transportation routes that District personnel must take to get to District
facilities.

Assets at Risk

The District Planning Team noted that no assets are at risk to localized flooding, but localized flooding can
affect District Personnel as they travel to and from work, and to and from District facilities.

Future Development
Future development is unlikely to be affected by localized flooding.
Hazardous Materials Transportation

Likelihood of Future Occurrence—Occasional
Vulnerability—Medium

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-20
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

73



Hazard Profile and Problem Description

The release of hazardous materials during a transportation related incident is a concern to the Butte County
Planning Area and the PRPD. The significance of environmental or human exposure to a hazardous
materials release depends on the type, location, and quantity of the material. Hazardous materials can be
present in any form; gas, solid, or liquid. Environmental or atmospheric conditions can influence hazardous
materials if they are uncontained. A release or spill of bulk hazardous materials could result in fire,
explosion, toxic cloud or direct contamination of water, people, and property. The effects may involve a
local site or many square miles. Health problems may be immediate, such as corrosive effects on skin and
lungs, or be gradual, such as the development of cancer from a carcinogen. Damage to property could range
from immediate destruction by explosion to permanent contamination by a persistent hazardous material.

Location and Extent

In the PRPD, a hazardous materials transportation event is most likely to occur along Highway 191, as
shown in Figure M-6. Trucks and rail cars that use these transportation corridors commonly carry a variety
of hazardous materials including gasoline, other petroleum products, and other chemicals known to cause
human health problems. As such, the speed on onset of hazardous materials spill is short. The duration of
the event depends on multiple factors, including the type and amount of material spilled, and the volatility
of the chemical spilled.

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-21
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

74



75

Figure M-6 Paradise Recreation and Park District — Hazardous Materials Routes

Jayng speoliiey aliN-1 77

sayng shemubiH aln-1 ||

SPEOJ|IEY s
SAeMUDIH s
S3INOZ ¥344Ng H1IM
S$31N0Y NOLLVIHOdSNVNL [
STIVIMILVIN SNOQYVZVH
“ ~{
iy |
ey - £
|/
- ‘
¥ i
7 X
.‘..
T o
¥ ’
e et \
[ Y e
. 5 Vine

'6102/L2/8 '21ea dep 'sepy-ied ‘SI19 AQunod spng '91L0Z/Z) HIOMISN HOnIL SUBILED B2IN0S jeq

| ! I T |
S3N 0L S 0 :3:“%%6.—
" )
g LISIQ Yied g uonealday asipered T .N\m,\\y W sapunop [~ ]
: ® g I T 7 K \\ \V». sepog 1
- - : . « 3. ¥ & - 4 LA 70 O 4 SI3AI
Ql.@“ R B ! £y \ 7 \“.\ 66 T A= o
# 0 , A 42 P (F T 50 4 speouiey ——
. > v ’ ¢ “| speoy Jofepy ——
(161 O LK
§ # shemybiH ——
7 g 2 /7
- 0% aN35931
. b7 v 7 29 ! AT
W 1 2 S 15U B ! o5 Ceel NS W
L} . /s - S
. g \ —
A I 7 5 A
- S
~ 7
0l - ! ; \..\ 4 -
\ﬂ J Vi = A \:\.\\7 \\\\ 2
¥ o g o |
OINe i a OO
117 i 4 A JOH5354Qk 4

., : F = a1 dpioipy (S i o

Sl ; Vis bk ZH
. / ¥ 9 el -, II,'.‘ .’m& \
e \ (% - : : y. 7% \ - VAVAIN 5 YSN10D
) Llon o P SE / 913 - 77 \ # ! | 5
7 / - NG e o vanaA it N319
A P . 4 /27, . i |
4 - = 0 h & \\\m\“ \\ - ..:\\. s ;
- _.¢ v - \H\\\. \. ; o : B
,f v . o ; : g E \‘”. \|l Al ; 3 oA o s
f L : - ) »\D.K\ ¢ .- 2 A 50 \x .Oﬁu, \_ % -
2 ; o 58 et g S| SN Tt
g T THF 1 o § Lo S 3 Y
/ . # : < " e A YINVHEL
g ; 9 } 120 P A )
; s L g
! ~ e / 7 ] = o B —
, . ; - 2 \ /138Nl ALNNOD 3L1Ng
Ay Y S0 0 y K ! 4 & 4

Annex M-22

Paradise Recreation and Park District

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update

Butte County
October 2019



Past Occurrences
The District Planning Team noted no specific past occurrences where the District facilities were affected.
Vulnerability and Impacts to Hazardous Materials Transportation

It is often quite difficult to quantify the potential losses from human-caused hazards. While the facilities
impacted by a specific event have a tangible dollar value, loss from a human-caused hazard can inflict an
even greater toll on a community, both economically and emotionally. The impact to the District and
District assets will vary from event to event and depend on the type, location, and nature of the specific
hazardous material incident.

Impacts from hazardous materials transportation spills vary by location and severity of any given event and
will most likely only affect the immediate area of the District where the spill occurred. Impacts in the
District include damage to properties, facilities, and infrastructure. Life safety can also be an issue during
larger spills. The District runs childcare and sports programs, which could be affected during a hazardous
materials spill.

Assets at Risk

While the Terry Ashe Recreation Center, Moore Road Park, and Aquatic Park are the most vulnerable
because they attract the most people on a regular basis and are relatively close to main roads, all other park
properties may be impacted by a hazardous materials spill. Programs or events at other partner facilities
(i.e. schools or other parks) that attract the most people near transportation routes may also be vulnerable.

Future Development

The District requires that each facility have a plan for emergency and evacuation protocols which will
respond to this hazard.

Landslide, Mudslide, and Debris Flow

Likelihood of Future Occurrence—Likely
Vulnerability—Medium

Hazard Profile and Problem Description

According to the California Geological Survey, landslides refer to a wide variety of processes that result in
the perceptible downward and outward movement of soil, rock, and vegetation under gravitational
influence. Common names for landslide types include slump, rockslide, debris slide, lateral spreading,
debris avalanche, earth flow, and soil creep. Landslides may be triggered by both natural and human-
induced changes in the environment that result in slope instability.

Location and Extent

Areas in and around the PRPD where topography changes are at risk to landslide. The legend Figure M-7
shows the measurement system that the California Geological Survey uses to show the possible magnitude

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-23
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

76



of landslides. It is a combination of slope class and rock strength. The speed of onset of landslide is often
short, especially in post-wildfire burn scar areas, but it can also take years for a slope to fail. Landslide
duration is usually short, though digging out and repairing landslide areas can take some time.

The District noted that nearly all of its parks are located adjacent to or near steep areas.
Past Occurrences

The District Planning Team could not find specific past landslides that affected the District. However, they
did note that there is evidence of small slides at Coutolenc and Bille Park that would have damaged existing
roads or trails. They also noted that they were surprised that Butte Creek Canyon is not a higher risk.

Vulnerability and Impacts to Landslide

Landslide potential is influenced by a number of factors, including geology, water influences, and
topography. There is potential for landslides in the foothill portions of the community. Landslide potential
in the District is approximated on Figure M-7. It is noted that detailed analysis of the complex
interrelationships between the governing factors is needed to predict the stability of a specific area, and
detailed on-site investigations are recommended to assess site-specific risks. Seismic shaking can greatly
increase landslide potential.

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-24
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

77



78

Figure M-7 Paradise Recreation and Park District - Landslide Potential Areas

'610Z/LZ/8 -eveq dey ‘sepy-ieD ‘Si9 Auno spng ‘00T Ueld [eisuad Ajunog spng 8inos eleq

[ T T T 1
S3IN 01 s 0 UOSIALIO!
...w.ka._

11SIg Yied g uoneasoay om_vnhun_u sanuno)
xi: G LT W P 7 T a wwgrl
aeispop _U sovel[ ]

ubiH o1 sjesspop [ SISAY
uoH [ speoljiey —+—
IVILN310d 3ArISaNy1 : 2\ & . .. speoy Jofep ——
vﬂwm 4 ) \ IR Ny A 7 shemybiy ——

}J iy LA O e / aN3oT

&

xwﬂt\uSQ:nn 774

B i

Annex M-25

Paradise Recreation and Park District

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update

Butte County
October 2019



Impacts

Impacts in the District from landslide include property and facility damage, and damage to park lands.
Roads can also be impacted and create issues to District personnel as they travel around the District.

Assets at Risk

Parks with steep hills are at risk, and the assets they contain.

Future Development

The District requires that each facility have a plan for emergency and evacuation protocols which will
respond to this hazard.

Severe Weather: Extreme Heat

Likelihood of Future Occurrence—Highly Likely
Vulnerability—Medium

Hazard Profile and Problem Description

Extreme heat happens in Butte County and the PRPD each year. According to information provided by
FEMA, extreme heat is defined as temperatures that hover 10 degrees or more above the average high
temperature for the region and last for several weeks. Heat kills by taxing the human body beyond its
abilities. According to the US Center for Disease Control, in a normal year, about 658 Americans succumb
to the demands of summer heat. One of the most significant concerns with extreme heat is with vulnerable
populations such as the elderly and low-income populations who might not be able to stay cool during
extreme heat events. Extreme heat can also affect the operations of utilities and critical infrastructure, such
as the PRPD. And in the Butte County planning area extreme heat can contribute to wildfire conditions and
risk.

Location and Extent

Extreme heat events occur on a regional basis. The speed of onset and the duration of extreme heat events
can vary. Extreme heat can occur in any location of the County and the District, though it is more prevalent
in the lower elevations of the County. Extreme heat occurs throughout the Planning Area primarily during
the summer months. Heat emergencies are often slower to develop, taking several days of continuous,
oppressive heat before a significant or quantifiable impact is seen. Heat waves do not strike victims
immediately, but rather their cumulative effects slowly take the lives of vulnerable populations.

Past Occurrences

The District Planning Team note that since extreme heat is a regional phenomenon, events that affected the
County also affected the District. Those past occurrences were shown in the Base Plan in Section 4.2.2.

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-26
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019



Vulnerability and Impacts to Extreme Heat

Extreme heat happens in the Butte County Planning Area each year. Extreme heat may overload demands
for electricity to run air conditioners in homes and businesses during prolonged periods of exposure and
presents health concerns to individuals outside in the temperatures. Extreme heat may also be a secondary
effect of droughts or may cause drought-like conditions. For example, several weeks of extreme heat
increases evapotranspiration and reduces moisture content in vegetation, leading to higher wildfire
vulnerability for that time period even if the rest of the season is relatively moist. Extreme heat can also
affect the agricultural industry. Extreme heat normally does not impact structures.

During extreme heat events, District field staff will be impacted with limited work hours or exposure to
heat. The District may have to cancel programming events or have facilities that may be used, either
formally or informally, as cooling centers.

Assets at Risk

Pools and indoor recreation assets are at risk to this hazard.

Future Development

The District requires that each facility have a plan for emergency and evacuation protocols which will
respond to this hazard. The District will look at the potential for features that may make facilities more
appealing as a cooling center. The District is looking at funding sources for backup generators (and at least
the wiring to allow for portable ones).

Severe Weather: Freeze and Winter Storm

Likelihood of Future Occurrence—Highly Likely
Vulnerability—Medium

Hazard Profile and Problem Description

According to the National Weather Service (NWS) and the Western Regional Climate Center (WRCC),
extreme cold often accompanies a winter storm or is left in its wake. Winter storms in the District can
include freezing temperatures, snow, and ice. Prolonged exposure to cold can cause frostbite or hypothermia
and can be life-threatening. Infants and the elderly are most susceptible. Pipes may freeze and burst in
homes or buildings that are poorly insulated or without heat.

Location and Extent

Freeze and winter storms are regional issues, meaning the entire District is at risk to freeze and winter
storm. While there is no scale (i.e. Richter, Enhanced Fujita) to measure the effects of freeze, temperature
data from the County from the WRCC indicates that there are 21.8 days that fall below 32°F in eastern
Butte County, with no days falling below 0°F. Freeze has a slow onset and can be generally be predicted
in advance for the County. Freeze events can last for hours (in a cold overnight), or for days to weeks at a

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-27
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

80



time. Snowfall is measured in snow depths. It is rare for snow to fall, and even rarer that snow accumulates
in the District. Snowfall has an onset that is similar to freeze in the District.

Past Occurrences

The Planning Team noted that since freeze and winter storm is a regional phenomenon, events that affected
the upper elevations of the County also affected the District. Those past occurrences were shown in the
Base Plan in Section 4.2.3.

Vulnerability and Impacts to Freeze and Storm

The District experiences temperatures below 32 degrees during the winter months. The temperature moves
to the teens in rather extreme situations. Snow and ice can occur in the District. These winter conditions
can cause downed trees and power lines, power outages, accidents, and road closures. District facilities can
be affected by loss of electricity.

Assets at Risk

All facilities are at risk from power outages that occur during these events.

Future Development

The District requires that each facility have a plan for emergency and evacuation protocols which will
respond to this hazard. District facilities will be engineered to accommodate recommended snow loads for
roofs and examined for the potential for appropriate electrical wiring for generators.

Severe Weather: Heavy Rain and Storms

Likelihood of Future Occurrence—Highly Likely
Vulnerability—Medium

Hazard Profile and Problem Description

Storms in the PRPD occur annually and are generally characterized by heavy rain often accompanied by
strong winds and sometimes lightning and hail. Approximately 10 percent of the thunderstorms that occur
each year in the United States are classified as severe. A thunderstorm is classified as severe when it
contains one or more of the following phenomena: hail that is three-quarters of an inch or greater, winds in
excess of 50 knots (57.5 mph), or a tornado. Heavy precipitation in the District falls mainly in the fall,
winter, and spring months.

Location and Extent

Heavy rain events occur on a regional basis. Rains and storms can occur in any location of the District.
All portions of the District are at risk to heavy rains. Most of the severe rains occur during the winter
months. There is no scale by which heavy rains and severe storms are measured. Magnitude of storms is
measured often in rainfall and damages. The speed of onset of heavy rains can be short, but accurate
weather prediction mechanisms often let the public know of upcoming events. Duration of severe storms

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-28
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

81



in California, Butte County, and the District is often short, ranging from minutes to hours. In some cases,
rains can continue for days at a time. Information on precipitation extremes can be found in Section 4.2.4
of the Base Plan.

Past Occurrences
According to historical hazard data, severe weather is an annual occurrence in the District.
Vulnerability and Impacts to Heavy Rains and Storms

According to historical hazard data, severe weather is an annual occurrence in the District. Damage and
disaster declarations related to severe weather have occurred and will continue to occur in the future. Heavy
rain and severe storms are the most frequent type of severe weather occurrences in the District. Wind and
lightning often accompany these storms and have caused damage in the past. Hail is rare in the District.

Actual damage associated with the primary effects of severe weather have been limited. It is the secondary
hazards caused by weather, such as floods that have had the greatest impact on the District. Impacts to
property, critical facilities (such as utilities), and life safety are expected. The risk and vulnerability
associated with these secondary hazards are discussed in the localized flood section of this Annex.

Assets at Risk

All District assets are potentially affected by this hazard.

Future Development
The District will stay in compliance with building codes in the future to mitigate this hazard.

Severe Weather: Wind and Tornado

Likelihood of Future Occurrence—Highly Likely
Vulnerability—Medium

Hazard Profile and Problem Description

High winds can cause significant property and crop damage, threaten public safety, and have adverse
economic impacts from business closures and power loss. High winds, as defined by the NWS glossary,
are sustained wind speeds of 40 mph or greater lasting for 1 hour or longer, or winds of 58 mph or greater
for any duration. These winds may occur as part of a seasonal climate pattern or in relation to other severe
weather events such as thunderstorms.

Tornadoes and funnel clouds can also occur during these types of severe storms. Tornadoes are another
severe weather hazard that, though rare, can affect areas in the Valley in the Butte County Planning Area,
primarily during the rainy season in the late fall and early spring. Tornadoes form when cool, dry air sits
on top of warm, moist air. Tornadoes are rotating columns of air marked by a funnel-shaped downward
extension of a cumulonimbus cloud whirling at destructive speeds of up to 300 mph, usually accompanying
a thunderstorm.

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-29
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019



Tornadoes are rare in the upper elevations and are not considered to be a threat to the District.
Location and Extent

The entire Planning Area and the District is subject to significant, non-tornadic (straight-line), winds. Each
area of the County is at risk to high winds. Magnitude of winds is measured often in speed and damages.
These events are often part of a heavy rain and storm event but can occur outside of storms. The speed of
onset of winds can be short, but accurate weather prediction mechanisms often let the public know of
upcoming events. Duration of winds in California is often short, ranging from minutes to hours. The
Beaufort scale is an empirical measure that relates wind speed to observed conditions at sea or on land. Its
full name is the Beaufort wind force scale. It can be seen in Section 4.2.5 of the Base Plan.

Tornadoes, while rare, can occur at any location in the County. The areas in the Valley in the County tend
to be at greater risk than the areas in the foothills and at elevation. Prior to February 1, 2007, tornado
intensity was measured by the Fujita (F) scale. This scale was revised and is now the Enhanced Fujita scale.
Both scales are sets of wind estimates (not measurements) based on damage. The new scale provides more
damage indicators (28) and associated degrees of damage, allowing for more detailed analysis and better
correlation between damage and wind speed. It is also more precise because it considers the materials
affected and the construction of structures damaged by a tornado. These scales are shown in Section 4.2.5
of the Base Plan. Speed of onset of tornadoes is short, as are their durations.

Past Occurrences
According to historical hazard data, high winds are an annual occurrence in the District.
Vulnerability and Impacts to Wind and Tornado

The District is subject to potentially destructive straight-line winds. High winds are common throughout
the area and can happen during most times of the entire year and outside of a severe storm event. ~Straight
line winds are primarily a public safety and economic concern. Windstorms can cause damage to structures
and power lines which in turn can create hazardous conditions for people. Debris flying from high wind
events can shatter windows in structures and vehicles and can harm people that are not adequately sheltered.

Impacts to the District from wind include direct damage to District facilities. When high winds occur
during red flag days and during wildfires, they can spread fires very quickly and impact District facilities
and lands. This was the case during the 2018 Camp Fire.

Wildfire impacts are discussed in the wildfire vulnerability below.

Assets at Risk

All District buildings as well as all of the trees in the parks are at risk to this hazard.
Future Development

The District will stay in compliance with building codes in the future to mitigate this hazard.

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-30
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

83



Wildfire

Likelihood of Future Occurrence—Highly Likely
Vulnerability—Extremely High

Hazard Profile and Problem Description

Wildland fire is an ongoing concern for the PRPD. Generally, the fire season extends from early spring
through late fall of each year during the hotter, dryer months. Fire conditions arise from a combination of
high temperatures, low moisture content in the air and fuel, accumulation of vegetation, and high winds.
Throughout California, communities are increasingly concerned about wildfire safety as increased
development in the foothills and mountain areas and subsequent fire suppression practices have affected
the natural cycle of the ecosystem. While the fire season was considered to be predominantly May through
October, it has now become a year around concern. Complicating the issue, PG&E shutdowns can occur
during red flag days, which affects the District.

Location and Extent

CAL FIRE has defined areas of greater wildfire risk through Fire Hazard Severity Zones (FHSZ). The
District lies in the Moderate, High, and Very High FHSZs. District boundaries and FHSZs are shown on
Figure M-8.

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-31
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

84



85

Fire Hazard Severity

Figure M-8 Paradise Recreation and Park District

e "6102/LZ/8 e1ea dew ‘sepy-ied ‘sio Auno) sung
(17901Zswyd - 200T/6 YeIQ ¥ € 90SZsul - 200Z/}1 WHS Paidopy) 314 Tv¥D :32inos eleq
I T T T 1
S3IN 01 s 0 :cz.....ckc
ARETESHR |

(4

pauozun ueqin
ueqin-uonypuepiwi-uon [N
ajesapop
ubiH
ubiH Ason [

S3INOZ ALIM3A3S QUVZVH 314

-V
1 A

2

v
~ ALNNOD Sy

, saqunop [
EREFTC ,.Er.nrw..‘ﬂ!; ye g2 2o T ; , . ; wm_zorl
2 4 L . 3 ? sawel1[ |

A b LA N — N sIoAYy ——

speoljiey —+—
speoy Jofepy ——
sfemybiH ——

o4

IO 113 ST

Annex M-32

Paradise Recreation and Park District

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update

Butte County
October 2019



Wildfires tend to be measured in structure damages, injuries, and loss of life as well as on acres burned.
Fires can have a quick speed of onset, especially during periods of drought. Fires can burn for a short
period of time or may have durations lasting for a week or more.

Past Occurrences

All District facilities suffered major to minor damage during the 2018 Camp Fire. Losses included the
complete loss of the District Shop facility and equipment, millions of board feet of timber (and the creation
of hazard trees), playgrounds, picnic tables, smoke damage, and other damage. While estimates are still
assessed, the District suffered approximately $4-7M in direct damages. Loss of revenue from property
taxes, program income, and experienced staff amounts to a much greater amount over the next 10-20 years.

In addition, because resources are spread throughout the County the District has suffered less catastrophic
losses during smaller events and need to be vigilant in safety and mitigating this hazard.

Vulnerability and Impacts to Wildfire

Risk and vulnerability to the Butte County Planning Area and the District from wildfire is of significant
concern, with some areas of the planning area being at greater risk than others. High fuel loads in the
planning area, along with geographical and topographical features, create the potential for both natural and
human-caused fires that can result in loss of life and property. These factors, combined with natural weather
conditions common to the area, including periods of drought, high temperatures, low relative humidity, and
periodic winds, can result in frequent and sometimes catastrophic fires. During the May to November fire
season, the dry vegetation and hot and sometimes windy weather, combined with continued growth in the
WUI areas, results in an increase in the number of ignitions. Any fire, once ignited, has the potential to
quickly become a large, out-of-control fire. As development continues throughout the Planning Area,
especially in these interface areas, the risk and vulnerability to wildfires will likely increase.

The District is not immune to numerous types of wildland and WUI fires and any one of them may
accelerate into a large interface wildfire such as the Camp Fire. Such a situation could lead to evacuation
of large portions of the population and the potential for significant loss of property, structures, and land.

Compounding the problem is the lack of ingress and egress roads in Paradise. Due to the sheer volume of
people that can be affected at one time by a wildland fire, a number of potential traffic flow problems exist.
These are further complicated by the existence of only one north route out of town; only four south routes
out of town, two of which could easily be affected by a single fire; and only three through east-west streets.

Wildfires can cause short-term and long-term disruption to the County and the District, as evidenced by the
Camp Fire in Paradise and the resultant decrease in housing stock and the population in Paradise. Fires can
have devastating effects on watersheds through loss of vegetation and soil erosion, which may impact the
County by changing runoff patterns, increasing sedimentation, reducing natural and reservoir water storage
capacity, and degrading water quality. Fires may result in casualties and can destroy buildings and
infrastructure.

Although the physical damages and casualties arising from wildland-urban interface fires may be severe, it
is important to recognize that they also cause significant economic impacts by resulting in a loss of function

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-33
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

86



of buildings and infrastructure. In some cases, the economic impact of this loss of services may be
comparable to the economic impact of physical damages or, in some cases, even greater. Economic impacts
of'loss of transportation and utility services may include traffic delays/detours from road and bridge closures
and loss of electric power, potable water, and wastewater services. Fires can also cause major damage to
power plants and power lines needed to distribute electricity to operate facilities.

Assets at Risk
As evidenced by the Camp Fire, all District assets are at risk to wildfire.
Future Development

The District will abide by current building code standards for public buildings, but will also consider a
variety of best practices and building techniques to minimize the threat of fire in Wildland Urban Interface
(WUI) areas. These include building codes and materials, landscape practices, and the inclusion of ample
defensible space. The District will consider the use of non-wood utility poles or undergrounding of
electrical conduit.

In addition, because of the important of buffers in WUI areas, the District will consider vegetation
management, road connectivity, shelter (or safer) in place areas, and other measures which may mitigate
the effects of some wildfire events.

M.6 Capability Assessment

Capabilities are the programs and policies currently in use to reduce hazard impacts or that could be used
to implement hazard mitigation activities. This capabilities assessment is divided into five sections:
regulatory mitigation capabilities, administrative and technical mitigation capabilities, fiscal mitigation
capabilities, mitigation education, outreach, and partnerships, and other mitigation efforts.

M.6.1. Regulatory Mitigation Capabilities

Table M-5 lists regulatory mitigation capabilities, including planning and land management tools, typically
used by local jurisdictions to implement hazard mitigation activities and indicates those that are in place in
the District.

Table M-5 Paradise Recreation and Park District — Regulatory Mitigation Capabilities

Does the plan/program address hazards?
Does the plan identify projects to include in the mitigation

strategy?
Can the plan be used to implement mitigation actions?

Comprehensive/Master Plan Y Plan will begin an update in 2020, we anticipate it to include the
2016  addressing of hazards, and mitigation projects and some actions.

Capital Improvements Plan Y Yes, in Annual Budget. Includes a variety of projects that as
mitigation funding is received will be included in the project list.

Economic Development Plan N

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-34
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

87



Local Emergency Operations Plan Y FEach facility has a plan

Continuity of Operations Plan N

Transportation Plan N

Stormwater Management Plan/Program N Some new facilities will likely have stormwater management
folding into the design

Engineering Studies for Streams N

Community Wildfire Protection Plan N While the District does not have a specific plan, we are working
with a variety of agencies, such as CALFIRE and the Butte
County Fire Safe Council to support their efforts.

Other special plans (e.g., brownfields Y The District will develop management plans for each property,

redevelopment, disaster recovery, coastal and this will likely include a hazard management section,

zone management, climate change especially for fire and climate adaptation.

adaptation)

Building Code, Permitting, and
Inspections Y/N Are codes adequately enforced?

Building Code N/A

Building Code Effectiveness Grading N/A

Schedule (BCEGS) Score

Fire department ISO rating: N/A

Site plan review requirements N/A

Land Use Planning and Ordinances

Zoning ordinance N/A
Subdivision ordinance N/A
Floodplain ordinance N/A
Natural hazard specific ordinance N/A
(stormwater, steep slope, wildfire)

Flood insurance rate maps N/A
Elevation Certificates N/A

Acquisition of land for open space and N/A
public recreation uses

Erosion or sediment control program N/A

Other

How can these capabilities be expanded and improved to reduce risk?

The District seeks partnerships to strengthen the community response, resistance, and resiliency. We expect these to
mature over the next few years.

Source: PRPD

M.6.2. Administrative /Technical Mitigation Capabilities

Table M-6 identifies the District staff/roles responsible for activities related to mitigation and loss
prevention in the District.

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-35
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

88



Table M-6 Paradise Recreation and Park District — Administrative and Technical Mitigation
Capabilities

Describe capability

Administration Is coordination effective?

Planning Commission N We receive some coordination from land use agencies.

Mitigation Planning Committee N

Maintenance programs to reduce risk Y The District has mutual aid agreements with the Town of

(e.g., tree trimming, clearing drainage Paradise for road clearing. These agreements should be

systems) expanded to other agencies and other hazards.

Mutual aid agreements Y The District has mutual aid agreements with the Town of
Paradise for road clearing. These agreements should be
expanded to other agencies and other hazards.

Other

Is staffing adequate to enforce regulations?
Y/N Is staff trained on hazards and mitigation?
FT/PT Is coordination between agencies and staff effective?

Chief Building Official N/A

Floodplain Administrator N/A

Emergency Manager N/A

Community Planner N/A

Civil Engineer N/A

GIS Coordinator N/A

Other

Warning systems/services Y District has internal procedures for sending SMS messages to

(Reverse 911, outdoor warning signals) staff.

District owns an electronic sign on Skyway that can be utilized
for emergency information if we are notified.

Hazard data and information N

Grant writing Y

Hazus analysis N

Other

How can these capabilities be expanded and improved to reduce risk?

Increased coordination with other agencies to understand the District’s capacity and potentially establish a more

formal role during ICS events.

Source: PRPD
M.6.3. Fiscal Mitigation Capabilities

Table M-7 identifies financial tools or resources that the District could potentially use to help fund
mitigation activities.

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-36
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

89



Table M-7 Paradise Recreation and Park District — Fiscal Mitigation Capabilities

Funding Resource

Access/
Eligibility
(Y/N)

Has the funding resource been used in past
and for what type of activities?

Could the resource be used to fund future
mitigation actions?

Capital improvements project funding Y Acquisition and development of parks and
facilities.

Authority to levy taxes for specific purposes Y Authority to levy taxes for specific purposes —
like other non-enterprise special districts, needs
a ballot measure (or rely on other legislative
bodies. In the future, the District may consider
an increased assessment to support services,
maintenance, and capital projects.

Fees for water, sewer, gas, or electric services N

Impact fees for new development Y The District has Impact fees for new and
expanded developments. In the last Nexus
Study, the District Board opted for fees, well
below the amount recommended for new
acquisitions, development, and repairs. These
fees have not accumulated enough in recent
decades to support much activity and the
District remains reliant on Grants to make
substantial improvements.

Storm water utility fee N

Incur debt through general obligation bonds and/ot Y The District has not used these instruments in

special tax bonds the recent past.

Incur debt through private activities N

Community Development Block Grant N

Other federal funding programs Y The District has applied and in the process of
applying for a variety of funds.

State funding programs Y The District has applied and in the process of
applying for a variety of funds.

Other Y . The District may develop income from

facility rental and program income. We may
also be able to take on fee for service for
maintenance of facilities or implementation of
recreational programming. The District is
developing a donation and volunteer program.

Since the District will lose significant revenue from taxes associated with the Camp Fire, it will be important for the
District to develop other funding streams and financing options.

Source: PRPD

Butte County
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

Paradise Recreation and Park District

Annex M-37

90



91

M.6.4. Mitigation Education, Outreach, and Partnerships

Table M-8 identifies education and outreach programs and methods already in place that could be/or are
used to implement mitigation activities and communicate hazard-related information. More information
can be found below the table.

Table M-8 Paradise Recreation and Park District — Mitigation Education, Outreach, and
Partnerships

Describe program/organization and how
relates to disaster resilience and mitigation.

Could the program/otganization help
Program/Organization implement future mitigation activities?

Local citizen groups or non-profit organizations N
focused on environmental protection, emergency
preparedness, access and functional needs

populations, etc.

Ongoing public education or information program Y The District runs a number of camps and
(e.g., responsible water use, fire safety, household educational programs and partners with other
preparedness, environmental education) groups to get out information.

Natural disaster or safety related school programs

StormReady certification

Firewise Communities certification

K|z |Z|Z

Public-private partnership initiatives addressing The District is working with a variety of

disaster-related issues organizations to develop long-term recovery
and healing efforts for youth in the community
to limit the impact of Adverse Childhood

Experiences.

Other

Source: PRPD

The District partners with School Districts, Chico State, Butte College, Fire Safe Councils and other
Districts on mitigation related items.

M.6.5. Other Mitigation Efforts

PRPD has many other ongoing mitigation efforts and past projects that include the following:

» The District is working on a Healing Through Nature program that will to develop long-term recovery
and healing efforts for youth in the community to limit the impact of Adverse Childhood Experiences
and associated negative health and behavior outcomes.

» The District is also very active in exploring the potential of strategically located parks and Community
Facilities to create healthy communities, improve fire safety, create buffers with improved connections
to existing roads to improve emergency response and egress, parks peppered throughout the
Community may provide life-saving shelter locations during critical emergencies. Well-designed

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-38
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019



community facilities will provide essential community-building opportunities for residents and staging
areas and base of operations for emergency personnel.

M.7 Mitigation Strategy

M.7.1. Mitigation Goals and Objectives

Paradise Recreation and Park District adopts the hazard mitigation goals and objectives developed by the
HMPC and described in Chapter 5 Mitigation Strategy.

M.7.2. Mitigation Actions

The planning team for the District identified and prioritized the following mitigation actions based on the
risk assessment. Background information and information on how each action will be implemented and
administered, such as ideas for implementation, responsible office, potential funding, estimated cost, and
timeline are also included. The following hazards were considered a priority for purposes of mitigation
action planning:

Climate Change

Dam Failure

Drought and Water Shortage

Floods: Localized Stormwater
Hazardous Materials Transportation
Landslide, Mudslide, and Debris Flow
Severe Weather: Extreme Heat

Severe Weather: Freeze and Winter Storm
Severe Weather: Heavy Rain and Storms
Severe Weather: Wind and Tornado
Wildfire

VVVVVVVVVVY

It should be noted that many of the projects submitted by each jurisdiction in Table 5-4 in the Base Plan
benefit all jurisdictions whether or not they are the lead agency. Further, many of these mitigation efforts
are collaborative efforts among multiple local, state, and federal agencies. In addition, the countywide
public outreach action, as well as many of the emergency services actions, apply to all hazards regardless
of hazard priority. Collectively, this multi-jurisdictional mitigation strategy includes only those actions and
projects which reflect the actual priorities and capacity of each jurisdiction to implement over the next 5-
years covered by this plan.

Multi-Hazard Actions

Action 1. Enhance and Add (Property Acquisition or Easements) for Existing Parks to Improve
Fuels Management, Road Connectivity and Access and Recreation

Hazards Addressed: Multi-hazard (Climate Change, Dam Failure, Drought, Earthquake and Liquefaction,
Flood, Hazardous Materials Transport, Landslide, Severe Weather, and Wildfire)

Goals Addressed: 1,2,3,4,5,7,9

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-39
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

92



Issue/Background: Park land was purchased as properties became available. As park use increased, and
Park uses and building codes evolved, some properties could benefit from property additions that would
allow for better public and emergency access, more integrated vegetation management, and creating better
road connectivity (either adding roads for regular access or service roads or paths that can be used during
emergencies. An example of this issue is Oak Creek Park which only has limited access across private

property.

Project Description: Make priority acquisitions to improve emergency and public access, expand
recreation, and improve comprehensive fuels and fire management near developed (Bille Park, Moore
Road, and Terry Ashe Recreation Center) and undeveloped or wildland (Coutolenc, Lakeridge, Noble, and
Oak Creek) park properties.

Priority will be given to properties that allow for future connections of exist roads, multiple points of park
access, or development of access areas emergency vehicle turn-arounds and parking. Includes an acquisition
or securing an easement to allow emergency access and create defensible space on back side of the Terry
Ashe Recreation Center and adjoining County Property.

As these parks are developed, the District will consider elements to make these areas safer evacuation areas
or for emergency staging locations.

Other Alternatives: No action.

Existing Planning Mechanisms through which Action will be Implemented: Regular project and
proposal development, park acquisitions and projects. Coordination with Town of Paradise and Butte
County.

Responsible Office: Paradise Recreation and Park District
Priority (H, M, L): High

Cost Estimate: $5,000,000

Potential Funding: State and federal grants

Benefits (avoided Losses): Reduced risk from wildfire and other hazards to District property. Better
ingress and egress when natural hazards occur. Potential evacuation and staging areas during emergencies.
Risk reduction to adjoining properties over current uses.

Schedule: Within 5 years

Action 2. Develop a Community Buffer (Rim and Watershed) Park Feasibility Study and Plans
and Complete Initial Acquisitions.

Hazards Addressed: Multi-hazard (Climate Change, Dam Failure, Drought, Earthquake and Liquefaction,
Flood, Hazardous Materials Transport, Landslide, Severe Weather, and Wildfire)

Goals Addressed: 1,2,3,4,5,7,9

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-40
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

93



Issue/Background: Development and land use planning in past decades do not reflect our current
understanding of fire and best management practices. Many Californians are living in places that are unsafe
and becoming more dangerous with climate change.

The Camp Fire was the most destructive wildfire in California’s history, killing 85 people and destroying
nearly 14,000 homes. The Camp Fire aftermath has allowed for the rethinking of community needs. One
of these issues is a lack of buffers on the Wildland Urban Interface (WUI). Properties on the edge of
communities on steep or upwind areas pose a threat to other structures during wildfires. Community
deficiencies in amenities may contribute to a poorer response during an emergency event or in the recovery.

The lack of well-managed open space (defensible space for the entire community), improved street (and
trails) network, identified shelter in place locations, and community centers that can serve multiple
purposes, means that Butte County is less-well prepared for mitigating future disasters.

Heavily developed steep and creekside areas pose additional risks associated with landslide, flood, and
earthquake damage and park use of these areas may reduce the community’s risk of damage.

Project Description: Project will develop a study to incorporate science and land-use tools to examine the
potential for a wildfire risk-reduction buffer (WRRB) to reduce wildfire risks. The project will include a
literature review to examine the scientific and empirical evidence for wildfire risk reduction to communities
with buffers of natural vegetation or greenbelts; design elements that would retain the protective function
of the space; and identify data gaps for land uses to minimize wildfire risk to communities. The project
will also use Paradise, CA as a model to design a wildfire risk-reduction buffer (WRRB) that will include
a prioritization rubric to guide the strategic acquisition of land and quantify any additional benefits provided
by the buffer. In addition, the District will examine the feasibility, barriers, and opportunities of such an
approach.

Other Alternatives: No action

Existing Planning Mechanisms through which Action will be Implemented: This is a new planning
mechanism but may help support and inform future Town of Paradise and Butte County planning efforts.

Responsible Office: PRPD potentially a host of partners including Chico (CSUC), Cal Poly, San Luis
Obispo, CALFIRE, CDPR, PRFSC, BSFC, Town of Paradise, The Nature Conservancy, California State
University, Northern California Regional Land Trust, University of California, Davis (UCD), neighboring
landowners.

Priority (H, M, L): High
Cost Estimate: $200,000 (planning)
Potential Funding: Private funding and State or Federal grants (especially with hazard mitigation).

Benefits (avoided Losses): If implemented, risk reduction associated with fire (both to District assets as
well as to the Community).

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-41
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

94



Schedule: Within 5 years

Action 3. Acquire Land and Develop the Camp Fire Park and Community Buffer (Sunrise/Sunset
Rim and Watershed) Parks.

Hazards Addressed: Multi-hazard (Climate Change, Dam Failure, Drought, Earthquake and Liquefaction,
Flood, Hazardous Materials Transport, Landslide, Severe Weather, and Wildfire)

Goals Addressed: 1,2,3,4,5,7,9

Issue/Background: The Camp Fire aftermath has allowed for the rethinking of community needs. One of
these issues is a lack of buffers on the Wildland Urban Interface (WUI). Properties on the edge of
communities on steep or upwind areas pose a threat to other structures during wildfires. Community
deficiencies in amenities may contribute to a poorer response during an emergency event or in the recovery.

The lack of well-managed open space (defensible space for the entire community), improved street (and
trails) network, identified shelter in place locations, and community centers that can serve multiple
purposes, means that the District is less-well prepared for mitigating future disasters.

Heavily developed steep and creekside areas pose additional risks associated with landslide, flood, and
earthquake damage and park use of these areas may reduce the community’s risk of damage.

Project Description: Healthy buffers with improved connections to existing roads will improve emergency
response and provide the community with increased confidence that well-managed lands will enable safer
homes to develop in appropriate areas.

Strategically located parks peppered throughout the Community will improve the quality of life and health
of residents and may provide life-saving shelter locations during critical emergencies.

Well-designed community facilities will provide essential community-building opportunities for residents
and staging areas and base of operations for emergency personnel.

The Camp Fire Park acquisition (approximately 20-40 acres) will support this action. The Camp Fire Park
may be a standalone project, depending on the outcome of the Feasibility Study. However, it may become
part of a larger park buffer system. Implementation of a park buffer will provide a model for best practices
for vegetation management, construction, and fire prevention. For example, a Sunrise Rim Park on the east
end of Paradise could connect dead-end roads, simplify the service footprint for the town and utilities, and
serve as a weather station and potential operations station during red-flag or fire events. This greenspace
could also provide the economic backbone for commercial or agricultural ventures.

Other Alternatives: No action

Existing Planning Mechanisms through which Action will be Implemented: Park planning and
proposal process and coordination with Town of Paradise and Butte County.

Responsible Office: PRPD

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-42
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

95



96

Priority (H, M, L): High
Cost Estimate: $4,500,000 (initial acquisition) and $6,000,000 (development)
Potential Funding: Private funding, State and federal grants

Benefits (avoided Losses): Plan would help reduce risk to District assets as well as to the residents who
use them.

Schedule: Within 5 years

Action 4. Acquire and Develop Community Centers and Sport Fieldhouse/Auditorium Complex

Hazards Addressed: Multi-hazard (Climate Change, Dam Failure, Drought, Earthquake and Liquefaction,
Flood, Hazardous Materials Transport, Landslide, Severe Weather, and Wildfire)

Goals Addressed: 1,2,3,4,5,7,9

Issue/Background: Local communities have few areas for flexible space to serve as emergency staging or
evacuation areas, or to push into community services. The facility could serve as a community cooling
station. One issue that arose after the Camp Fire was a lack of areas in which residents could get cleaned
up (some people were bathing in local creeks and lakes). This District has few community amenities to
support large public meetings and for social connection and well-being.

Project Description: Project would provide for the funding and development of property for a Paradise
Fieldhouse that may serve as a regional and active lifestyle center. We are working with a non-profit that
would provide for a substantial contribution to the construction of the Fieldhouse if a viable site is secured.
The site will be designed as a flexible space to accommodate a variety of public meetings, services, support
social interactions, and serve as a staging area.

Other Alternatives: No action
Existing Planning Mechanisms through which Action will be Implemented: District planning efforts.

Responsible Office: PRPD, Ever Body Healthy Body, TOP, Gold Nugget Museum, Developmental youth
and adult services, various youth organizations.

Priority (H, M, L): High
Cost Estimate: $6,000,000 - 10,000,000.
Potential Funding: Private investment, State or Federal grants, Local funds. Facility Fees.

Benefits (avoided Losses): Location could serve as a shelter for displaced persons during any County
emergency.

Schedule: Within 5 years

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-43
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019



Action 5. Develop Magalia Park (Lakeridge) and Community Center.

Hazards Addressed: Multi-hazard (Climate Change, Dam Failure, Drought, Earthquake and Liquefaction,
Flood, Hazardous Materials Transport, Landslide, Severe Weather, and Wildfire)

Goals Addressed: 1,2,3,4,5,7,9

Issue/Background: The Camp Fire aftermath has allowed for PRPD and the Magalia residents to rethink
community needs. Whereas Paradise was the center of PRPD’s operation, the loss of over 90% of structures
has dramatically changed that reality and prompted us to focus on Magalia and the Upper Ridge.

The Community has clearly articulated the need for community space, evacuation options (including safe
shelter), and the expansion of the park.

The community has few areas for flexible space to serve as emergency staging or evacuation areas, or to
provide community services. The facility could also serve as a community cooling station. Magalia has no
public parks and no public-owned community buildings to support public meetings or for social connection
and well-being.

The Camp Fire damaged several community resources and the District would like to develop parks and
programs in this underserved community.

Project Description: The Magalia/Lakeridge Community Center and Park will transition from the forest
into open fields, fire-resistant park amenities and landscaping into the more urbanized area of the
community. This will allow for a larger buffer and transition between the wildland and urban interface.
The park will be developed as an evacuation center and with shelter in place folded into the design.

The wildland area will provide fuels reduction, trails rehabilitation, invasive plant removal, and climate
sensitive replanting efforts. The park that will provide new recreation opportunities and community
gathering place that this Community has never known. The facility will utilize energy and water
conservation and water quality measures and provide demonstrations to the public on building, water
management, and a drought resistant native plant demonstration garden.

The development of strategically located parks will enhance healthy recreation opportunities, improve fire
safety, and provide economic opportunities. Healthy buffers with improved connections to existing roads
will improve emergency response and provide the community with increased confidence that well-managed
lands will enable safer homes to develop in appropriate areas.

Other Alternatives: No action

Existing Planning Mechanisms through which Action will be Implemented: Park planning and
proposal process and coordination with Butte County.

Responsible Office: PRPD, schools, private landowners, or associations, public land managers in Magalia.

Priority (H, M, L): High

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-44
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

97



Cost Estimate: $4,500,000 to $7,000,000

Potential Funding: Private investment, State or Federal grants, Local funds. Facility Fees.
Benefits (avoided Losses): Fire risk reduction, evacuation and staging center, fuels reduction.
Schedule: Within 5 years

Action 6. Concow and Yankee Hill Community Center

Hazards Addressed: Multi-hazard (Climate Change, Dam Failure, Drought, Earthquake and Liquefaction,
Flood, Hazardous Materials Transport, Landslide, Severe Weather, and Wildfire)

Goals Addressed: 1,2,3,4,5,7,9

Issue/Background: The Community has few options for community space or meetings, evacuation options
(including safe shelter), and housing of governmental services. The community has few areas for flexible
space to serve as emergency staging or evacuation areas, or to provide community services. The facility
could also serve as a community cooling station.

Project Description: Project would provide a welcome center for the Feather River Canyon, meeting
space, sports facilities, government offices, evacuation and emergency staging area, along with outdoor
recreational opportunities, and potentially space for commercial ventures or concessionaires. Additional
funds could secure existing open space property.

Other Alternatives: No action

Existing Planning Mechanisms through which Action will be Implemented: Park planning and
proposal process and coordination with Butte County

Responsible Office: PRPD, schools, public agencies, business, Butte and potentially Plumas Counties.
Priority (H, M, L): High

Cost Estimate: $3,500,000

Potential Funding: State and federal grants

Benefits (avoided Losses): Location could serve as a shelter for displaced persons, provide county
services, and provide community meeting space to support resilient communities.

Schedule: Within 5 years

Action 7. Butte Creek Canyon Park Expansion and Development

Hazards Addressed: Multi-hazard (Climate Change, Dam Failure, Drought, Earthquake and Liquefaction,
Flood, Hazardous Materials Transport, Landslide, Severe Weather, and Wildfire)

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-45
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

98



Goals Addressed: 1,2,3,4,5,7,9

Issue/Background: Butte Creek Canyon is subject to wildfires, dam failure, and flooding. Currently, the
community has few options for areas for community gathering, and the area is subject to frequent trespass
and overuse. Prior to the Camp Fire, the Honey Run Bridge was an iconic feature of Butte County.

Project Description: While our partner, the Honey Run Covered Bridge Association (HRCBA) is
committed to rebuild the bridge and small private park, Butte Creek Canyon has long suffered from limited
Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-43 Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
September 2019.

Public access to the creek causing unregulated trespass, trash dumping, and damage to resources along this
important salmon-bearing stream. PRPD seeks to develop a park to address these issues and potentially
enhance access to the bridge. Phase I will develop a plan and environmental compliance for a managed
park (either acquired by fee title or transfer or a land partner with the CSUC, California Department of Fish
and Wildlife, or the Bureau of Land Management) to provide public access and needed amenities, solve
trespass and trash issues along Butte Creek, and provide managed recreation and educational opportunities.
The plan would identify priorities that protect resources important to salmon habitat. May be combined
with Phase Il (acquisition or development of agreement) and Phase III (construct basic park amenities and
begin operation). Savings from Phases may be applied to the next phase.

Other Alternatives: No action
Existing Planning Mechanisms through which Action will be Implemented:

Responsible Office: PRPD, HRCBA and other Butte Creek Canyon Groups; Butte County, State, and
Federal agencies; and CSUC.

Priority (H, M, L): High

Cost Estimate: Approximately, $1,000,000 (Phase I - $150,000; Phase II - $4,000,000. Phase IIT —
900,000).

Potential Funding: State and federal grants

Benefits (avoided Losses): Depending on the location, the park could serve as an evacuation area if roads
are damaged during a flood event. The park could serve as a staging area for fire crews.

Schedule: Within 5 years

Action 8. Extend Butte County Rail Trail project and Expand Fuels Management Projects

Hazards Addressed: Wildfire

Goals Addressed: 1,2,3,4,5,7,9

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-46
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

99



Issue/Background: The Camp Fire revealed several lessons that may be expanded to help mitigate issues
in the future. For example, some areas that received pre-treatment of fuels (i.e. around Paradise Lake)
slowed the expansion of the fire. Although not designed as such, the old Butte County Railroad provided
a good baseline for firefighters and fire-fighters stopped the spread of Camp Fire along this railway in the
Sterling City area.

Project Description: Use funding to purchase rail easements and develop as multi-purpose trail
(recreation, fuels management, and emergency vehicle access) on the historic Butte County Railroad that
originally ran from Sterling City to Chico.

Segments of the railway in Paradise (Yellowstone Kelly Trail) and Chico (Comanche Creek Trail) have
already been secured and developed. Some sections may be connected via undergrounding of utilities and
other related projects. Project would connect Paradise to Sterling City and could be phased from 1) Paradise
to Paradise Lake (major sections already in public ownership), 2) Paradise Lake to Lovelock, 3) Lovelock
to Sterling City (each section about 5 miles). Future phases could connect the existing rail trails in Paradise
and Chico (10 miles). The development of a trails concept plan would lay out the steps and vision of the
trail. The trail would connect to other existing trails, providing a boost to local tourism, and expand the
successful efforts to manage vegetation along the east side of Paradise Lake.

Other Alternatives: No action

Existing Planning Mechanisms through which Action will be Implemented: Park planning and
proposal process and coordination with Butte County

Responsible Office: PRPD, PRFSC, BSFC, CCC, TOP, Butte County, PID, neighboring landowners.
Priority (H, M, L): High

Cost Estimate: $500,000 for first phase, $1,500,000 for following phases.

Potential Funding: State and federal grants, volunteer and private funding.

Benefits (avoided Losses): Reduced risk to wildfire by managing vegetation along the east side of Paradise
Lake.

Schedule: Within 5 years

Action 9. Anticipated watershed protection projects and enhancement of recreation resources

Hazards Addressed: Wildfire, Climate Change
Goals Addressed: 1,2,3,4,5,7,9

Issue/Background: Dead trees create a larger fuel load in and around the District.

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-47
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

100



101

Project Description: Use funding to remove hazard trees, reduce fuel loads and mitigate the potential for
future fire damage, protect and improve trails, replace damaged pumphouse and well, and install erosion
control measures at forested areas of parks managed as wildland areas (roughly 400 acres).

Other Alternatives: No action
Existing Planning Mechanisms through which Action will be Implemented: None

Responsible Office: PRPD, Paradise Ridge Fire Safe Council (PRFSC) and Butte Safe Fire Council
(BSFC), California Conservation Corps (CCC), neighboring landowners

Priority (H, M, L): High

Cost Estimate: $200,000

Potential Funding: State and federal grants

Benefits (avoided Losses): Reduced risk to wildfire to District facilities.
Schedule: Within 5 years

Action 10. Economic Development, Watershed Protection, and Restoration and Fire Protection
Camp

Hazards Addressed: Multi-hazard (Climate Change, Drought, Flood, Landslide, and Wildfire)
Goals Addressed: 1,2,3,4,5,7,9

Issue/Background: Post-fire left a landscape scarred from the fire and more prone to erosion. The debris
left provides additional fuel sources for future events. Other than the CCC and volunteers, there is a need
for other labor options to maintain forests over time.

Project Description: Build on partnerships with existing academic and landowner education programs to
develop a program to educate landowners, students and young adults, and members of workforce programs.

The program will provide insight into the latest academic studies and provide practical skills in forest
management, restoration, prescribed burns, erosion control measures, invasive plant removal, fuel
reduction, trail building and development (for recreation and emergency access), and other recreation and
watershed-related projects according to land manager prescriptions. Public ownership lands would be a
priority but coordinated projects that meet public goals would be considered, especially those that involve
fee for service activities. While for landowners a series of workshops and workdays will be beneficial, we
envision the program for CCC or other youth to be an extended program and provide short term
employment. After training, members of the crew would be paid for 6 months to work on a variety of local
projects. The long-term goal of the project is to establish a local program that will serve the community and
important resource goals.

Other Alternatives: No action

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-48
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019



102

Existing Planning Mechanisms through which Action will be Implemented: None

Responsible Office: PRPD, CALFIRE, CSU Chico Research Foundation, University of California
Cooperative Extension; Fire Safe Councils (PRFSC and BSFC), Butte County Resource Conservation
District, the California Conservation Corps (CCC) and other workforce development groups

Priority (H, M, L): Medium

Cost Estimate: Program $500,000 for 3 years (estimate requires additional refinement).

Potential Funding: State and federal grants

Benefits (avoided Losses): Reduced risk to wildfire to Community and District facilities and forests.
Schedule: Within 5 years

Action 11. Study of Land-use and Appropriate Park Development in the Concow/Yankee
Hill/Feather River Canyon Region

Hazards Addressed: Multi-hazard (Climate Change, Dam Failure, Drought, Flood, Landslide, Severe
Weather, and Wildfire)

Goals Addressed: 1,2,3,4,5,7,9

Issue/Background: Because of the geographical position and high winds during certain events, improved
management of the Pulga/Concow region will be critical to mitigate the potential for uncontrolled wildfire
in the area.

Project Description: As it deals with issues beyond Parks, we would support a study to develop strategies
for land-use, ownership, vegetation management, strategic planning, and the potential for public private
partnerships. In addition, the area has a dearth of community facilities and infrastructure. May be combined
with Actions 2 and 6. Park facilities and community facilities could help foster improved services to
citizens, improve community connectivity, and safety. Properly located, the facilities may serve as a
gateway or even museum for tourism in the Feather River Canyon.

Other Alternatives: No action

Existing Planning Mechanisms through which Action will be Implemented: Park planning and
proposal process and coordination with Butte County

Responsible Office: PRPD along with other partners
Priority (H, M, L): High
Cost Estimate: Study $100,000

Potential Funding: State and federal grants

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-49
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019



Benefits (avoided Losses): Property protection, life safety
Schedule: Within 5 years

Action 12. Examine District Facilities for preparedness and roles during emergencies

Hazards Addressed: Multi-hazard (Climate Change, Dam Failure, Drought, Flood, Landslide, Severe
Weather, and Wildfire)

Goals Addressed: 1,2,3,4,5,7,9

Issue/Background: The Camp Fire demonstrated the lack of suitable local facilities and preparedness for
events. District shop and contents were destroyed during Camp Fire.

Project Description: District will examine public facilities for generator retrofits, suitability as cooling
centers and other improvements (i.e. showers) that may help the area support evacuees or community
meeting space. Develop new shop and facilities to protect investment and provide tools that may be useful
during disaster and rebuild. Fortify building to meet WUI standards and best practices.

Other Alternatives: No action

Existing Planning Mechanism(s) through which Action Will Be Implemented: PRPD planning
Responsible Office/Partners: PRPD

Project Priority: Medium

Cost Estimate: $500,000

Benefits (Losses Avoided): Provide evacuation and cooling center

Potential Funding: Local, State, and Federal funds

Timeline: Within 5 years

Action 13. Develop Community Programs to Improve Resiliency

Hazards Addressed: Multi-hazard (Climate Change, Drought, Earthquake and Liquefaction, Flood,
Landslide, Severe Weather, and Wildfire)

Goals Addressed: 1,2,3,4,5,7,9

Issue/Background: Post Camp Fire the Community suffers from a collective emotional and mental health
issues (stress, Post-Traumatic Stress Disorders (PTSD), sleepless nights, family conflicts). Addiction and
other issues are of great concern throughout the community. This is now a community even more in need
with the loss of emergency room, mental health, and even dental service. Not all of those needs are fulfilled
through existing services and programs.

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-50
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

103



Project Description: The District is working on innovative programs for youth and other citizens in
developing facilities, programs, and classes that will help people heal and become more resilient for the
next disaster. We will work with partners on new programs and partnerships, and more fully utilizing
facilities that provide social and outdoor experiences.

Other Alternatives: No Action.

Existing Planning Mechanism(s) through which Action Will Be Implemented: New District planning
efforts

Responsible Office/Partners: PRPD and a variety of other service providers

Cost Estimate: $100,000 annually

Benefits (Losses Avoided): Improved community mental health and ability to withstand future disasters
Potential Funding: Federal, State, local and nonprofit funding

Timeline: Within 5 years

Project Priority: High

Action 14. Invasive Plants

Hazards Addressed: Invasive plants
Goals Addressed: 1,2,3,4,5,7,9

Issue/Background: Invasive plants are likely to move into new areas as a result of the Camp Fire and the
transport of materials and equipment in the area.

Project Description: Develop a vegetation management plan for each property. Initiate a volunteer
program with equipment to remove invasive plants. Support educational efforts for landowners and
coordinated efforts with the Butte County Weed Management Area.

Other Alternatives: No action

Existing Planning Mechanism(s) through which Action Will Be Implemented: Coordination with other
entities.

Responsible Office/Partners: PRPD and a variety of partners, especially the Butte County Resource
Conservation District.

Cost Estimate: $50,000 annually

Benefits (Losses Avoided): Spread of noxious weeds, water conservation, fire resistance, and retention of
wildlife habitat, reduction of long-term maintenance costs.

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-51
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

104



105

Potential Funding: Federal, State and Local. In-kind services
Timeline: Within 5 years

Project Priority: Low

Butte County Paradise Recreation and Park District Annex M-52
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019



106



107

Staff Report December 11, 2019

DATE: 12/5/2019

’ ‘f__ N\ TO: Board of Directors
PARADISE FROM: Kristi Sweeney, Assistant District Manager
RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT

SUBJECT: KaBOOM! Playground Donation and Agreement

Background

Staff is working with KaBOOM! (an organization devoted to building safe, community-built playgrounds that encourage
youth physical activity) to develop an approximate 2,500 sq foot playground. KaBOOM! is exploring funding through
the Butte Strong Foundation to replace the playground at Aquatic Park. KaBOOM! will work with PRPD to facilitate an
outreach and design meeting with children and adults in the District. Upon completion of the design phase, PRPD wiill
prepare the site for the playground replacement. Once prepared, KaBOOM! will host a community build day. Legal
staff reviewed the cooperative agreement and is finalizing language revisions with KaBOOM! legal counsel.

Fiscal Impact

The cooperative agreement provides a net benefit to the District. KaBOOM! will fund project costs (about $50K) and
KaBOOM! staff support for the project (such as project management and design of playground features based on
public input). The District will devote staff time in support of the project, which will be minimal to facilitate a community
outreach design meeting, and community build day. Site preparation to replace existing playground at Aquatic Park is
anticipated to cost $5000. This cost represents in-house staff time to dismantle and remove existing playground
equipment.

Committee Recommendation
PRPD Recreation and Park Committee reviewed the KaBOOM! partnership agreement and the heard location proposal
at a December 4, 2019 committee meeting.

Permits and Environmental Review
Replacement of existing playground within the same footprint of existing playground at Aquatic Park does not require
a permit nor environmental review as the proposed location is already zoned for playground use.

Discussion

The agreement lays out the roles and responsibilities for a new partnership between KaBOOM! and the District that
will provide a 2500 square foot playground replacement at Aquatic Park. The project supports the Recommended
Repairs and Renovations (Table 16, page 40) included in the PRPD Master Plan approved July 2016, which included
a Playground Replacement at Aquatic Park in 2021 or thereafter. Given Aquatic Parks proximity to the new Paradise
Elementary school location, playground replacement may drive increased use of Aquatic Park, including Kids’ Fishing
Derby and aquatics, thereby increasing attendance and PRPD program revenues. An alternative site (Bille Park) was
also under consideration. KaBOOM! may be interested in supporting other playgrounds at future parks.

Recommendation
Upon concurrence with legal staff, Recreation and Park Committee recommends approval of the cooperative
agreement with KaBOOM!,

Attachments:

A. KaBOOM! agreement

PRPD Staff Report Page 1 of 1 December 2019




COMMUNITY PARTNER PLAYGROUND AGREEMENT
December 5, 2019

KaBOOM!, Inc. (referred to herein as KaBOOM!) is pleased that «CP» (referred to herein as the Community Partner) has
agreed to collaborate with KaBOOM! and «EP» (referred to herein-as the Funding Partner) in the construction of a new
playground at «Site_Name», «Site_Address», «City», «State» «Zip» (the “Project”). This Community Partner Playground
Agreement (this “Agreement”), which sets forth the Community Partner's obligations in connection with the Project and
certain matters on which the parties have agreed, will, when executed by the duly authorized representatives of each
party, supersede any prior agreements and represent the complete legally binding agreement between the parties
regarding the Project.

1.

Obligations of the Community Partner. The Community Partner shall work with KaBOOM! and the Funding Partner as

well as community residents to design, plan and build the Project. By executing this Agreement, the Community
Partner is unconditionally agreeing to each of the following obligations, in each case meeting the requirements
provided by KaBOOM!:

(@) Project Site.

(i)

(iv)

Ownership. At the time of execution of this Agreement, the Community Partner shall provide KaBOOM! with
proof of land ownership evidenced by either a deed granting title to the property to the Community Partner or
a letter from the property owner showing approval for the Project. The Community Partner is the owner of
the playground in its entirety, for the lifetime of the playground, including the equipment and/or safety
surfacing purchased by KaBOOM! and/or the Funding Partner.

Permits. Prior to Build Day, the Community Partner shall obtain or cause to be obtained all necessary
permits and licenses regarding the installation, possession and use of the playground in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations.

Preparation. The Community Partner shall ensure that the Project site is safe for volunteers and children,
which responsibility includes: (1) recruiting fifteen (15) adult volunteers to participate in preparation activities
two to three days prior to Build Day;(2) preparing the site for the installation of the Project at least two weeks
before Build Day, which includes removing existing playground equipment, footers and safety surfacing,
grading the land, removing fencing and performing soil tests; (3) conducting up to two (2) utility checks as
reasonably requested by KaBOOM! with the appropriate utility companies, with the first test being completed
on or before Design Day (as defined below) and with all utility check documentation provided upon
completion to the KaBOOM! project manager who shall supervise the planning and installation of the
playground (the “Project Manager”); and (4) conducting up to two (2) soil site tests as reasonably requested
by KaBOOM!, with the first test being completed on or before Design Day and with all soil check
documentation provided to the Project Manager upon completion. The Community Partner is responsible for
undertaking any necessary risk mitigation should the soil be deemed unsafe for children and volunteers.

Safety and Security. The Community Partner shall ensure the security of equipment, tools, supplies and well
being of the adults and children from the beginning of the preparation activities until the conclusion of Build
Day, including any postponement.

Maintenance. Maintenance of the playground facility and supervision of its use is the sole responsibility of
the Community Partner. The Community Partner shall collaborate with KaBOOM! during the Project
planning process to develop a maintenance program (a copy of which has been provided) for the playground
and, with the support of the property owner (if owner is a separate party), shall maintain the playground and
the property before and after the Build Day to ensure a safe and attractive playspace. In furtherance of the
foregoing, in the event any playground equipment included in the Project no longer is permitted for any
reason to be located at its original site of construction or such site is no longer controlled by the Community

108


Drustva Delgadillo
Paradise Parks and Recreation or the City of Paradise? 

Drustva Delgadillo
Butte Strong Fund or NVCF


(b)

()

109

Partner for any reason, then the Community Partner promptly shall notify KaBOOM! following its becoming
aware of such situation and shall, at the Community Partner's sole cost and expense, take such steps as
may be necessary to promptly and safely relocate the playground equipment (including any permanent
signage and other fixtures) to an alternate site that serves children or to ensure that the successor
controlling person of such site shall continue to make such playground available to children in the same
manner contemplated as of the Build Day and maintain (or permit the Community Partner to maintain) such
playground in accordance with the maintenance program. In addition, the Community Partner shall accept
and maintain engineered wood fiber as playground safety surfacing, meeting standards established by
Consumer Product Safety Commission guidelines, for the lifetime of the playground. Guidance and
materials for the purpose of developing a maintenance plan for the playground are available, upon request,
from the playground equipment and safety surfacing manufacturers, including Landscape Structures Inc. or
Playworld Systems, Inc.

Design Day. The Community Partner agrees to host a KaBOOM!-facilitated "Design Day" with at least twenty
(20) adult volunteers and twenty (20) children. Such adult volunteers shall remain engaged in the planning
activities throughout the Project’s planning process.

Build Day. The Community Partner shall recruit «Volunteers» adult volunteers from the community to participate
in a one-day installation event for the Project, which is scheduled to occur on «BD_» and which is referred to
herein as the Build Day. The Community Partner shall ensure that all volunteers sign a waiver (a copy of which
has been provided). On the Build Day, the Community Partner shall provide food, water, tools, dumpsters, music
and restroom facilities for all volunteers.

Promotion; Intellectual Property. The Community Partner shall seek prior approval from KaBOOM! and/or the
Funding Partner for any materials that reference the Project or contain the name, trademarks, service marks,
logos and other intellectual property (collectively, and together with all goodwill attached or which shall become
attached to any of the them, the "Marks") of KaBOOM! and/or the Funding Partner, including press releases,
fliers and promotional materials. The Community Partner acknowledges and agrees that each of KaBOOM! and
the Funding Partner is the sole owner of all right, title and interest in and to its respective Marks. The parties
acknowledge that KaBOOM! and the Funding Partner may take all steps to protect their Marks as they deem
appropriate. Any use of the Marks will inure to the sole benefit of KaBOOM! or the Funding Partner (as
applicable). The Community Partner shall not use the Marks in any manner that would harm the reputation of
KaBOOM! or the Funding Partner or disparage or negatively reflect upon the Marks. Upon expiration of or
termination of this Agreement for any reason, the Community Partner shall cease all use of the Marks. The
Community Partner shall collaborate with KaBOOM! and the Funding Partner to secure media coverage for the
Project.

Signage. The Community Partner shall allow the names and logos of KaBOOM! and the Funding Partner to be
displayed on permanent playground signage (a copy of which has been provided), and shall be no greater than
19 Y2 inches wide by 30 % inches tall and mounted on poles in a mutually agreed location.

Playground Costs. The Community Partner is solely responsible for and shall hold KaBOOM! and the Funding
Partner harmless from any costs incurred by the Community Partner for any prior site preparation, upgrades or
improvements or any equipment or materials purchased to supplement those secured by KaBOOM!.

Warranty. The playground equipment and the safety-surfacing related to the Project may be covered under
warranty by the applicable manufacturers (a copy of which has been provided). The Community Partner
acknowledges that any warranties and/or guarantees on any equipment or material are subject to the respective
manufacturer’s terms thereof, and the Community Partner agrees to look solely to such manufacturers for any
such warranty and/or guarantee. Neither KaBOOM! nor the Funding Partner nor any of their respective affiliates,
directors, officers, managers, partners, members, shareholders, employees, agents or representatives, have
made nor are in any manner responsible or liable for any representation, warranty or guarantee, express or
implied, in fact or in law, relative to any equipment or material, including its quality, mechanical condition or
fitness for a particular purpose.

Insurance. The Community Partner is self-insured and is responsible for providing coverage for its own
employees and against liability for bodily injury, death and property damage that may arise out of or be based on



110

the use of the playground at “Community Partner location”, from 7 (seven) calendar days before the Build Day
and for a minimum of one year afterward, in each case, in amounts not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000).
This self-insurance shall be primary and non-contributing with any other insurance covering KaBOOM! and its
funding partners.

Indemnification. The Community Partner shall indemnify and hold harmless KaBOOM!, the Funding Partner and
their respective affiliates, directors, officers, managers, partners, members, shareholders, employees, agents and
representatives from any and all losses, liabilities, claims, actions, fees and expenses (including interest and
penalties due and payable with respect thereto and reasonable attorneys' and accountants' fees and any other
reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred in investigating, preparing, defending or settling any action),
including any of the foregoing arising under, out of or in connection with any breach of this Agreement, any
actions associated with this Project or resulting from the use of any playground property and equipment, including
those for personal injury, death, or property damage, except to the extent resulting from the gross negligence or
willful misconduct of such indemnified person. This provision shall survive any termination or expiration of this
Agreement.

Data and Reporting Requirements. The Community Partner shall (i) promptly following the confirmation of the
Project, distribute one or more play-related surveys provided by KaBOOM! to its stakeholders, including
parents/caregivers, volunteers, staff and board members, (i) cause members of its planning committee to
complete a post-build survey provided by KaBOOM! within 2 weeks from the Build Day and a 6-month survey
provided by KaBOOM! within 7 months from the Build Day.

Code of Conduct. The Community Partner agrees to comply with the build site rules (a copy of which has been
provided). The Community Partner shall allow the build site rules to be displayed on site and communicate and
enforce the build site rules for all participants in the Project's Design Day and Build Day events.

2. Obligations of KaBOOM!.

(@) Playground Build. KaBOOM! shall provide technical and organizational leadership and guidance for the Project

and shall:

() Coordinate Funding Partner participation, facilitate playground design, including regular planning meetings,
and work with vendors to procure equipment and materials in a timely manner, except to the extent that
safety surfacing other than engineered wood fiber is used, which shall be procured by the Community
Partner.

(i) Manage construction logistics for the Project, coordinate playground site preparation activities with the
Community Partner, inventory equipment and materials, and assure that the necessary tools and materials
and other general supplies are available on the Build Day.

(i) Lead the Build Day activities, including the coordination of Build Day captains and volunteers.

(iv) Make available certain educational and promotional materials related to the Project.

(b) Inspection. KaBOOM!, in collaboration with the Community Partner, will secure a Certified Playground Safety

()

Inspector to review the playground structure at the conclusion of the Build Day (or, if KaBOOM! assumes
responsibility for the playground construction going beyond one day, at the conclusion of the installation) to
ensure that the structure is safe and built to all appropriate standards and guidelines, unless the Build Day is not
completed on the Build Day due to failure of the Community Partner, in which case the Community Partner shall
secure the Certified Playground Safety Inspector.

Promotion. KaBOOM! will provide proposed promotional materials relating to the Project for the Community
Partner’s review and approval, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.

(d) Website Listing. KaBOOM! will place the playground on its list of KaBOOM! builds on the KaBOOM! website and

KaBOOM! will send information to the Community Partner on playground maintenance programming and
enhancements.


Drustva Delgadillo
Let us know if this will be an issue from your end. 


(e) Post-Build Day. The Community Partner shall (i) within one week following the Build Day, complete and submit a
Post Build Report, in the form to be made available by KaBOOM!, and (i) shall use its commercially reasonable
efforts to provide, and otherwise shall cooperate in good faith with KaBOOM! regarding obtaining, such other
information related to the Project as KaBOOM! from time to time may request.

Build Day Postponement. The Build Day shall not be postponed except when weather or other conditions jeopardize
the safety of the volunteers or threaten the structural integrity of the playground. The decision to postpone the Build
Day will be made by majority agreement of the representatives of KaBOOM!, the Community Partner and the Funding
Partner, except where such decision must be made by KaBOOM! on the construction site and representatives of the
Community Partner and the Funding Partner are not available for consultation. In the event that the Build Day is
postponed, KaBOOM!, the Community Partner and the Funding Partner shall develop a plan for rescheduling the
Build Day at the next earliest date possible for each party. The Funding Partner shall be responsible for all additional
expenses related to the rescheduled Build Day, including, without limitation, equipment, labor and materials, storage
and travel costs and expenses; provided, however, that the Funding Partner shall be notified of the estimated amount
of such additional expenses in connection with rescheduling of the Build Day. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the
event that the date of the Build Day is cancelled or changed as a result of the Community Partner's failure to satisfy its
obligations in connection with the Project, then the Community Partner shall be liable to KaBOOM! and the Funding
Partner for all such additional expenses related to the rescheduled Build Day.

Funding Partner Relations. KaBOOM! has a separate contract with the Funding Partner pursuant to which the
Funding Partner has agreed to provide financial and human resources for the Project. In recognition of the Funding
Partner's contribution of such resources, the Funding Partner shall receive first placement on any recognition
materials developed for the Project, including playground signage, banners, T-shirts, press releases, website and
newsletter stories, and flyers, and the Community Partner shall not solicit sponsors or donors in relation to the Project
whose products or services directly compete with the products or services of the Funding Partner as identified to the
Community Partner by KaBOOM! and/or the Funding Partner. In the event the Community Partner solicits other
sponsors or donors, then the Community Partner shall not permit such sponsors or donors to compete with the
Funding Partner for signage and sponsorship recognition.

Termination. In the event that the Community Partner fails to make the payments required under Section 1(a) or
otherwise breaches this Agreement, KaBOOM! may terminate this Agreement upon written notice to the Community
Partner of such termination. Furthermore, if either party is delayed or prevented from fulfilling any of its obligations
hereunder by any cause beyond its reasonable control, including acts of God, acts or omissions of civil or military
authorities, fire, strike, flood, riot, act of terrorism, war, transportation delay, or inability due to such causes to obtain
required labor, materials or facilities, such party shall not be liable hereunder for such delay or failure and either party
may terminate this Agreement if the other is unable to perform any obligation hereunder for a period longer than ten
(10) calendar days due to such force majeure event, in which case KaBOOM! shall refund to the Community Partner
any amounts paid to KaBOOM!, less expenses already committed and/or incurred prior to the date of such
termination. If, upon termination as provided herein, the sum due KaBOOM! the by Community Partner exceeds the
sum paid to KaBOOM! hereunder, the Community Partner shall pay KaBOOM! for any such additional sum due upon
presentation of appropriate documentation within thirty (30) days of invoice. Except as set forth above, upon any
termination, this Agreement shall become void and have no effect, and no party shall have any liability to the other
party, except that nothing herein will relieve any party from liability for any intentional breach of this Agreement prior to
such termination.

General Provisions. The Community Partner represents to KaBOOM! that all information provided by it to KaBOOM!,
including in the Playground Profile Application, is true, correct and complete in all respects and does not omit any
information relevant to the Project. Each party has all requisite power and authority, including any necessary approval
by its governing body, to execute and deliver this Agreement, and to perform its obligations hereunder. This
Agreement may not be assigned or transferred by either party without the prior written consent of the other party
hereto. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto, their respective
successors and permitted assigns, and where expressly stated, their affiliates and representatives. This Agreement
shall be governed by and construed under the laws of the State of New York, without regard to conflicts of laws
principles to the extent that the application of the laws of another jurisdiction would be required thereby. This

111



112

Agreement may be altered, modified or amended only by a written document signed by both parties. This Agreement
may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which, when taken
together, shall constitute the same agreement and may be delivered by facsimile or electronic mail transmission with
the same force and effect as if originally executed copies hereof were delivered. Any notices required or permitted to
be given hereunder shall be sent by certified or registered United States mail, postage prepaid, by personal delivery
addressed to the applicable party or by facsimile or electronic mail transmission (the receipt of which is confirmed) at
the address set forth under such party's signature below. The Funding Partner shall be an intended third party
beneficiary of Sections 1(b), (e), (f), (g), (h), (i) and (j) and Sections 2(b), 3, 4 and 6 of this Agreement and is entitled
to enforce its rights under such sections as if it were a party to this Agreement.

By executing this Community Partner Playground Agreement where indicated below, each of KaBOOM! and the
Community Partner agrees, as of the date identified above, to be legally bound by all of the terms and provisions set forth
above.

«CP» KaBOOM!, Inc.

By:
Name: «Signatory_1»
Title: «Sig_1_Title»

By:
Name: Gerry Megas
Title: Chief Financial Officer

Address: Address:

«S1_Address» 4301 Connecticut Ave. NW, Suite ML-1
T: «S1_Phone» Washington, DC 20008

«S1_Fax» T: (202) 464- 6180

e-mail: «S1_Email» F: (202) 659-0210

e-mail: gmegas@kaboom.org

«CP_2»

«Signatory_2»
«Sig_2_Titlex

«S2_Address»
«S2_Phone»
«S2_Fax»
«S2_Email»

Contact information for the person who should receive KaBOOM! invoices:

Name: «Invoice_Name» Telephone number; «Invoice_Phoney
Mailing Address: Email: «Invoice_Email»
«Invoice_Address»

«Invoice_Fax»



mailto:gmegas@kaboom.org
mailto:gmegas@kaboom.org

113

‘ — Paradise Recreation & Park District

i lalbc] S
6626 Skyway Phone: 530-872-6393
Paradise, CA 95969 Fax: 530-872-8619
Email: info@ParadisePRPD.com Website: www.ParadisePRPD.com
PROCEDURE FOR ELECTION OF OFFICERS
FOR THE
PRPD BOARD OF DIRECTORS
2020 CALENDAR YEAR

CHAIRPERSON

1. Open Nominations for Chairperson for the 2020 calendar year

2. Motion and Second to close Nominations for Chairperson

3. Vote to close Nominations

4, Vote for each person nominated for Chairperson

5. Roll Call Vote
VICE CHAIRPERSON

1. Open Nominations for Vice Chairperson for the 2020 calendar year

2. Motion and Second to close Nominations for Vice Chairperson

3. Vote to close Nominations

4, Vote for each person nominated for Vice Chairperson

5. Roll Call Vote
SECRETARY

1. Open Nominations for Secretary for the 2020 calendar year

2. Motion and Second to close Nominations for Secretary

3. Vote to close Nominations

4, Vote for each person nominated for Secretary

5. Roll Call Vote

Enhancing the Quality of Life Through People, Parks, and Recreation.


mailto:info@ParadisePRPD.com
mailto:info@ParadisePRPD.com
http://www.paradiseprpd.com/
http://www.paradiseprpd.com/

	_2019.1211.BOD.Agenda
	1. call to Order
	1. call to Order
	1.1. Pledge of Allegiance
	1.1. Pledge of Allegiance
	1.2. Roll Call
	1.2. Roll Call
	1.3. Welcome Guests:  Julie Jenks, Camp Fire Zone Project.
	1.3. Welcome Guests:  Julie Jenks, Camp Fire Zone Project.
	1.4. Special Presentations:
	1.4. Special Presentations:
	A. Hunter Dougherty, Eagle Scout Project (Mark Cobb)
	A. Hunter Dougherty, Eagle Scout Project (Mark Cobb)
	B. Leah Greenbaum of CalOES and Kelsey Anderson of FEMA will provide a joint PowerPoint presentation on California Recovery Support Functions
	B. Leah Greenbaum of CalOES and Kelsey Anderson of FEMA will provide a joint PowerPoint presentation on California Recovery Support Functions


	2. PUBLIC COMMENT
	2. PUBLIC COMMENT
	3. CONSENT AGENDA
	3. CONSENT AGENDA
	3.1. Board Minutes:
	3.1. Board Minutes:
	A. Regular Meeting of November 13, 2019
	A. Regular Meeting of November 13, 2019

	3.2. Correspondence: None
	3.2. Correspondence: None
	3.3. Payment of Bills/Disbursements (Warrants and Checks Report)
	3.3. Payment of Bills/Disbursements (Warrants and Checks Report)
	Payroll Checks and Payables Checks #050224 to and including #050361 in the total amount of $209,831.00 including refunds or void checks reported.
	Payroll Checks and Payables Checks #050224 to and including #050361 in the total amount of $209,831.00 including refunds or void checks reported.
	3.4. Information Items (Acceptance only):
	3.4. Information Items (Acceptance only):
	A. Draft Safety Committee Meeting Minutes of November 21, 2019
	A. Draft Safety Committee Meeting Minutes of November 21, 2019


	4. COMMITTEE REPORTS
	4. COMMITTEE REPORTS
	5. REPORTs
	5. REPORTs
	5.1. District Report
	5.1. District Report
	5.2. Ice Rink Update (Gayle/Lorrennis Oral Report)
	5.2. Ice Rink Update (Gayle/Lorrennis Oral Report)
	5.3. LAFCO Update (Al McGreehan Oral Report)
	5.3. LAFCO Update (Al McGreehan Oral Report)
	5.4. CARPD Update (Al McGreehan Oral Report)
	5.4. CARPD Update (Al McGreehan Oral Report)

	6. CLOSED SESSION -  None
	6. CLOSED SESSION -  None
	7. OLD BUSINESS
	7. OLD BUSINESS
	7.1. Camp Fire Zone Project Kiosk Installation Proposal  – Ms. Jenks of the Camp Fire Zone Project is seeking Board approval to install informational kiosks at the Terry Ashe Recreation Center, Bille Park, Crain Park, and the Aquatic Park.
	7.1. Camp Fire Zone Project Kiosk Installation Proposal  – Ms. Jenks of the Camp Fire Zone Project is seeking Board approval to install informational kiosks at the Terry Ashe Recreation Center, Bille Park, Crain Park, and the Aquatic Park.
	Recommendation:  Approve the proposal as presented and direct staff to designate installation locations at District facilities.
	Recommendation:  Approve the proposal as presented and direct staff to designate installation locations at District facilities.
	7.2. Resolution #19-12-1-472  – Approve and adopt Resolution #19-12-1-472 authorizing Paradise Recreation and Park District Assistant District Manager and District Board of Directors to sign checks and ACH’s on behalf of the District for the County of...
	7.2. Resolution #19-12-1-472  – Approve and adopt Resolution #19-12-1-472 authorizing Paradise Recreation and Park District Assistant District Manager and District Board of Directors to sign checks and ACH’s on behalf of the District for the County of...
	Recommendation:  Approve and adopt Resolution #19-12-1-472 as presented.
	Recommendation:  Approve and adopt Resolution #19-12-1-472 as presented.

	8. NEW BUSINESS
	8. NEW BUSINESS
	8.1. Resolution #19-12-2-473 Butte County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan – The amendment to the General Plan’s Health and Safety Element is recommended that will incorporate the most current Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP) as part of the Health and ...
	8.1. Resolution #19-12-2-473 Butte County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan – The amendment to the General Plan’s Health and Safety Element is recommended that will incorporate the most current Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP) as part of the Health and ...
	Recommendation: Approve and adopt resolution as presented.
	Recommendation: Approve and adopt resolution as presented.
	8.2. KaBoom! – Butte Strong Fund – Approve cooperative agreement with KaBoom! (an organization devoted to building safe, community-built playgrounds that encourage youth physical activity) to develop an approximate 2,500 sq. foot playground.  KaBoom! ...
	8.2. KaBoom! – Butte Strong Fund – Approve cooperative agreement with KaBoom! (an organization devoted to building safe, community-built playgrounds that encourage youth physical activity) to develop an approximate 2,500 sq. foot playground.  KaBoom! ...
	8.3. Election of Officers – The PRPD Board of Directors will elect a Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, and Secretary to serve in the 2020 calendar year.
	8.3. Election of Officers – The PRPD Board of Directors will elect a Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, and Secretary to serve in the 2020 calendar year.
	Recommendation: Elect officers to serve on the PRPD Board of Directors for the 2020 calendar year.
	Recommendation: Elect officers to serve on the PRPD Board of Directors for the 2020 calendar year.

	9. BOARD COMMENT
	9. BOARD COMMENT
	10. Adjournment
	10. Adjournment

	1.4a_Eagle Scout Kiosks
	1. Background
	2. Recommendation
	Attachments:

	1.4b_Award for Eagle Scouts
	Eagle Scout
	Eagle Scout
	Hunter Dougherty
	Hunter Dougherty

	1.4b_CA-RSF PPRD Presentation_12.3
	California Recovery Support Functions:�Unifying Local, State, and Federal Partners for Long-Term Disaster Recovery�
	What is Long Term Recovery?
	Recovery challenges
	Cal OES Recovery Section 
	Response and Recovery Timeline
	Unified Recovery Outcomes
	Whole Community Approach
	Slide Number 8
	Contact Information

	3.1a_2019_1113_Board_Minutes
	3.3_BOD.Disbursements Nov_2019
	3.4a_Safety.Minutes.Draft_2019_1121
	SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING
	SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING

	4.1_Committee Report.19.1204
	5.1_2019.1211.BOD.District.Report
	1. Updates
	a.   PID agreement – Staff participated in a PID Paradise Lake & Recreation Committee meeting (M, 11/18/19).  The PID committee provided details on the process of transferring the USFS recreational use permit to PRPD from PID.  A meeting is scheduled ...

	2. Administrative and Visitor Services
	a. AT&T – We successfully completed AT&T service activation on December 3rd and now have reliable phone service at the Recreation Center.

	3. Finance
	a. Routine Reports – Balance Sheet (Attachment A), Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual (Attachment B), and Recovery Project (Attachment C).
	b. Impact Fees – For the month of November, the District received a total of $12,501.30 in impact fees. Since 11/8/18, the District has received a total of $126,919.48.
	c. 5 Star Bank – The interest for the Money Market accounts was not posted at the time this report was completed.
	d. CSDA Rick Wood – District accountant met with Rick Wood from CSDA. Together they were able to create a draft of the new Finance Policy, which will be presented to the finance committee at an upcoming meeting.
	e. PG&E Black Outs – The PG&E power outages in October and early November created a back log of work, however, now that the threat of outages is over the amount of back logged work is decreasing.

	4. Parks (Maintenance and Operations)
	a. Snow Storm - The snow storm that came through on Tuesday November 26th did considerable tree damage at our Parks. Mostly at Aquatic Park, crews worked late that Wednesday 26th to make sure all hazards were cleared. We worked all the following week ...

	5. Programs
	a. Elk’s Hoop Shoot - The annual Elk’s Hoop Shoot free throw shooting contest will be held on Saturday, December 7 at the Pine Ridge Gym in Magalia. This national event is a free for children between the ages of 8 and 13 years. The winners of each age...
	b. Fish and Game Commission Grant - In November, we reapplied for a grant for the purpose of purchasing fish for the annual Children’s Fishing Derby in the spring of 2021. The grant is through the Butte County Fish and Game Commission and is funded th...
	c. Junior Wrestling - PRPD is proud to be offering the Junior Wrestling program again for children in 4th through 8th grade. Shannon Magpusao is returning as the head coach. The program begins on December 9th and practices will take place at the PHS W...
	d. Current Classes - Additional classes being offered at this time include Tiny Tots, Holiday Treats, Little Hoopsters, Tae Kwon Do, Tai Chi, youth and adult drop in basketball and Ballroom Dance. We are excited to be starting up some Zumba classes ve...

	6. Outreach and Development
	a. Explore Butte County Project - I participated in connecting with a researcher (Professor Patrick Tierney from San Francisco State University) regarding the research project commissioned by the Sierra Nevada Conservancy to understand the impacts of ...
	b. Tree Lighting Ceremony – The ceremony .

	7. Project Development
	a. USTA Grant - Staff submitted a grant to the US Tennis Association Grant Program for a scholarship fund ($240) and equipment fund ($500) for children ages 5-18.   If awarded the grant PRPD would receive money to be used for up to 24 children to part...
	b. FEMA/CalOES Pre Disaster Mitigation Grant – Staff submitted a grant proposal to CalOES requesting $4M in pre disaster mitigation funding from FEMA.  Pre-Disaster Mitigation funding seeks to reduce the Federal Government’s financial burden when resp...

	8. Upcoming
	a. BOD agenda items - Upcoming for future BOD meetings include the Strategic Plan and agreement with the Paradise Irrigation District.


	5.1a_a_Balance_Sheet_Nov_2019
	5.1b__P&L_Budget_vs_Actual_Nov_2019
	5.1c_Recovery_Project_Nov_2019
	7.1_2019_1211.BOD.Camp_Fire_Zone_Project_Resource_Library_Staff_Report
	Report in Brief
	Attachments:

	7.1a_2019.11.03 Camp Fire Zone Project Proposal to Install Resource Library Boxes at PRPD Facilities
	Camp Fire Zone Project
	Camp Fire Zone Project
	Need and Feasibility
	Need and Feasibility
	Construction of Resource Library Boxes with Memorials at Base
	Construction of Resource Library Boxes with Memorials at Base
	Construction of Resource Library Boxes with Memorials at Base
	Proposed Request
	Proposed Request
	Maintenance of PRPD-Installed Boxes
	Maintenance of PRPD-Installed Boxes
	Contact
	Contact

	7.2_County_Signatories_Staff_Report
	1. REPORT IN BRIEF
	2. RECOMMENDATION
	Staff recommends that the Board of Directors approve and adopt the Resolution #19-12-1-472 as presented.
	Attachments:

	7.2a_Res.19-12-1-472_Butte_County_Signatory_Authorization for Checks_ACH Transfer
	8.1_2019_1211.BOD.LHMP_Staff_Report
	Report in Brief
	Attachments:

	8.1a_Res.19-12-2-473_County_Local_Hazard_Mitigation_Plan
	8.1b_Res.19-12-2-473a_LHMP letter Butte 10-31-2019
	8.1c_Res.19-12-2-473b_Annex M Paradise Recreation and Park District
	8.2_2019.1211.BOD.Staff.Report.KaBOOM!
	1. Background
	2. Fiscal Impact
	3. Committee Recommendation
	4. Permits and Environmental Review
	5. Discussion
	6. Recommendation
	Attachments:

	8.2a_2019.PRPD.Kaboom.Community.Partner.Agreement.19.1101
	1. Obligations of the Community Partner.  The Community Partner shall work with KaBOOM! and the Funding Partner as well as community residents to design, plan and build the Project.  By executing this Agreement, the Community Partner is unconditionall...
	1. Obligations of the Community Partner.  The Community Partner shall work with KaBOOM! and the Funding Partner as well as community residents to design, plan and build the Project.  By executing this Agreement, the Community Partner is unconditionall...
	(a) Project Site.
	(a) Project Site.
	(i) Ownership.  At the time of execution of this Agreement, the Community Partner shall provide KaBOOM! with proof of land ownership evidenced by either a deed granting title to the property to the Community Partner or a letter from the property owner...
	(i) Ownership.  At the time of execution of this Agreement, the Community Partner shall provide KaBOOM! with proof of land ownership evidenced by either a deed granting title to the property to the Community Partner or a letter from the property owner...
	(ii) Permits.  Prior to Build Day, the Community Partner shall obtain or cause to be obtained all necessary permits and licenses regarding the installation, possession and use of the playground in compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
	(ii) Permits.  Prior to Build Day, the Community Partner shall obtain or cause to be obtained all necessary permits and licenses regarding the installation, possession and use of the playground in compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
	(iii) Preparation.  The Community Partner shall ensure that the Project site is safe for volunteers and children, which responsibility includes:  (1) recruiting fifteen (15) adult volunteers to participate in preparation activities two to three days p...
	(iii) Preparation.  The Community Partner shall ensure that the Project site is safe for volunteers and children, which responsibility includes:  (1) recruiting fifteen (15) adult volunteers to participate in preparation activities two to three days p...
	(iv) Safety and Security. The Community Partner shall ensure the security of equipment, tools, supplies and well being of the adults and children from the beginning of the preparation activities until the conclusion of Build Day, including any postpon...
	(iv) Safety and Security. The Community Partner shall ensure the security of equipment, tools, supplies and well being of the adults and children from the beginning of the preparation activities until the conclusion of Build Day, including any postpon...
	(v) Maintenance. Maintenance of the playground facility and supervision of its use is the sole responsibility of the Community Partner.  The Community Partner shall collaborate with KaBOOM! during the Project planning process to develop a maintenance ...
	(v) Maintenance. Maintenance of the playground facility and supervision of its use is the sole responsibility of the Community Partner.  The Community Partner shall collaborate with KaBOOM! during the Project planning process to develop a maintenance ...

	(b) Design Day.  The Community Partner agrees to host a KaBOOM!-facilitated "Design Day" with at least twenty (20) adult volunteers and twenty (20) children.  Such adult volunteers shall remain engaged in the planning activities throughout the Project...
	(b) Design Day.  The Community Partner agrees to host a KaBOOM!-facilitated "Design Day" with at least twenty (20) adult volunteers and twenty (20) children.  Such adult volunteers shall remain engaged in the planning activities throughout the Project...
	(c) Build Day.  The Community Partner shall recruit «Volunteers»  adult volunteers from the community to participate in a one-day installation event for the Project, which is scheduled to occur on «BD_» and which is referred to herein as the Build Day...
	(c) Build Day.  The Community Partner shall recruit «Volunteers»  adult volunteers from the community to participate in a one-day installation event for the Project, which is scheduled to occur on «BD_» and which is referred to herein as the Build Day...
	(d) Promotion; Intellectual Property.  The Community Partner shall seek prior approval from KaBOOM! and/or the Funding Partner for any materials that reference the Project or contain the name, trademarks, service marks, logos and other intellectual pr...
	(d) Promotion; Intellectual Property.  The Community Partner shall seek prior approval from KaBOOM! and/or the Funding Partner for any materials that reference the Project or contain the name, trademarks, service marks, logos and other intellectual pr...
	(e) Signage.  The Community Partner shall allow the names and logos of KaBOOM! and the Funding Partner to be displayed on permanent playground signage (a copy of which has been provided), and shall be no greater than 19 ½ inches wide by 30 ¼ inches ta...
	(e) Signage.  The Community Partner shall allow the names and logos of KaBOOM! and the Funding Partner to be displayed on permanent playground signage (a copy of which has been provided), and shall be no greater than 19 ½ inches wide by 30 ¼ inches ta...
	(f) Playground Costs.  The Community Partner is solely responsible for and shall hold KaBOOM! and the Funding Partner harmless from any costs incurred by the Community Partner for any prior site preparation, upgrades or improvements or any equipment o...
	(f) Playground Costs.  The Community Partner is solely responsible for and shall hold KaBOOM! and the Funding Partner harmless from any costs incurred by the Community Partner for any prior site preparation, upgrades or improvements or any equipment o...
	(g) Warranty.  The playground equipment and the safety-surfacing related to the Project may be covered under warranty by the applicable manufacturers (a copy of which has been provided).  The Community Partner acknowledges that any warranties and/or g...
	(g) Warranty.  The playground equipment and the safety-surfacing related to the Project may be covered under warranty by the applicable manufacturers (a copy of which has been provided).  The Community Partner acknowledges that any warranties and/or g...
	(h) Insurance. The Community Partner is self-insured and is responsible for providing coverage for its own employees and against liability for bodily injury, death and property damage that may arise out of or be based on the use of the playground at “...
	(h) Insurance. The Community Partner is self-insured and is responsible for providing coverage for its own employees and against liability for bodily injury, death and property damage that may arise out of or be based on the use of the playground at “...
	(i) Indemnification.  The Community Partner shall indemnify and hold harmless KaBOOM!, the Funding Partner and their respective affiliates, directors, officers, managers, partners, members, shareholders, employees, agents and representatives from any ...
	(i) Indemnification.  The Community Partner shall indemnify and hold harmless KaBOOM!, the Funding Partner and their respective affiliates, directors, officers, managers, partners, members, shareholders, employees, agents and representatives from any ...
	(j) Data and Reporting Requirements.  The Community Partner shall (i) promptly following the confirmation of the Project, distribute one or more play-related surveys provided by KaBOOM! to its stakeholders, including parents/caregivers, volunteers, st...
	(j) Data and Reporting Requirements.  The Community Partner shall (i) promptly following the confirmation of the Project, distribute one or more play-related surveys provided by KaBOOM! to its stakeholders, including parents/caregivers, volunteers, st...
	(k) Code of Conduct.  The Community Partner agrees to comply with the build site rules (a copy of which has been provided). The Community Partner shall allow the build site rules to be displayed on site and communicate and enforce the build site rules...
	(k) Code of Conduct.  The Community Partner agrees to comply with the build site rules (a copy of which has been provided). The Community Partner shall allow the build site rules to be displayed on site and communicate and enforce the build site rules...

	2. Obligations of KaBOOM!.
	2. Obligations of KaBOOM!.
	(a) Playground Build.  KaBOOM! shall provide technical and organizational leadership and guidance for the Project and shall:
	(a) Playground Build.  KaBOOM! shall provide technical and organizational leadership and guidance for the Project and shall:
	(i) Coordinate Funding Partner participation, facilitate playground design, including regular planning meetings, and work with vendors to procure equipment and materials in a timely manner, except to the extent that safety surfacing other than enginee...
	(i) Coordinate Funding Partner participation, facilitate playground design, including regular planning meetings, and work with vendors to procure equipment and materials in a timely manner, except to the extent that safety surfacing other than enginee...
	(ii) Manage construction logistics for the Project, coordinate playground site preparation activities with the Community Partner, inventory equipment and materials, and assure that the necessary tools and materials and other general supplies are avail...
	(ii) Manage construction logistics for the Project, coordinate playground site preparation activities with the Community Partner, inventory equipment and materials, and assure that the necessary tools and materials and other general supplies are avail...
	(iii) Lead the Build Day activities, including the coordination of Build Day captains and volunteers.
	(iii) Lead the Build Day activities, including the coordination of Build Day captains and volunteers.
	(iv) Make available certain educational and promotional materials related to the Project.
	(iv) Make available certain educational and promotional materials related to the Project.

	(b) Inspection.  KaBOOM!, in collaboration with the Community Partner, will secure a Certified Playground Safety Inspector to review the playground structure at the conclusion of the Build Day (or, if KaBOOM! assumes responsibility for the playground ...
	(b) Inspection.  KaBOOM!, in collaboration with the Community Partner, will secure a Certified Playground Safety Inspector to review the playground structure at the conclusion of the Build Day (or, if KaBOOM! assumes responsibility for the playground ...
	(c) Promotion.  KaBOOM! will provide proposed promotional materials relating to the Project for the Community Partner’s review and approval, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.
	(c) Promotion.  KaBOOM! will provide proposed promotional materials relating to the Project for the Community Partner’s review and approval, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.
	(d) Website Listing.  KaBOOM! will place the playground on its list of KaBOOM! builds on the KaBOOM! website and KaBOOM! will send information to the Community Partner on playground maintenance programming and enhancements.
	(d) Website Listing.  KaBOOM! will place the playground on its list of KaBOOM! builds on the KaBOOM! website and KaBOOM! will send information to the Community Partner on playground maintenance programming and enhancements.
	(e) Post-Build Day.  The Community Partner shall (i) within one week following the Build Day, complete and submit a Post Build Report, in the form to be made available by KaBOOM!, and (ii) shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to provide, and ...
	(e) Post-Build Day.  The Community Partner shall (i) within one week following the Build Day, complete and submit a Post Build Report, in the form to be made available by KaBOOM!, and (ii) shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to provide, and ...
	(e) Post-Build Day.  The Community Partner shall (i) within one week following the Build Day, complete and submit a Post Build Report, in the form to be made available by KaBOOM!, and (ii) shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to provide, and ...

	3. Build Day Postponement.  The Build Day shall not be postponed except when weather or other conditions jeopardize the safety of the volunteers or threaten the structural integrity of the playground.  The decision to postpone the Build Day will be ma...
	3. Build Day Postponement.  The Build Day shall not be postponed except when weather or other conditions jeopardize the safety of the volunteers or threaten the structural integrity of the playground.  The decision to postpone the Build Day will be ma...
	4. Funding Partner Relations.  KaBOOM! has a separate contract with the Funding Partner pursuant to which the Funding Partner has agreed to provide financial and human resources for the Project.  In recognition of the Funding Partner's contribution of...
	4. Funding Partner Relations.  KaBOOM! has a separate contract with the Funding Partner pursuant to which the Funding Partner has agreed to provide financial and human resources for the Project.  In recognition of the Funding Partner's contribution of...
	5. Termination.  In the event that the Community Partner fails to make the payments required under Section 1(a) or otherwise breaches this Agreement, KaBOOM! may terminate this Agreement upon written notice to the Community Partner of such termination...
	5. Termination.  In the event that the Community Partner fails to make the payments required under Section 1(a) or otherwise breaches this Agreement, KaBOOM! may terminate this Agreement upon written notice to the Community Partner of such termination...
	6. General Provisions.  The Community Partner represents to KaBOOM! that all information provided by it to KaBOOM!, including in the Playground Profile Application, is true, correct and complete in all respects and does not omit any information releva...
	6. General Provisions.  The Community Partner represents to KaBOOM! that all information provided by it to KaBOOM!, including in the Playground Profile Application, is true, correct and complete in all respects and does not omit any information releva...
	By executing this Community Partner Playground Agreement where indicated below, each of KaBOOM! and the Community Partner agrees, as of the date identified above, to be legally bound by all of the terms and provisions set forth above.
	By executing this Community Partner Playground Agreement where indicated below, each of KaBOOM! and the Community Partner agrees, as of the date identified above, to be legally bound by all of the terms and provisions set forth above.

	8.3_Procedures for Appointing Board Officers
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



